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CORPORATE OBJECTIVES

VISION

Be a dominating player in salt and Bromine Industry & Allied products

To become the Mini-Ratna Category-Il by 2023

MISSION
To produce/supply good quality of salt & value added products.

To accelerate the process of modernization/mechanization of manufacture of salt and
allied products.

Make available quality iodized salt to weaker sections through public distribution
system.

Efficient utilization of resources.

Increase the market share of HSL/SSL.
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Chairman’s Statement
At the 63" Annual General Meeting

Dear Shareholders,

| welcome you all to the 63" Annual General Meeting of your company. The Boards' Report on the
working of your company and the Audited Accounts for the financial year 2021-22 ar}d -also the
Auditor’s report thereon and comments of C&AG have been with you. With your permission, take
them as read. | would like to underline a few salient features regarding the achievements,
constraints and tasks ahead:

:

Marketing Scenario: ;

Market scenario is currently favourable with enhanced Bromine price. Magnesium Chloride, Rock
Salt and Common Salt also contributing considerably, your company was able to sale 437 MT of
Bromine, 3553 MT of Magnesium Chloride, 20359 MT of raw salt and 361 MT of Rock Salt in FY

2021-22. The company produced 22599 MT of common salt, 437 MT of Bromine, 286 MT of
Rock Salt and 3553 MT of Magnesium Chloride.

. Financial Highlights:

The performance in FY 2021-22 is attributable to robust performance of Kharaghoda and Mandi
Unit and ability to control the operational cost by restructuring mode of operation. The topline of
the company during FY ending 31.03.2022 was Rs. 2412.61 Lakhs compared to Rs. 1237.67
Lakhs in the previous year and profit during FY ending 31.03.2022 was Rs. 151.71 Lakhs
compared to profit of Rs. 579.60 Lakhs in previous year.

. Exports:

There was no export during the financial year 2021-22. However, in the current year your
company in association with another CPSE and Private Parties is explaring the possibility of
exporting products of the company as well as of the subsidiary.

. Industrial Relations:

The Industrial relations in your company remained cordial during the year.

Projects and Programmes during the year.
Kharaghoda Unit (Gujarat

(a) Salt Production
To enhance the salt production, company explored various avenues of utilizi
huge infrastructure. These efforts will ensure sufficient quantity of bitter
Bromine plant at optimum capacity.

ng the untapped
n for running of

(b) Installation & Operation of Bromine and Magnesium Chloride Plants
HSL has awarded the long term contract through open tender for following works on
01.11.2021 for upgradation of operation by adoption of modern and efficient technologies,
wherein all the investment for development and operation is in the scope of agency engaged
in revenue sharing model: _
1. Expansion of existing capacities of Bromine (from 1.5 to 4 MT/Day) and Magnesium
Chloride (from 25 to 50 MT/Day).
2. Addition of allied products like Bromine / Magnesium Derivatives.

3. Installation of Salt Refinery of capacity 15-25 TPH, which shall commence Refined Salt
Production from Kharaghoda unit.

(c) Installation of Salt Refinery of 1 lakh TPA:

The installation of Salt Washery cum Refinery of 100,000 MT capacity awarded in 2014 to
M/s Gujarat Technical Cell Pvt. Ltd., Vadodara at a total cost of T 773.12 lakhs. The work
order was cancelled in FY 2020-21 due to delay in execution. Now the Salt Refinery will be
completed under the Long Term contract awarded by company in FY 2021-22.
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Mandi Unit (Himachal Pradesh):

(d) Extraction of Rock Salt from Drang Mines: _ fani
Company has awarded Long Term Contract with duration of 20 years for ‘Ed‘eirs"g'gg?é
Construction, Mine Development, Production, other Allied Works Prpcessmg u:g Mg‘ T
of Salt and Allied Chemicals at Drang, Gumma, Maigal Rock Salt Mines and % er e
Mandi Area on Mine Development & Operator Basis Comprising Concession Lons
based on Revenue Sharing.

Jaipur, R&D Lab cum Head office
nsumption, Roof-Top Solar PV

(e) With an objective of cost saving on account of Electricity co : adi
plant has been installed of capacity 20 Kw. The renovation of the exterior of the Eiugdmtg was
completed and was inaugurated on 15.11.2021 by the Hon'ble Minister of Heavy Indusiry.

6. Future Outlook:

(a) Kharaghoda Unit (Gujarat) : ;
HSL has awarded the long term contract through open tender for following works on
01.11.2021 for up-gradation of operation by adoption of modern and efficient technologies,
wherein all the investment for development and operation is in the scope of agency engaged
in revenue sharing model. Expansion of existing capacities and Installation of Salt Refinery
is planned during the year under the contract.

Company has issued Letter of Acceptance for Installation of 1000 MW Solar PV an.d
Renewable Energy Project at HSL-Khraghoda on 19.08.2022. Progress of the contract will
be monitored.

(b) Mandi Unit (Himachal Pradesh):
HSL has awarded the long term contract through open tender in May, 2021 for large scale
commercial mining of rock salt at Mandi, wherein modern underground mining techniques is
proposed to be used to enhance production. This proposal forms a part of Hon'ble PM'’s
vision of Atmanirbhar Bharat wherein it is planned to produce adequate quantity of
Himalayan Rock Salt so that complete import of Rock Salt both from Iran and Pakistan gets
stopped at the earliest. Company also intends to install Salt Refinery for processing of Rock

Salt with latest technology as part of contract.
7. Corporate Governance:
Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated in the
guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises.

8. Acknowledgement:
| take this opportunity to thank the Government of India, various State Governments, officers of

the Ministry of Heavy Industries, DPE, Niti Aayog, abnkers, business associates, Salt
Commissioner's Office and major customers for their advice and continued support extended. |
am also thankful to all my colleagues on the Board for their valued guidance and counsel. The
officers, staff and workers of the company also deserve thanks for their dedicated work and
cooperation.

In conclusion, | would like to thank you for sparing your valuable time and to participate in the
proceedings as shareholders of the company. | look forward to receive continued inspiration,
help, cooperation and assistance in the coming months.

| now move to the Directors Report as well as the audited balance sheet and the statement of
profit and loss for the year 2021-22. It is requested that Directors Report as well as the Annual
Accounts be approved and adopted.

(CMDE Kamlesh Kumar (Retd.))
(Chalrman & Managing Director)

Place: Jaipur
Date: 27.12.2022
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Hindustan Salts Limited,

Your Directors are pleased to present their Sixty Third Annual Report on the business and operation
of Hindustan Salts Limited (hereafter referred as the “Company” or “HSL”) along with the Audited
Financial Statement and the Auditors’ Report thereon and the review of the same by the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India for the year ended 31 March 2022. Consolidated performance of the
company and its subsidiary has been referred to wherever required.

1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (STANDALONE AND CONSOLIDATED)

1.1 Financial Results:

During the year under review, performance of your company and consolidated performance of

the company and its subsidiary as per consolidated financial statement is as under:

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated

2021-22 | 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21
Revenue from Operations 2412.61 | 1237.67 6603.01 3736.82
Other Income 551.56 806.26 594.34 354.84
Total Income 2964.17 | 2043.93 7197.35 4091.66
Less: Accretion and Decretion of stock (+)/(-) 62.42 7.52 (157.77) 755.51
Less: Expenditure for the vyear after net 2598.03 | 1110.65 5238.99 3069.64
appropriation to Subsidiary company M/s Sambhar
Salts Limited excluding depreciation and Interest
Profit before depreciation and interest 428.56 940.80 1800.59 1777.53
Depreciation 72.52 80.03 362.12 401.47
Profit after depreciation 356.04 860.77 1438.47 1376.06
Interest 270.56 301.53 270.73 301.75
Profit after depreciation and interest 85.48 559.24 1167.74 1074.31
Adjustments relating to prior period (57.54) 20.36 (60.70) 39.79
Profit Before Tax 143.02 579.60 1228.44 1114.10
Tax expense (8.69) - (8.69) -
Profit after Tax 151.71 579.60 1237.13 1114.10
Adjustment for Minority Interest - 434.16 213.80
Profit / Loss for the year 151.71 579.60 802.97 900.30
Total Carry forward Losses (781.86) | (933.57) | (2672.06) (3475.03)

1.1.2
previous year to ¥ 2412.61 lakh.

113

1.1.4 Dividend

During the year 2021-22, turnover of the company has increased from ¥ 1237.67 lakh in

With the current year’s profit of ¥ 151.71, the carry forward losses of your company as on 31°
March, 2022 have decreased to ¥ 781.86 lakhs from ¥ 933.57 lakhs.

In view of the cumulative deficit, no dividend has been proposed for the year 2021-22.

1.2 Financial resources:

1.2.1 Capital structure:

Your company’s authorized share capital is ¥ 6,000 lakhs and paid up share capital is ¥

5205.96 Lakhs.
1.2.2

Amount transferred or proposed to transfer to any reserves:

Your Company has not transferred or proposed to transfer any amount to any reserve as on

31.03.2022.




1.2.3

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

Borrowing
The total Plan and Non-plan loan including interest accrued thereon from Government of India
stood at ¥ 3936.55 lakhs as on 31° March, 2022.

State of Company Affairs and Physical Performance

HSL was incorporated to take over the salt sources at Sambhar, Didwana and Kharaghoda
earlier managed by the Salt Department, Government of India. It is presently engaged in the
in production of Common Salt, Liquid Bromine, Magnesium Chloride (MgCl,) at Kharaghoda,
District Surendranagar, Gujarat.

Currently the Company has one Bromine plant of capacity 450 MT/Annum and a Magnesium
Chloride plant of production capacity of 5000 MT/ Annum.

HSL undertakes the mining of Rock salt at Drang Salt Mine. During the year 2021-22
company awarded a contract to undertake Mining and allied activities of Rock Salt in PPP
mode on Mine Developer and Operator (MDO) basis with revenue sharing, for enhancing the
mining activity. However Rock Salt mining operations were impacted due to lockdown
imposed due to Covid 19 and heavy rainfall in the mining areas.

Comparison of the physical performance of your Company vis-a-vis previous year is as under:

S. No. Particulars Quantity in M.T.
2021-22 2020-21
0] Production:
Common Sallt 22599 732
Rock Salt 286 485
Bromine 437 173
Magnesium Chloride 3553 1862
(i) Sales:
Common Salt 20359 20627
Rock Salt 361 376
Bromine 437 244
Magnesium Chloride 3553 2910
(iii) Inventory at the close of the year after
adjustment:
Common Sallt 2241 1
Rock Salt 38 113
Bromine - -
Magnesium Chloride - -
Production
(i) The production of rock salt during the year was 286 MT against 485 MT in the previous
year.

(i) The production of Bromine and Magnesium Chloride was during the year was 437 MT,
3553 MT against and 173 MT and 1862 MT respectively in the previous year.

Sales

The sale of bromine and Magnesium Chloride in the current year was 437 MT and 3553 MT

respectively.

Exports
The company has not exported during the financial year 2021-22.

Inventories
Inventory of common salt and bromine at the close of year was 2241 MT and Nil MT as
against 1 MT and Nil MT in the previous year respectively. Inventory of Magnesium chloride is



3.1
3.11

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.1.4

3.2

Nil MT compared to Nil MT in previous year. The inventory of Rock Salt at the close of year
was 38 MT against previous year 113 MT.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY: SAMBHAR SALTS LIMITED (SSL)

The audited statement of accounts along with report of the Board of Directors and Auditors
and Statement pertaining to the holding Company’s interest in the subsidiary company,
Sambhar Salts Limited (hereafter referred as the “Subsidiary Company” or “SSL”) at the close
of the financial year are attached.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Financial Results:

The highlights of financial performance of our Subsidiary Company for the year 2021-22 along
with comparison with the previous year is as under:-

(Z in lakhs)

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Revenue from Operations 4190.40 2499.15
Other Income 471.96 111.59
Total Income 4662.36 2610.74
Less: Accretion (+), Decretion of stock(-) 220.19 (747.91)
Less: Expenditure for the year excluding depreciation and 2640.97 1958.99
interest (Net)

Adjustments relating to prior period 3.16 19.43
Profit before depreciation and interest 1804.36 1419.17
Less: Depreciation 289.60 321.44
Profit after depreciation 1514.76 1097.73
Less: Interest 429.35 563.23
Profit after depreciation and interest 1085.41 534.50
Net Profit for the year 1085.41 534.50
Total Carry forward losses (4212.54) (5297.95)

During the year 2021-22, turnover of the subsidiary company has increased to ¥ 4190.40 lakh
against ¥ 2499.15 lakh in the previous year.

With this year's profit, the carry forward losses of the subsidiary company as on 31° March,
2022 are ¥4212.54 lakhs in comparison to previous year’s loss of ¥ 5297.95 lakhs. Subsidiary
was able to leverage the favorable market condition and accordingly the salt prices were
increased which along with effective cost cutting measures and main focus was on enhancing
the retail market share, have contributed towards better performance in FY 2021-22.

Dividend

In view of the cumulative deficit, no dividend has been declared by the subsidiary company for
the year 2021-22.

Physical performance

Comparison of the physical performance of the subsidiary Company vis-a-vis previous year is
given as follows:-

Particulars Quantity in M.T.
2021-22 2020-21

Production:

Common Salt 214039 202418

Processed Salt 26431 13832

Sales/ Issues:

Common Salt 194143 86004

Processed Salt 26796 11115




3.2.1

3.2.2

3.2.3

3.24

3.25

(@)

(b)

()

Inventory at the close of the year after adjustment:

Common Salt 77175 129644

Processed Salt 17 848

Refined Salt 3513 3158
PRODUCTION

The production of common salt in FY 2021-22 is 214039 MT as against previous year 202418
MT, which is a increase of 5.74 %. The production of processed salt has increased by 12599
MT which is 91% increase.

Sales

The subsidiary Company sold 194143 MT of common salt during the financial year as against
86004 MT in previous year and sold 26796 MT of processed salt processed salt during the
financial year as against 11115 MT in previous year.

Exports
The subsidiary company has not exported salt during the financial year 2021-22.

Inventories
The physical inventory of common salt of the company was 77175 MT at the close of the year
against 129644 MT in the previous year.

Deposits
The subsidiary company has not accepted any deposits during FY 2021-22.

PROJECTS AND PROGRAMMES DURING 2021-22

Kharaghoda Unit (Gujarat)

Salt Production

To enhance the salt production, company explored various avenues of utilizing the untapped
huge infrastructure. These efforts will ensure sufficient quantity of bittern for running of
Bromine plant at optimum capacity.

Installation & Operation of Bromine and Magnesium Chloride Plants
HSL has awarded the long term contract through open tender for following works on

01.11.2021 for upgradation of operation by adoption of modern and efficient technologies,
wherein all the investment for development and operation is in the scope of agency engaged
in revenue sharing model:
1. Expansion of existing capacities of Bromine (from 1.5 to 4 MT/Day) and Magnesium
Chloride (from 25 to 50 MT/Day).
2. Addition of allied products like Bromine / Magnesium Derivatives.
3. Installation of Salt Refinery of capacity 15-25 TPH, which shall commence Refined Salt
Production from Kharaghoda unit.

Installation of Salt Refinery of 1 lakh TPA:

The installation of Salt Washery cum Refinery of 100,000 MT capacity awarded in 2014 to M/s
Gujarat Technical Cell Pvt. Ltd., Vadodara at a total cost of ¥ 773.12 lakhs. The work order
was cancelled in FY 2020-21 due to delay in execution. Now the Salt Refinery will be
completed under the Long Term contract awarded by company in FY 2021-22.



Mandi Unit (Himachal Pradesh):

(d) Extraction of Rock Salt from Drang Mines:

Company has awarded Long Term Contract with duration of 20 years for Designing,
Construction, Mine Development, Production, other Allied Works Processing including Sale of
Salt and Allied Chemicals at Drang, Gumma, Maigal Rock Salt Mines and other Mines in
Mandi Area on Mine Development & Operator Basis Comprising Concession Consideration
based on Revenue Sharing.

Jaipur, R&D Lab cum Head office

(e) With an objective of cost saving on account of Electricity consumption, Roof-Top Solar PV

b)

d) (i)

plant has been installed of capacity 20 Kw. The renovation of the exterior of the Building was
completed and was inaugurated on 15-11-2021 by the Hon’ble Minister of Heavy Industry.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, EXPENDITURE ON RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT,
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

As required under section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the details of the conservation of energy, technology
absorption, expenditure on research and development, foreign exchange earnings and outgo
are as under:

A. Conservation of Energy
a) Energy Conservation measures taken:-

The following steps were taken to minimize the energy consumption.

- Steps taken to exchange Centrifugal Pumps by Mount Piller Pumps.

- Replacement of oil driven pumps with electric driven pumps.

- Creating awareness at all levels.

- Eliminating the idle running of motors and other electrical appliances as well as
mechanical equipment.

- Mechanization of activities.

- Optimizing the standardization of pumps & motors.

- Old PHE at Kharaghoda is being replaced with latest technology to save energy.

- Steps taken to change Furnace oil boiler into multi fuel boiler.

- Installation of Electric centrifuge for automatic operations of lights.

Steps taken for utilizing alternate sources of energy additional investments and proposals, if

any, being implemented for reduction of energy consumption-

(i) Energy report prepared by PCRA, Mumbai has been implemented for saving in energy
consumption. The Energy Audit of the company is conducted by M/s Ascertiva India
Private Ltd. for further savings in energy consumption.

(i) Planning to install Solar power generation plant on rooftop and available land for captive
consumption.

In production of common salt, at Kharaghoda, natural solar energy is used. Rock salt is mined
manually at company’s Mandi unit. The company is extracting Bromine at Kharaghoda from
left over mother liquor “Bitterns” with Glass Tower Technology which resulted in less energy
consumption. Efforts are made to develop downstream products from waste of bromine plant.

Capital investment on energy conservation equipment: NIL
Total Energy Consumption and Energy Consumption per unit of Production of Bromine
Sl. No.|Description 2021-22 2020-21
1 |Electricity
(A) Purchased Unit (Lakh KWH) 0.10
Total amount (T in Lakhs) 9.71




Average Rate / Unitin ¥ per KWH

9.07

(B) Own Generation

(i) Generated Unit (Lakh KWH) 0.02
KWH Unit Generated per Ltr. of Diesel 1.35
Cost per Unit” 80.25
(*) Increase in cost is on account of increase in prices

(ii) Through Steam Turbine Generators Units

Not Applicable
Generated Unit (Lakh KWH) - -
Fuel Oil / Gas Cost / Unit - -

2 |Coal / Briquettes (Tonnes) 1310 740
Total Cost (in Lakhs) 91.70 22.96
Average Cost of Fuel (Per MT) 7000 4270

3 |Furnace Qil (F.O.)

Qty. (Lakh Ltr.) - -

Total Amount (¥ in Lakhs) - -

Average Rate (T Per Ltr.) - -

4 |Other / Internal Generation Not Applicable
Qty. (Ltr.) Mobil Ol - -
Total Cost - -

ii) Consumption Per Unit (MT) of Production:
Sl. No. [Description 2021-22 2020-21
1 Bromine

- Production (MT) 436.80 173

- Electricity (KWH) 632 617

- Briquettes (MT) 3.0 0.427

2 Magnesium Chloride **
- Production (MT) 3552.50 1862
- Electricity (KWH) 4.3 4.09
- Other Fuel (MT) 0.700 -

Note: Since salt manufacture is done through “Solar Evaporation” method, therefore, energy

consumption figures have been taken only in respect of Bromine Plant and magnesium
chloride.

Expenditureon R & D (T in Lakhs)
Capital : 0.00
Recurring : 0.01

Total : 0.01

Total R & D expenditure as a Percentage of total turnover 0.0004 %
Technology Absorption Adaptation and Innovation

Efforts made for Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation. NIL
Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts e.g. products improvement,

cost reduction, product development import Substitution etc. NIL

In case of imported technology (imported during the last 5 years reckoned
from the beginning of the financial year), following information may be furnished:-

a) Technology imported. NIL
b) Year of import. NA
¢) Whether imported technology has been fully absorbed? NA

d) Areas where absorption of imported technology has not taken place, if any.
NA
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11.

(i)

Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo:
Activities relating to export initiatives taken to increase exports, development

of new markets for products and services and exports plans. NIL

(ii) Total foreign exchange used and earned.
- Earnings in Foreign Exchange. NIL
- Foreign Exchange outgo. NIL

HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT

The Company has continued its efforts to improve and optimum utilization of its human
resources and development activities in line with the changing corporate vision, Government
policies, technology etc. The Company is committed to improve the quality of life of its
employees and is also committed to fulfill the social obligations towards the national as well as
of the living and working environment of the places where the Company’s Units are located.
Emphasis is now given to develop and provide in-house training to employees at all levels.
Company has invited experts for imparting training to employees for skill development,
motivation etc.

MANPOWER

Your company has 82 employees consisting of 22 executives and 60 Non-Executives at the
close of this financial year. In addition; Company has 21 workers who have completed 240
days at close of Financial Year 31.03.2022.

RESERVATION OF VACANCIES

Your company is implementing the guidelines issued by the Government with regard to
reservation of posts for SC, ST, OBC, Physically handicapped (PH) and Ex-Servicemen (Ex-
S) as well as for any other concessions /facilities. The number of SC/ST/OBC/PH employees
at the close of the financial year, in the various categories remained as under:

Group Total No of SCs | No of STs | No of OBCs | No of PH as | No of Ex-
strength as |as on 31%|as on 31%|as on 31%|on 31% | Serviceman
on 31% | March March March March as on 31%
March March
2022 | 2021 | 2022 | 2021 | 2022 | 2021 | 2022 | 2021 | 2022 | 2021 | 2022 | 2021
A 22 21 1 0 0 0 5 3 0 0 1 2
B 15 19 2 3 0 0 6 5 0 0 0 0
C 6 6 2 2 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0
D 39 39 5 5 0 1 29 27 1 2 0 0
Total 82 85 10 10 0 1 41 36 1 2 1 2

VOLUNTARY RETIREMENT SCHEME:
During the year no employees/ workers has voluntarily retired under Voluntary Retirement
Scheme

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The industrial relations during the year remain cordial. Grievances of the employees were
discussed mutually and as far as possible settled. Joint Councils /Plant Councils which have
been constituted under the Workers Participation in Management Scheme are functioning
satisfactorily.

WELFARE ACTIVITIES
Various welfare measures introduced in the company were continued during the year. These
includes maintenance of accommodation in the form of township at units, provision of




12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

medical facilities and provision of drinking water for laborers engaged in the production of
salts in the Run area as well as also for rural population of the village near Kharaghoda.
Further efforts are being made to improve the residential facilities at Kharaghoda in planned
manner.

The Company has hospital for workers and general public at Kharaghoda. During the year
under report 180 nos. of outdoor patients and 110 No. staff members, Agarias and workers
have been treated at our hospital.

ACHIEVEMENT, AWARDS AND MOU

The MOU for the financial year 2022-23 with Ministry of Heavy Industries is under finalization
at the end of DPE.

HSL & SSL awarded with given Top Most Manufacturing Company & Best Employer Brand
Award- 2022 by World Manufacturing Congress & World HRD Congress on 22.06.2022.

OUTLOOK FOR THE YEAR 2022-23

The COVID pandemic had affected the operation during lockdown period, however post
lockdown once the markets have opened up and Company has geared up its production and
sales network of Kharaghoda and Mandi unit. The activities which are underway are as
under:

Kharaghoda Unit (Gujarat) :

HSL has awarded the long term contract through open tender for following works on
01.11.2021 for up-gradation of operation by adoption of modern and efficient technologies,
wherein all the investment for development and operation is in the scope of agency engaged
in revenue sharing model. Expansion of existing capacities and Installation of Salt Refinery
is planned during the year under the contract.

Company has issued Letter of Acceptance for Installation of 1000 MW Solar PV and
Renewable Energy Project at HSL-Khraghoda on 19.08.2022. Progress of the contract will
be monitored.

Mandi Unit (Himachal Pradesh) :

HSL has awarded the long term contract through open tender in May-2021 for large scale
commercial mining of rock salt at Mandi, wherein modern underground mining techniques is
proposed to be used to enhance production. This proposal forms a part of Hon'ble PM’s
vision of Atmanirbhar Bharat wherein it is planned to produce adequate quantity of
Himalayan Rock Salt so that complete import of Rock Salt both from Iran and Pakistan gets
stopped at the earliest. Company also intends to install Salt Refinery for processing of Rock
Salt with latest technology as part of contract.

PRESIDENTIAL DIRECTIVES
No Presidential Directives has been received during the year.

FRAUD REPORTING
No fraud on or by the company has been noticed/reported during the year.
IMPLEMENTATION OF OFFICIAL LANGUAGE (HINDI)

The Official Language Implementation committee constituted at the corporate office and at
the units continued their efforts to overcome from the difficulties in the progressive use of
Hindi in the Company.

Competitions were held to create interest in Hindi. Certificates were given to the winner in
various competitions. The company is observing “Hindi Pakhwada” from 14.09.2021 to
28.09.2021.

10
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22.1

VIGILANCE

Vigilance branch has been closely monitoring the system in vogue, policies and procedures of
the company and giving suggestions for system improvement from time to time with an
emphasis on preventive vigilance. Instead of punitive vigilance, surprise checks and
inspections are carried out and suggestions for system improvements, transparency in work,
simplification of rules and regulations and usage of technology is promoted. The Vigilance
wing of the company is headed by Chief Vigilance Officer (CVO) and supported by one
Vigilance Officer. The full time CVO joined on 31.03.2021.

The Vigilance department follows policies and circulars issued by Central Vigilance
Commission to build and strengthen a culture of transparency.

Vigilance Awareness week was observed from 26th October 2021 to 1st November 2021.
Complaints received were processed as per the CVC guidelines and were disposed off within
the stipulated time period.

RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT, 2005

As per the requirements of RTI Act, the names of Appellate Authority, Central Public
Information Officer and Assistant Public Information Officer of the company are posted on the
website. Queries received are replied within the stipulated time. During the year the company
has received 45 RTI applications and 9 first appeals and addressed 39 applications and 6
appeals.

REDRESSAL OF PUBLIC GRIEVANCES

Your Company is committed for resolution of public grievance in efficient and time bound
manner. In order to facilitate resolution of grievances in transparent and time bound manner,
Department of Administrative Reforms & Public Grievances, Department of Personnel &
Training, Government of India has initiated web-based monitoring system at www.pgportal.in.
As per directions of GOI, public grievances are to be resolved within two months’ time. If it is
not possible to resolve the same within two months period, an interim reply is to be given.
Your company is making all efforts to resolve grievances in above time frame. Having regard
to the fact that company is operating at minimum manpower, effort has being made that in the
grievance committee sufficient representatives of SC/ST and OBC are represented.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PURSUANT TO THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF
PARLIAMENTARY COMMITTEES

The company has not incurred expenditure on foreign travel. Expenditure incurred on
Business Promotion and Entertainment was ¥ 4.64 Lakhs (Previous year ¥ 0.37 Lakhs)
which works out to 0.03% of the turnover. Expenditure on advertisement and publicity was
Nil Lakhs (Previous year ¥ Nil Lakhs).

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER

During the year under review, the contribution / provision made by the company in the form
of various taxes / interest to the National Exchequer, both Central and State, was of ¥ 515
lakhs as against T 402 lakhs in the previous year.

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO STATUTORY AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS

The information required to be furnished as per the Companies Act, 2013 are as under:

AUDITORS

Pursuant to Section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Comptroller and Auditor General
of India have appointed M/s Mathur & Co, Chartered Accountants, Jaipur as Statutory
Auditors for the financial year 2021-22.
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22.2.

22.2.1

MANAGEMENT COMMENTS ON STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Statutory Auditors has given qualified report on standalone financial statement of the
company for the financial year 2021-22, has drawn attention under “Emphasis Matter” of
financial statement, observation under “CARO, 2016” and qualified opinion on “Internal
Financial Controls”. The reply on the audit observation of the audit report is submitted as

under:
S.No. | Audit Observations Management Reply
Qualified Opinion-Annexure-A

1) It has been observed that D-1 Mine Project at Mandi Unit was | Presently D-1 mine of Mandi unit
not operational during the year and no extraction of salt is | is operational during the year,
being carried out from this mine. The company is doing limited | we are working on D-2 Mines so
extraction from a separate D-2 Mine. The operational utility | we stopped the production from
and commercial viability of this mine shall be ascertained and | D-1 Mine.
necessary adjustment in this regard may be made at the
earliest. It has also been observed that at Mandi unit | Further, the production of rock
particulars of assets relating to addition during the years only | salt is a seasonable business
are available and not for the brought forward balances of | depending on weather condition
assets. Therefore, the depreciation as per Schedule Il of the | and demand we start the
Companies Act 2013 has not been properly charged. In | production of rock salt as per the
absence of relevant details, the same cannot be quantified. requirement.

On the above, we are taking
depreciation during the year.

In future, if D-1 Mine becomes
non-operational then we may
close the D-1 Mine and
adjustment in the books will be
done accordingly

Hence, para may please be
dropped.

2) The provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) are | It is correct that our net profit in
applicable to the holding company for the financial year 2021- | the books for the immediate
22 as the Net Profit for the immediate preceding previous year | preceding previous year was
was more than Rs. 5 Crore. The company has neither incurred | Rs.5.80 crores but after CAG
any expenditure on this account nor due provision has been | Audit, CAG understated net
made for CSR liability. The expenditure are understated by Rs. | profit by Rs.0.81 Crores hence
3.47 Lacs and profit overstated by Rs. 3.47 Lacs on this | our net profit came down to
account. Rs.4.99 crores which is less than

5.00 Crores which does not
qualify for the CSR Provision.
Being, a PSUs we are sending
our all the financial statements to
the Ministry and other
departments for record and MoU
assessment is done only after
getting finalized report from
CAG.

Hence, para may please be
dropped.

3) The company has received rent from letting out of part of its | Previously the office premise
office premises to M/s Instrumentation Limited for which no | was rented out to M/s
formal agreement is available on records for period till | Instrumentation Limited on the
January, 2022. It has been observed that such rental income is | recommendation of the Ministry
not accounted for on regular basis and therefore, GST payable | of Heavy Industry hence no

formal agreement was made as

12




on this income is also delayed on this account.

both are the PSUs. In current
financial year Rent agreement
has been executed in the month
of January-2022. Before Aug-
2021, we charged according to
the bill, that we generated and
after, August-2021, we are
charging rent on month wise and
accordingly month wise GST is
being paid. The payment of
GST payable on rent income is
deposited by the company as
per Annexure-C.

Hence, para may please be
dropped.

4)

The Company has given loan to its subsidiary company in
previous years out of the funds received as loan from Govt. of
India, Ministry of Industry. Company is required to pay interest
as well as penal interest on the outstanding amount of loan
received from Govt. of India. During the year, the company has
passed a board resolution stating that since the Govt. of India
is not charging any penal interest, the company will also not
charge any penal interest on loan given to its subsidiary
company. The rate of interest on loan to subsidiary was also
fixed at 12% per annum only. However, the loan received by
the company from Govt. of India is at different rates of interest
ranging from 11.50% to 15.50% and penal interest is from
14.00% to 18.25%. As per the records, the Govt. of India
during the year has charged penal interest from the company
on such loan. The reduction on rate of interest and not
charging penal interest from subsidiary company is therefore
against the facts of the matter. In absence of relevant details
amount cannot be quantified.

Government of India given loan
amount of Rs.12.41 Crores to
Hindustan Salts Ltd., and further
HSL gave loan amount of
Rs.35.77 Crores to the
subsidiary company Sambhar
Salts Ltd. So the complete loan
amount is not related to GOI.
Presently, the rate of interest
existing in the market is very
less hence we charged a fixed
rate of interest @12% from
Sambhar Salts Limited.

As Govt. of India is charging
Penal Interest on the loan
amount but due to typing
mistake, the matter was
submitted to the Board that no
Penal Interest was charged from
Sambhar Salts Limited which
was amended in next Board
meeting.

Hence, para may please be
dropped.

5)

The company has provided security deposit and performance
security to relevant courts/ authorities of Rs. 45.05 Lacs and
Rs. 19.35 Lacs respectively in form of Fixed Deposits
Receipts. The accrued interest on such deposits has been
included in such Security deposit and performance security in
place of being shown as accrued interest on FDR. Security
deposit and performance security are overstated by Rs.
2,06,763 and Rs. 7,17,021 respectively and accrued interest
on FDR'’s is understated by Rs. 9,23,784.

The security deposit of Rs.45.05
Lacs was placed in the courts in
the matter of Gyan Vashisht and
it is not confirmed that when it
will be released so the interest
amount to be received is to be
added on the security deposit.

The performance security of
Rs.19.35 lacs was placed for 50
years in the matter of Mandi
Mines at Mandi which will be
renewed after every five years
and interest to be earned shall
be added in the principle amount
as it will be released after 50
years so the interest amount is
counted in Security deposit.
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However, the accounting will be
done as recommended from FY
2022-23 onwards,

Hence, para may please be
dropped.

6) The company has carried out trading activities at Ramnagar | According to the observation, a
Unit but no stock register was maintained for it. The modus for | stock register for such activities
such activity was ‘Bill to Company’ and ‘ship to customer’ by | at Ramnagar depot is being
the supplier i.e. Sambhar Salt Limited without having physical | maintained at Corporate office.
delivery of goods at Ramnagar. The unit at year end has
declared closing stock of Rs. 70,11,200. The disclosure of fact | Hence, para may please be
that such physical stock is lying elsewhere along with its | dropped.
confirmation has not been stated in the financial statements.

7) It has been observed that large balances in following cases | The amount of Rs.1,98,88,958/-
are being brought forwarded from earlier years by holding | with GTCL is sub judice with the
company. It is suggested that the matter may be finalized and | MSME court, Ahmedabad and
necessary adjustments be made in this regard at the earliest :- | we are perusing for finalizing the

matter. As and when it will be
S. Accoun | Particulars Amount in Rs. finalized, necessary adjustment
No | t Head will be made. The amount of
1 Note- Amount outstanding | 1,98,88,958 R.s.10,2.6,28,293.41 N relgted
12 from M/s Guijrat Tech with adjustmenF of loan waived
Long Cell Pvt. Ltd depicted by Govt. of India and necessary
term under sub head adjustment whatsoever in nature
Loans & | “Other  loans & will be made in current financial
Advanc | advances” year. A copy of the ledger
5 gsa R R — statement as Annexure-B is
i u i
Regerve depicted from Ias% 10,26,28,293.41 ::::Etri]ggs inftc:e ngz: further
many years. Nature '
& details not made
available Hence, para may please be
dropped.
8) As reported earlier, the work of production of Magnesium | A meeting was held on

Chloride was leased out by the company to M/s Mayur Stone.
This entity had discontinued the operations in F.Y. 2018-19 but
the lease agreement was not cancelled nor was any handing
over / taking over of the plant at that time was carried out. At
the time of discontinuation of the operation and as on
beginning of the year certain debit and credit balances were
appearing in account of Mayur Stone in books of accounts of
the company. The details of same are enumerated hereunder :

I.  Amount receivable from Mayur Stone  Rs. 2527262
Il. Amount due to Mayur stone

a) Amount payable Rs. 1203900

b) Security deposit Rs. 600000

c) Earnest money deposit Rs. 200000 Rs. 2003900
Ill. Net amount receivable from Mayur Stone Rs. 523362

Accordingly, as at beginning of the year, the company was
entitled to receive a sum of Rs. 523362/- from Mayur Stone.

During the year, as per copy of note sheet, a sum of Rs.
9,90,000/- has been written off as receivable from the
company on account of value of stock of wood belonging to
Mayur Stone and lying at site of the company. However no
documentary evidence in this regard were provided to us.
Apart from it, a further sum of Rs. 3,67,962/- was also written

23.11.2020 between HSL and
Mayur stone representatives for
amicably solution of the matter
and unanimously decided for
providing the opportunity again
to run the plant by M/s Mayur
Stone. The minutes of meeting
was put up to the competent
authority which was approved by
him. But before handover the
Plant to Mayur Stones, company
appointed the M/s JOPL for run
the whole Bromine Plant
(Including MGCL) so company
was not in position to handover
the plant to Mayur Stones.

As per the minutes of the
meeting, all the necessary
entries have been passed in
books of account. As mentioned
in Notes of accounts.

Apart from it, a further sum of
Rs.3,67,962/- was also written
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off as receivable for which no approval is available on record.
This sum of Rs.3,67,962/- has been adjusted against amount
of SD & EMD of Rs. 800000/- depicted in books of account of
the company leaving a sum of Rs. 432038/- as payable to
Mayur Stone. The write offs have not been approved by the
board and no approval for refund of SD & EMD is also
available on record.

The net result of all these adjustment is that a sum of Rs.
4,32,038/- is now payable to Mayur Stone against a sum of Rs.
5,23,362/- receivable from it when this entity discontinued its
lease arrangement with the Company.

off as receivable for which no
approval is available on the
records. We would like to inform
that no such amount has been
written off. It is recoverable
amount from M/s Mayur stone
and adjusted from his security

deposit which was Rs.8.00
lakhs, hence an amount of
Rs.4,32,038/- (Rs.8,00,000-

Rs.3,67,962) is only payable to
M/s. Mayur Stones.

Hence, para may please be
dropped.

9)

As pointed out in the previous year’s supplementary audit, the
company has not disclosed the cost formulae used for
valuation of inventory / salt in progress and accordingly AS-2
for Valuation of Inventory issued by ICAI has not been properly
complied with.

After observations of AG Paras,
company disclosed the cost
formulae as cost means DIRECT
COST.

Hence, para may please be
dropped.

10)

The company has not bifurcated trade receivables into long
term and short term as required by the Revised Schedule -lll
of the Companies Act, 2013. The company has depicted under
Note 16, total trade receivables of Rs. 22 lacs as on 31.3.2022
(Previous year Rs. 23.23 lacs). However, there are debtors of
Rs. 21.71 lacs as on 31.3.2022 (Previous year Rs. 21.73 lacs)
which are outstanding for a period of more than 12 months and
should be shown separately under the Note 14 “Other Non-
current assets”.

Noted for compliance.

11)

The company has not bifurcated trade payables into long term
and short term as required by the Revised Schedule-Ill of The
Companies Act, 2013. The company has depicted under Note
8, total trade payables of Rs.194.81 lacs as on 31.3.2022
(Previous year Rs.109.98 lacs. However, there are trade
payables of Rs. 93.51 lacs as on 31.3.2022 (Previous year
Rs.107.28 lacs) which are outstanding for a period of more
than 12 months and should be shown separately under Note 5
“Other Long term liabilities”.

Noted for compliance.

12)

The numerator and denominator used for computation of
various accounting ratios have not been explained as required
by the Revised Schedule Il of The Companies Act, 2013.

Noted for compliance.

13)

The bifurcation of loan given to subsidiary company into long
term and short term has not been done while preparing
financial statements in absence of relevant information the
same cannot be quantified.

Noted for compliance.

14)

As per the practice followed by the company, the head office
on behalf of its units make payments to different vendors and
also receives payment from various parties. The units make
adjustment entries in this regard in accounts of the parties as
and when the relevant intimation is received from head office.
It is observed that the date of actual receipts and payments
are not available with the units and thus period wise
outstanding of such parties cannot be evaluated properly from
the books of accounts of the units. Therefore, we are unable to
comment on the ageing schedule of debtors and creditors as
depicted in the financial statements.

Noted for compliance.
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Emphisis of Matter

We draw attention to Para 1.10 (ii) of Note No.1 and Note No.6
to the financial statement regarding Retirement Benefits
(Gratuity), which states that liability for gratuity was depicted
as on 31.03.2022 for "114.38 lakh in the books, but no
investment was made as required under AS-15.

Company has already taken the
action to invest the outstanding
demand against gratuity in
phased manner after reviewing
the financial position of the
company however efforts will be
made to invest the same amount
prior to 31% March, 2023.

Attention is also invited to Note no. 30 “Contingent Liabilities
and Capital Commitments to the extent not provided for”,
wherein liabilities for substantial amount which may materially
affect the financial statements of the company, on various
accounts have not been provided for.

The liabilites shown in Note
No.27 are of contingent nature
and not payable in view of
pending court cases and position
explained of each item at Note
27.

We draw attention to the Note No. 12 “Non-Current
Investments” wherein no provision for loss has been made in
respect of the investment of Rs.60.00 lacs made in subsidiary
company, Sambhar Salts Ltd. in the books of accounts in view
of much higher net worth of the subsidiary company calculated
on the basis of the market value of fixed assets which was last
assessed by the Certified Assets Value in the year 2001.

The market value of fixed assets
of subsidiary company was
assessed in 2013 by the protocol
valuer for Rs.264.43 crore
excluding value of lease land
hence provision for loss in
investment in subsidiary
company is not required
however company is already in
process for valuation of fixed
assets at Sambhar.

er 2016 under Annexure-B.

Reply to observation made under Companies (Auditor’s Report) Ord

(&) (A) According to information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not maintained reasonable records
showing particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

Fixed assets register will be
completed after completion of
physical verification work in
current financial year

(B) According to information and explanations given to us, the
company has not maintained proper records of intangible
assets.

The company will be prepared
proper record in current financial
year

(b) As explained to us, the company has no written policy and
procedures for physical verification of the fixed assets at
reasonable intervals. Fixed assets have not been physically
verified by the management. No comment therefore can be
made on discrepancies, if any.

The work of physical verification
of Assetsand preparation of draft
policy for physical verifivaiton of
assets , stote etc was awarded
to the CA firm in 2019-20 and
they were submitted draft report
in 20-21 the  necessary
adjustment if any will be carried
out in current financial year

(c) According to the information and explanations given to
us and as per records examined by us, we found
following discrepancies in title deeds of immovable
properties. The details of such discrepancies are as
under:-

1. Freehold property at Kharagodha Village, District-
Surendar Nagar, (Gujarat) Area 23596 Acres — "24.54
lakh. However, as per records of fixed assets maintained
at the unit the total land area is 23449 acres. The details
of land holding as provided to us is as under:-

Particulars Area

Run side land 22768 Acres
Village land 326 Acres
Miscellaneous land 25 Acres
Land acquired back by Govt. 330 Acres
Total 23449 acres

1© 1 & 2 Land measuring 23596
Acres at Kharaghoda Gujarat
belongs to company as the cost
of land was paid to Govt of India
by issuing the shaes at the time
of formation of company
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2. Title documents in relation to Run side Land which is
under salt manufacturing area were not provided to us. It
has also been explained that the state Govt. of Gujarat
has disputed the above land as lease hold in place of free
hold land and claim of ° 272.80 lacs on account of
agriculture and non-agriculture assessment has been
raised. The matter is presently sub-judice.

3. Title documents in form of copy of 7/12 for land measuring
about 132 acres are available on record. The name of
owner of property is mentioned as “Hindustan Salt Woks,
Kharagodha” instead of “Hindustan Salts Limited”

The action for correction the
name of property will be taken
with revenue department of Govt
of Gujarat

4. Title documents in respect of freehold property at Mohal
Khaliyar, Mandi having area of 702.25 sq. mtr. Rs *~ 37.92
Lakh were not made available.

5. Leasehold Property at Maigal Salt Works, Gum Mines,
Drang Mines, Himachal Pradesh having area 133.116
Acres. A photo copy of lease deed executed on
31.08.2007 in the name of Hindustan Salts Limited is
available and no other document was provided by the
company to verify the title in the name of the Company.
Out of above, title documents in respect of land
measuring 74 acres at Gum, were not available on
records.

1 © 4 &5 Further the action for
correction in revenue record of
Govt of Himachal Pradesh has
already been taken up and is
under process for land at Mandi
unit The land is on 20 years
lease till 30 April 2023 the land is
in the name of Salt
Commissioner

iX. (@) In our opinion and according to the information and | Repayment of Govt. loan and
explanations given to us, the company has not defaulted in | interest due to accumulated
repayment of dues to any financial institution or bank except | |osses company is not able to
default in repayment of loan to Government of India of
"3936.55 (including interest of "2695.26 lakh.) No repayment of pay the due amount of foan aqd
loan and interest to Government of India has been made by | interest to DHI Govt. of India
the Company. Details of these overdue amounts are as under | However now company has
- taken various steps for enhance

Natur | Name Amount Whethe No. of Rem || the company performance and
e of of not paid r days arks || there after company would be
bprro Lende on due princip delay.or able to pay the outstanding loan
wings r date . al or unpaid & interest in a phased manner
interest
Unsec | Govt. | 12,41,29,00 | Principal | Different
ured of 0 dates
Loan | India, since the
Ministr loan is
y of given on
Heavy different
Industr dates
y
Unsec | Govt. | 26,95,26,20 | Interest | Different
ured of 1 dates of
Loan India, repayment
Ministr S
y of
Heavy
Industr
y
Reply to Qualified opinion made under internal Financial Controls under Annexure C
a) | The company has no proper policies and procedures for | The work of physical verification

periodical physical verification of fixed assets and
inventories of the company. During the year under
consideration no physical verification of fixed assets has
been conducted by the company. The company’s internal
control over existence, completeness, valuation & allocation of
fixed assets is not operating effectively. As reported to us,
physical verification of inventory was not conducted at any unit

of Assets and preparation of
draft policy for physical
verification of assets store etc
was awarded to the CA Firm in
2019-20 and they were
submitted fraft report in 20-21

The necessary adjustment if any
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22.2.2

but however, the management has written off inventory at its
Kharagodha Unit.

will be carried out in current F Y

However company will finalize
the policy of physical verification
conducted by committee of
officers at regular interval in
current financial year

b) | The internal audit of the Company is being carried by the | Chartered Accountants Firma
independent firm of Chartered Accountants and looking to the | has already been appointed as a
size, nature and volume of transactions, the same needs to be | Internal Auditor and being asked
strengthened. to do the work of internal audit

as per the size nature and
volume of transaction of the
company

c) | The company lacks a periodic system of preparing bank | Noted for compliance however

reconciliation and obtaining third party balance confirmations
for various advances & liabilities and accordingly does not
reconcile the periodic balances with the confirmations, which
could potentially result is material misstatement of the
Standalone Financial Statements.

Company has issued written
letters to the concern parties but
company till date has not
received confirmation letter as
reply from the parties.

The Statutory Auditors has given a qualified report on Consolidated Financial Statement of the company and
its subsidiary company, Sambhar Salts Limited for the financial year 2021-22, has drawn attention under
“Emphasis Matter” and qualified opinion on Internal Financial Controls. The reply to Qualified Opinion on
Consolidated financial statement is as under:

S. Audit Observations Management Reply

No.

1) | It has been observed that D-1 Mine Project at Mandi | Presently D-1 mine of Mandi unit is
Unit was not operational during the year and no | operational during the year, we are
extraction of salt is being carried out from this mine. | working on D-2 Mines so we stopped
The company is doing limited extraction from a | the production from D-1 Mine.
separate D-2 Mine. The operational utility and
commercial viability of this mine shall be ascertained | Further, the production of rock salt is a
and necessary adjustment in this regard may be made | seasonable business depending on
at the earliest. It has also been observed that at Mandi | weather condition and demand we start
unit of holding company particulars of assets relating to | the production of rock salt as per the
addition during the years only are available and not for | requirement.
the brought forward balances of assets. Therefore, the
depreciation as per Schedule Il of the Companies Act | On the above, we are taking
2013 has not been properly charged. In absence of | depreciation during the year.
relevant details, the same cannot be quantified.

In future, if D-1 Mine becomes non-
operational then we may close the D-1
Mine and adjustment in the books will
be done accordingly

Hence, para may please be dropped.

2) | The provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility | It is correct that our net profit in the
(CSR) are applicable to the Holding Company for the | books for the immediate preceding
financial year 2021-22 as the Net profit for the | previous year was Rs.5.80 crores but
immediate preceding previous year was more than Rs. | after CAG Audit, CAG understated net
5 Crore. The holding company has neither incurred any | profit by Rs.0.81 Crores hence our net
expenditure on this account nor due provision has been | profit came down to Rs.4.99 crores
made for CSR liability. The expenditure are understated | which is less than 5.00 Crores which
by Rs. 3.47 Lacs and profit overstated by Rs. 3.47 Lacs | does not qualify for the CSR Provision.
on this account. Being, a PSUs we are sending our all

the financial statements to the Ministry
and other departments for record and
MoU assessment is done only after
getting finalized report from CAG.
Hence, para may please be dropped.
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3)

The holding company has received rent from letting out
of part of its office premises to M/s Instrumentation
Limited for which no formal agreement is available on
records for period till January, 2022. It has been
observed that such rental income is not accounted for
on regular basis and therefore, GST payable on this
income is also delayed on this account.

Previously the office premise was
rented out to M/s Instrumentation
Limited on the recommendation of the
Ministry of Heavy Industry hence no
formal agreement was made as both
are the PSUs. In current financial year
Rent agreement has been executed in
the month of January-2022. Before
Aug-2021, we charged according to the
bill, that we generated and after,
August-2021, we are charging rent on
month wise and accordingly month wise
GST is being paid. The payment of
GST payable on rent income is
deposited by the company as per
Annexure-C.

Hence, para may please be dropped.

4)

The holding company has given loan to its subsidiary
company in previous years out of the funds received as
loan from Gouvt. of India, Ministry of Industry. Company
is required to pay interest as well as penal interest on
the outstanding amount of loan received from Govt. of
India. During the year, the holding company has
passed a board resolution stating that since the Govt.
of India is not charging any penal interest, the holding
company will also not charge any penal interest on loan
given to its subsidiary company. The rate of interest on
loan to subsidiary was also fixed at 12% per annum
only. However, the loan received by the company from
Govt. of India is at different rates of interest ranging
from 11.50% to 15.50% and penal interest is from
14.00% to 18.25%. As per the records, the Govt. of
India during the year has charged penal interest from
the company on such loan. The reduction on rate of
interest and not charging penal interest from subsidiary
company is therefore against the facts of the matter. In
absence of relevant details amount cannot be
quantified.

Government of India given loan amount
of Rs.12.41 Crores to Hindustan Salts
Ltd., and further HSL gave loan amount
of Rs.35.77 Crores to the subsidiary
company Sambhar Salts Ltd. So the
complete loan amount is not related to
GOI. Presently, the rate of interest
existing in the market is very less hence
we charged a fixed rate of interest
@12% from Sambhar Salts Limited.

As Govt. of India is charging Penal
Interest on the loan amount but due to
typing mistake, the matter was
submitted to the Board that no Penal
Interest was charged from Sambhar
Salts Limited which was amended in
next Board meeting.

Hence, para may please be dropped.

5)

The holding company has provided security deposit
and performance security to relevant courts/ authorities
of Rs. 45.05 Lacs and Rs. 19.35 Lacs respectively in
form of Fixed Deposits Receipts. The accrued interest
on such deposits has been included in such Security
deposit and performance security in place of being
shown as accrued interest on FDR. Security deposit
and performance security are overstated by Rs.
2,06,763 and Rs. 7,17,021 respectively and accrued
interest on FDR’s is understated by Rs. 9,23,784.

The security deposit of Rs.45.05 Lacs
was placed in the courts in the matter of
Gyan Vashisht and it is not confirmed
that when it will be released so the
interest amount to be received is to be
added on the security deposit.

The performance security of Rs.19.35
lacs was placed for 50 years in the
matter of Mandi Mines at Mandi which
will be renewed after every five years
and interest to be earned shall be
added in the principle amount as it will
be released after 50 years so the
interest amount is counted in Security
deposit.

However, the accounting will be done
as recommended from FY 2022-23
onwards,

Hence, para may please be dropped.
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6)

The holding company has carried out trading activities
at Ramnagar Unit but no stock register was maintained
for it. The modus for such activity was ‘Bill to Company’
and ‘ship to customer’ by the supplier i.e. Sambhar Salt
Limited without having physical delivery of goods at
Ramnagar. The unit at year end has declared closing
stock of Rs. 70,11,200. The disclosure of fact that such
physical stock is lying elsewhere along with its
confirmation has not been stated in the financial
statements.

According to the observation, a stock
register for such activities at Ramnagar
depot is being maintained at Corporate
office.

Hence, para may please be dropped.

7) It has been observed that large balances in following | The amount of Rs.1,98,88,958/- with
cases are being brought forwarded from earlier years | GTCL is sub judice with the MSME
by holding company. It is suggested that the matter | cOUrt, Ahmedabad and we are perusing
may be finalized and necessary adjustments be made fo.r flnah;lng. the matter. As anq when it
L . will be finalized, necessary adjustment
in this regard at the earliest :- will be made. The amount of

i i Rs.10,26,28,293.41 is related with
E'O ﬁggg“”t Particulars AmountinRs. | adjustment of loan waived by Govt. of
: India  and necessary adjustment
1 Note- 12 Amount 1.98,88.958 whatsoever in nature will be made in
Loans & | M/s Gujrat Tech ledger statement as Annexure-B is
Advances | Cell Pvt. Ltd attached for your further directions in
depicted under sub the matter.
head “Other loans
& advances’ Hence, para may please be dropped.
2 Capital Amount being
Reserve depicted from last | 10,26,28,293.41
many years.
Nature & details
not made available
8) | As reported earlier, the work of production of | A meeting was held on 23.11.2020

Magnesium Chloride was leased out by the holding
company to M/s Mayur Stone. This entity had
discontinued the operations in F.Y. 2018-19 but the
lease agreement was not cancelled nor was any
handing over / taking over of the plant at that time was
carried out. At the time of discontinuation of the
operation and as on beginning of the year certain debit
and credit balances were appearing in account of
Mayur Stone in books of accounts of the holding
company. The details of same are enumerated
hereunder :

I.  Amount receivable from Mayur Stone Rs. 2527262
Il.  Amount due to Mayur stone
a) Amount payable Rs. 1203900
b) Security deposit Rs. 600000
c) Earnest money deposit Rs. 200000 Rs. 2003900
Ill. Net amount receivable from Mayur Stone Rs.
523362

Accordingly, as at beginning of the year, the company
was entitled to receive a sum of Rs. 523362/- from
Mayur Stone.

During the year, as per copy of note sheet, a sum of
Rs. 9,90,000/- has been written off as receivable from
the company on account of value of stock of wood
belonging to Mayur Stone and lying at site of the
company. However no documentary evidence in this
regard were provided to us. Apart from it, a further sum
of Rs. 3,67,962/- was also written off as receivable for
which no approval is available on record. This sum of

between HSL and Mayur stone
representatives for amicably solution of
the matter and unanimously decided for
providing the opportunity again to run
the plant by M/s Mayur Stone. The
minutes of meeting was put up to the
competent  authority  which  was
approved by him. But before handover
the Plant to Mayur Stones, company
appointed the M/s JOPL for run the
whole Bromine Plant (Including MGCL)
SO company was not in position to
handover the plant to Mayur Stones.

As per the minutes of the meeting, all
the necessary entries have been
passed in books of account. As
mentioned in Notes of accounts.

Apart from it, a further sum of
Rs.3,67,962/- was also written off as
receivable for which no approval is
available on the records. We would like
to inform that no such amount has been
written off. It is recoverable amount
from M/s Mayur stone and adjusted
from his security deposit which was
Rs.8.00 lakhs, hence an amount of
Rs.4,32,038/- (Rs.8,00,000-
Rs.3,67,962) is only payable to M/s.
Mayur Stones.

Hence, para may please be dropped.
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Rs.3,67,962/- has been adjusted against amount of SD
& EMD of Rs. 800000/- depicted in books of account of
the company leaving a sum of Rs. 432038/- as payable
to Mayur Stone. The write offs have not been approved
by the board and no approval for refund of SD & EMD
is also available on record.

The net result of all these adjustment is that a sum of
Rs. 4,32,038/- is now payable to Mayur Stone against a
sum of Rs. 5,23,362/- receivable from it when this entity
discontinued its lease arrangement with the Company.

9)

As pointed out in the previous year’'s supplementary
audit :

a) The company has not disclosed the cost formulae
used for valuation of inventory / salt in progress and
accordingly AS-2 for Valuation of Inventories issued
by ICAI has not been properly complied with.

b) The company has not made proper disclosure of
additional information regarding minority interest in
subsidiary, net assets and share in profit etc.
pursuant to requirements of Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013

After observations of AG Paras,

company disclosed the cost formulae as

cost means DIRECT COST.

Hence, para may please be dropped.

10)

The company has not bifurcated trade receivables into
long term and short term as required by the Revised
Schedule -Ill of the Companies Act, 2013. The
company has depicted under Note 15, total trade
receivables of Rs.67.81 lacs as on 31.3.2022 (Previous
year Rs. 53.54 lacs). However, there are debtors of Rs.
32.72 lacs as on 31.3.2022 (Previous year Rs. 34.69
lacs) which are outstanding for a period of more than
12 months and should be shown separately under the
Note 13 “Other Non current assets”.

Noted for compliance.

11)

The company has not bifurcated trade payables into
long term and short term as required by the Revised
Schedule-lll of The Companies Act, 2013. The
company has depicted under Note 8, total trade
payables of Rs. 848.27 lacs as on 31.3.2022 (Previous
year Rs.549.32 lacs.) However, there are trade
payables of Rs. 359.08 lacs as on 31.3.2022 (Previous
year Rs.350.74 lacs) which are outstanding for a period
of more than 12 months and should be shown
separately under Note 5 “Other Long term liabilities”.

Noted for compliance.

12)

The numerator and denominator used for computation
of various accounting ratios have not been explained as
required by the Revised Schedule Ill of The Companies
Act, 2013.

Noted for compliance.

13)

As per the practice followed by the holding company,
the head office on behalf of its units make payments to
different vendors and also receives payment from
various parties. The units make adjustment entries in
this regard in accounts of the parties as and when the
relevant intimation is received from head office of
holding company. It is observed that the date of actual
receipts and payments are not available with the units
and thus period wise outstanding of such parties cannot
be evaluated properly from the books of accounts of the
units. Therefore, we are unable to comment on the

Noted for compliance.
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ageing schedule of debtors and creditors as depicted in
the financial statements of holding company.

14 | We have observed in following cases of notes to the | Noted for compliance.
financial statements that details stated in the
consolidated financial statements to not match with
individual standalone financial statements of the group
companies:

S| As per | Particulars Amount | As per

No.| F.S. of | of head Consolidated
Subsidiary F.S.

Company

1| Note 10 | Amount 11.00 Shown under
“Non- depicted Lacs Note 15 “Trade
current under Long | (P.Y. Receivables”
assets” term Trade | 12.96

receivables Lacs)

2 | Note 15 | Amount 141.10 Shown under
“Other depicted Lacs head Others in
Current under P.Y. Note 17 “Short
assets” recoverable 306.87 term Loans &

in cash or | Lacs) Advances”
kind

3 | Note 15 | Amount 9.58 Shown under
“Other depicted Lacs Note 17 “Short
Current under (P.Y. term Loans &
assets” Income Tax | 11.69 Advances”

Deducted at | Lacs)
source

4 | Note 15 | Amount 3.68 Shown under
“Other depicted Lacs head Prepaid
Current under (P.Y. expenses in
assets” recoverable 9.85 Note 19 “Other

in cash or | Lacs) Current
kind Assets”

15) | All the notes mentioned in standalone financial | Noted for compliance.
statements of holding and subsidiary company have not
been fully incorporated line by line while preparing
consolidated financial statements.

16) | The Statutory auditors of subsidiary company Sambhar

Salts Limited have also issued qualified opinion in their
audit report over the financial statements, as under:-

Secured Long Term Trade Receivables Rs. 11.00
Lakhs (Note No. 13: Non-Current Assets) and Trade
Receivables of Rs. 34.81 Lakhs (Note No. 15)
Company has not followed any procedure to obtain
confirmation for their balances featured for the FY
2021-22 as there is no system of seeking confirmation
from such parties.

Therefore, we are unable to comment on the
realizability of such advances/dues, due to uncertainty
involved.

Concerned department has been

intimated for balance confirmation

Trade Payables of Rs. 653.46 Lakhs (Note No. 8)

We draw kind attention to Note No. 8 of Financial
Statements, where Rs. 245.26 Lakhs of Trade
Payables are outstanding for more than 3 years.

Company has not followed any procedure to obtain
confirmation of their outstanding balances featured for
the FY 2021-22 as there is no system of seeking
confirmation from such parties.

Therefore, we are unable to comment on the liability of
such dues, due to uncertainty involved.

Concerned parties has been intimated
in this regards although, we have
received balance confirmation from
some parties.

22




Project Expenses (Including Solar Project) Rs.
80.84 Lakhs (Note No. 14: Non-Current Assets)

We draw kind attention to Project Expenses (including
Solar Project) under Note No. 14 of Rs. 80.84 Lakhs
which is pending for more than 3 years. The same
amount should either be written off or to be capitalized.
Due to non-receipt of proper clarification from the
management of the company, we are unable to
comment on same.

Matter appraised to the Board and
Board authorized to the CMD for either
capitalized or write off the Project
Expenses. Hence these expenses will
be finalized in current financial year.

Liability of GST on Penalty & Forfeiture of Security
Deposit (Note No. 21)

We draw kind attention to Note No. 21 Other Income
which Rs. 14.88 Lakhs on account of Penalty and
Forfeiture of Security Deposit. The company had not
charged and collected GST @18% amounting to Rs.
2.6784 Lakhs from the vendors.

Due to non-collection of GST, Profit before Tax is
overstated by Rs. 2.6784 Lakhs and Liability is
understated by Rs. 2.6784 Lakhs. It is to be noted that
the above amount does not include liability of interest
and penalty on GST not collected and paid to the
government. The same may be calculated at the time of
collection and payment and accordingly the liability may
increase by same amount.

Matter has been put up to the GST
Consultant and as per their direction
action is taking accordingly.

Contingent Liabilities (Note No. 29)

We draw kind attention to Note No. 29 of Financial
Statements. The company had not disclosed the impact
of pending litigations on financial statements.

Due to absence of information and uncertainty involved,
we are unable to comment on same.

As matter of pending litigations on
financial statement is not finalized
hence company had not disclosed the
impact of pending litigations on financial
statements.

VI.

Deficiency in allotment of Work Order for Operation
and Maintenance of Nawa Salt Refinery to M/s MFB
Geotech Pvt Ltd. Work Order dated 01/12/2021

Brief Facts and Information of the above Works

a. Company has entered into a MOU with RSFCSC,
Jaipur for supply of “Raj Salt” Refined lodized Free
Flow Salt @Rs. 7850 per MT FOR
destination/godowns of RSFCSC in whole
Rajasthan. Separate purchase order for quantity will
be issued by the RSFCSC, no minimum quantity of
supply is prescribed under MOU.

Supply of packing material,
transportation and unloading of RAJ
Salt at various destination in Rajasthan
tender floated on 12.10.21 and opened
on 21.10.21 through RA Ordered issued
to M/s B M Cattlefeed & Agro Products
Jaipur-(Raj) on 04.12.2022. Total 26851
MT to be delivered to RSFCSC i.e RAJ
SALT through M/s BM Cattlefeed &
Agro as distributor within one year.

b. RSFCSC issued PO for supply of 171.350 MT
amounting to Rs. 15,42,150/- for supply of salt at
various locations of Nagaur District which is to be
supplied within 30 days from confirmation of order.
Other than this PO, 8 PO was also issued by
RSFCSC for supply of salt amounting to Rs.
28,125/-. Total salt supplied to RSFCSC during the
FY 2021-22 was Rs. 13,45,098.

Yes it is correct

c. On the basis of PO received from RSFCSC, a
proposal for engagement of agency for processing
and manufacturing of salt at Nawa Salt Factory was
prepared on 24/11/2021 by Purchase Committee of
SSL, Sambhar.

Yes it is correct
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d. On the basis of proposal prepared by Sambhar unit,
same was approved on 25/11/2021 by HTC at
Head Office, Jaipur for selection of agency as per
point a) of point i) of Point 3.5.7 Single Tender
Enquiry (STE) or Selection by Nomination of
Manual for Procurement of Works 2019.

Yes it is correct.

e. Technical and Financial Proposals from 4 parties
were received on 26/11/2021 and the same was
evaluated by Purchase Committee Sambhar unit,
approved by HTC, Head Office on “26/11/2021”
itself only.

Whenever estimation cost to be
analysed it is imperative to get
guotation at least three doing survey to
finalised the L1 Rate hence this is not to
be consider as tender it is only
surveyed result to get the Estimated
market price. Here it may a kind of
imbroglio in fact it is a single tender

enquiry.

f. As per evaluation of HTC, lowest rate of MFB
Geotech Pvt Ltd. was found @Rs. 702 per MT in
case of Industrial Salt and @Rs. 802 per MT for
iodized salt excluding GST @18%.

Yes it is correct.

g. Work order was issued on 01/12/2021 or
22/01/2022 in favor of M/s MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd.

Yes correct, work order prepared on
dated 01.12.2021 and same was
despatched to party on dated
22.01.2022.

h. Condition to supply the spare parts by SSL vide
work order dated 01/12/2021 was modified to spare
parts may be purchased by M/s MFB Geotech Pvt
Ltd. and same will be reimbursed by SSL vide letter
dated 12/02/2022. Reason for
relaxation/modification of condition was not clear.

Yes it is correct but with certain
terms and conditions.

i. Extension of 3 months was granted by SSL for
Operation and Maintenance of NSR vide letter
dated 05/03/2022 to M/s MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd
without any sufficient orders.

On the basis of satisfactory
performance, company extend the
contract for 3 months as per terms
and condition mentioned in the
issued work order.

j-In addition to Work Order dated 01/12/2021 and
extension dated 05/03/2022 additional amount of
Rs. 100 per MT or Rs. 90 per MT will be paid to
M/s MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd. for Loading vide letter
dated 25/03/2022 issued by SSL.

Yes correct even though company
was paying max.Rs.802/-+Rs.100/-
as loading is cheaper than the
departmental operation and
maintenance of the refinery by the
company itself

Detailed observations in reference to above tender on

the basis of documents provided are as

under:

a. Copy of NIT issued by the company is not made
available. Even no details of NIT were available on
website of the company.

b. Copy of email from SSL unit to HTC Head Office
Jaipur regarding forwarding of Note Sheet dated
24/11/2021 was not available.

c. Copy of email from HTC, Head Office Jaipur to
Sambhar unit for forwarding of approval of tender
was not available.

d. Copy of email from SSL Sambhar unit for
forwarding of comparative chart of BOQ to HTC
Head Office Jaipur was not available.

e. Copy of email from HTC Head Office Jaipur to SSL
Sambhar unit for forwarding of approval to issue
LOl/Award of Contract was not available.

Obviously must not be available on
the site because NIT not published
online due to the Single tender
Enquiry.

Due to urgency draft prepared by HO and
same was sent to unit for review. Unit
reviewed the note and modified the same
and submitted its recommendations.

It is available as original Note-Sheet
copy as HTC Approval in the concern
file Note-sheet No.3.

It is available in the concern file
Note-sheet No.2 duly sighed by UTC
and the then erstwhile G.M-(W)
Dated:26.11.2021

It is directly approved by C&MD in
the file page no.7
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. Financial

No envelopes or copy of emails were available on
files. It is not clear that how the financial bids were
taken by the management.

Documents related to technical specifications of
bidder was not available on record.

Even KYC documents from the bidders were not
taken by the company.

Vendor/Contractor registration form to be submitted
duly filed along with all the documents as required
were not available on record.

In absence of technical documents, it is not clear,
how the bidders were technically qualified for O&M
of NSR.

As per note sheet dated 26/11/2021, market survey
was undertaken by the Purchase Committee,
however, no such market survey report was
available on record.

Comparative chart of monthly production by existing
system, monthly sales, stock in hand and profit on
sale of manufactured goods was attached with the
proposal sheet dated 24/11/2021, even the same
was not asked by HTC Head Office Jaipur.
Company was generating loss from sale of products
by NSR.

Bids were received from 4 different
parties, the same tender cannot be covered Clause
3.5.7 (i)(@) of Manual for Procurement of Works
2019. Clause 3.5.7 is applicable only in case of
Single Tender Enquiry.

No specific reasons are placed on record for
issuance of work order of Rs. 1,14,30,000 excluding
tax by opting STE clause 3.5.7 for supply of goods
of 171.350 MT amounting to Rs. 15,42,150/-, while
the company was already selling the goods more
than 500 MT monthly (Specially from NSR Unit in
the month of April 2021, June 2021, Sept 2021, Oct
2021 company was selling the goods more than
1000 MT) and most of the existing sales from NSR
unit were generating loss.

Before issuing the extension order vide letter dated
05/03/2022, no comparison chart was placed in
record showing the actual difference in earlier
system and new system because no major order
from RSFCSC was received by the company after
18/11/2021 as total sales to RSFCSC during the

All the four quotations to finalised
the L1 RATE as estimation of the
NSR work is available as page
number 1 to 4 duly signed as
checked by the Unit committee.

The L1 Quoted Rate itself is the
specification as attached in the file
page number 4 (Mentioned the full
specifications)

Because it was a single tender
enquiry whenever finalised before
issued the work order as mentioned
the GST in the work order.

There is no such practise since long
prevailing in the company to
registered the vendor.

It is being finalised whatever the
requirement sought by the company
guotation received based on that
NSR Operation as mentioned in the
L1 Quotation.

The report based on the survey is
physically available in the file as
Note-sheet page no.2.

Production could only be forecast
after the Work order issued because
running of the plant based on the
machinery, Cost mentioned and the
production 200/-M.T per day as
elaborated in the Notesheet number
4 attached in the file.

As explained earlier the four
qguotations received only objective is
to Estimate the cost as L1 rate it was
never ever the financial Bid it was
Single tender Enquiry.

500 M.T company is selling the
Industrial refined salt not the packet
salt it was for supply of Packet salt.

Despite extending the tender Even

though company was paying
max.Rs.802/-+Rs.100/- as loading is
cheaper than the departmental

operation and maintenance cost of
the refinery by the company itself
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year was of only Rs 13,45,098 against the total
orders of Rs. 15,70,275/- (15,42,150 + 28,125) and
main reason to change the current system was
urgent supply to RSFCSC.

p. As per rectified order dated 25/03/2022, additional
payment of Rs. 100/90 per MT for loading of salt
was approved retrospectively from 01/12/2021 on
the basis of conversation held between MD of MFB
Geotech Pvt Ltd and Competent Authority of SSL.
Copy of letter regarding intimation from MFB
Geotech before loading of salt and approval from
SSL was not available on record. Even request
letter for modification of terms and conditions of
original work order was not available on record.

On the basis of above facts/documents available on
record and observations of such documents, prime
facie it seems that the Tender for O&M of Nawa Salt
Refinery was allotted to M/s MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd. by
the management of the company to give the unusual
benefit to a particular vendor by avoiding all the rules
and regulations prescribed under Manual for
Procurement of Works 2019.

Due to various uncertainty involved, consequential
impact of the same on Financial Statements is not
unascertainable.

which can be considered as feasible.

Extended Work order
dated:25.03.2022 after amendment
mentioned loading charges Rs.100 &
Rs.90 Per M. T as
suggested/instructed by the
erstwhile G.M-(W) Shri Santosh
kumar as approval to amend the
work order mentioning Loading
charge as mentioned above on the
Note-sheet n0.10 on 24.03.2022 in the
concern file NO. 39.

VII.

Deficiency in process of various works allotted,
payments made/goods supplied to M/s Manglam
Engineering Equipment’s during the FY 2021-22 by
overriding rules and regulations.

Brief Facts and Information 2 work order allotted to
the above vendor

. Work for Installation of New Static Fluid Bed Salt
Dryer

a. As per Work order No. 75 dated 16/04/2021
amounting to Rs. 39,30,500 plus 7,07,490
(GST) total amounting to Rs. 46,37,990/-., work
was allotted for supply of new static fluid bed
salt dryer. As per work order, payment terms
are as under:

i. 60% on receipt and acceptance of all requisite

materials at site.

ii. 25% after 3 months of smooth operation of the

equipment.

iii. Balance 15% after 12 months from the date of

payment of 25% amount as stated above.

iv. 10% Security Deposit

Details of Payments made are as under:

S. No. Date Amount in Rs.
1 14/07/2021 15,00,000/-
2 15/07/2021 8,00,000/-
3 16/07/2021 3,57,804/-

b. As per work order, maximum payment can be done
60% of Basic Value i.e., Rs. 23,58,300/- (60% of
39,30,500). Excess payment of Rs. 2,99,504/- was

Actual po terms was 60% of order
values i.e. Rs.46,37,990.
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made by the management of the company.

Rs. 6,61,500/- was adjusted towards Security
Deposit of work allotted for O&M of work at Gudha
Salt Refinery on dated 30/09/2021.

Up to 01/06/2022, dryer was not working properly
as per noting dated 01/06/2022 made on request
letter of M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s by
the company official.

The bidder has raised Invoice No. 8 dated
26/05/2021 of Rs. 39,30,500/- plus GST of Rs.
7,07,490/- total amounting to Rs. 46,37,990/-,
however, as per GSTR-3B of May 2021 submitted
by the bidder turnover is NIL. Further as per
database available on GST Website www.gst.gov.in
GST No. of the bidder (08FIQPP2989J175) was
cancelled on 02/12/2021 and the bidder was
continuously issuing the tax invoices up to March
2022. Also, the bidder has not submitted the GSTR-
1 from May 2021 to Dec 2021 and GSTR-3B from
June 2021 to Dec 2021.

. Work for Operation & Maintenance of Gudha Salt

Refinery

As per note sheet dated blank, signing date
01/07/2021, a proposal was prepared for
engagement of the contractor for O&M of work at
Gudha Salt Refinery. As per proposal prepared by
the purchase committee, due to low production of
iodized/non-iodized salt current production cost is
higher, hence the same work is proposed to be
given to the contractor. As per proposal note selling
price of refined salt was taken as Rs. 4500 per MT,
while as per available database from April 2021 to
June 2021 major goods were sold at Rs. 3300 per
MT. Cost of Raw Salt is taken at Rs. 800 per MT,
however, company is selling the same goods
(named as “Sambhar Kyar Salt”) at Rs. 4000 per
MT. The same fact was concealed by the
committee at the time of preparation of proposal.
During April 2021 to June 2021 total sales of Non-
lodized Refined Salt was only 463 MT and as per
available database closing stock as on 30/06/2021
was 1123.15 MT. As the selling price is same in
current and proposed system, it is not clear how the
sale of non-iodized salt manufactured by contractor
will be enhanced. As per proposed note, estimated
cost is taken Rs. 66.15 Lakhs including GST for 3
months.

Same proposal note was approved by the HTC
Head Office Jaipur on 01/07/2021 itself.

In response to online tender floated, total 4 bids
were submitted by the bidders. Out of 4 bids, 3
were found non-responsive by the Technical

Yes correct same amount has twice
deducted through JE No.171 dt
31.03.21 & JE no. 129 dt 30.09.21

There is no such letter found as
mentioned the date above that dryer
is not working properly in the Dryer
fileNo.06-e-tendering/Commercial/
2020-21/ as request letter by the
Awardee M/s Manglam Engineering
Equipment’'s by the Company
official.

Deposit of GST is not company’s
liability and it is party’s responsibility. If
party is defaulter for making the
payment of GST then they will be sole
responsible for the same.

In fact the sale was in
April,May,June-2021 was 551m.t
instead 463m.t as mentioned above
and the stock was 1290.781 m.t
instead as mentioned above 1123.15
m.t. Sambhar kyar salt is the
different product range as raw salt
most selling product of the sambhar
salts limited.The retail rate fixed on
the price list was rs.4,500/- m.t and
whatever mentioned above i.e
@Rs.3300/- it was discounted rate for
the bulk purchase.

Yes it was approved by the HTC and
finally by the competent authority.

Yes it was.
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Committee and only 1 bidder M/s Manglam
Engineering Equipment’s was found responsive as
per note sheet dated 03/08/2021. Work related to
O&M of GSR was allotted to M/s Manglam
Engineering Equipment's vide order dated
13/08/2021 amount to Rs. 66,15,000/- (inclusive of
GST), contract period was from 13/08/2021 to
12/11/2021 and contractor has to deposit 10% SD.

A request letter was submitted by M/s Manglam
Engineering Equipment’s on 14/08/2021 that, Price
submitted in BOQ was Rs. 1050 per MT (excluding
tax) and tax may be borne by the company and
bidder is not ready to do the work below Rs. 1050
per MT (Excluding Taxes), hence revised work
order may be issued.

As per note sheet dated 14/08/2021, on the request
of the bidder, purchase committee proposed to
revise the work issued by placing excluding GST in
place of including GST. On the same day i.e.,
14/08/2021, it is also approved by the HTC, Head
Office, Jaipur. Revised Work Order was issued on
26/08/2021. However, the plant was handed over to
the bidder on 18/08/2021 without receiving of SD of
Rs. 6,61,500/-.

On 6/10/2021, bidder had requested the
management to allow him to lift up the stock from
godown at market price of Rs. 3600 per MT. On the
same day as per note sheet dated 06/20/2021, it
was stated by committee at Sambhar that
approximately 1700 MT Salt of Sub-Standard
quality is lying GSR Godown and eventually M/s
Manglam Engineering Equipment's Nawa has
shown the interest to buy 5000 MT Salt and the
same was approved to sale the goods at Rs. 3000
per MT by offering 16.67% discount, while bidder
was ready to buy at Rs. 3600 per MT.

1. As per provided Tally Database, position of
stock as on 05/10/2021 at GSR are as under:

Highest Sale
Level of between [*Production
Opening | stock 01/10/20| between | Closing
as on before |Closingas| 21to |01/10/2021| ason
S. Item |01/04/202| 06/10/202 on 05/10/20 to 05/10/202
No. | Name 1 1 30/09/2021 21 05/10/2021 1
NON-IOD
Refined
saltin 50
1 KG. 1333.15 | 1540.15 1070.5 9 141.62 1203.12
Non-lod
fine
Powder
2 [in50KG.| 65.4 71.9 59.1 0 2.82 61.92
lod-
Refined
saltin 25
3 KG. 1.3 1.3 1.3 0 0 1.3
lod-Fine
powder in
4 | 50KG. | 41.55 47.3 47.3 0 0 47.3
Retensio
n Non-
lod. In 50
5 KG. 26 49.85 49.85 0 0 49.85
1KG. PP
lod. D.M.
6 |INS0KG. 1.25 1.25 1.25 0 0 1.25
lodized
1/2 KG
PP
Refined
Salt
7 | (D.M)in | 54.856 | 92.481 38.856 0 0 38.856

Yes it was.

Yes it was.

Yes it was to promote/liquidate the
product to avoid losses.
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25KG

1kg PP
iod
shakamb
hari salt
8 |in 25 KG 0 26.375

26.375 0 0 26.375

lodized
1/2 kg
P.P
Refined
Salt
(D.M) in
9 25 Kg 0 10.5

10.5 0 0 10.5

1kg
lodised
refined
Salt
S.S.in 25
10 kg 0.15 0.15

0.15 0 0 0.15

1440.621

*Details of daily production are not available in provided
database, hence to arrive at the production of 5 days,
total production of Oct 2021 is divided by 31 days and
multiplied by 5 days.

As per note sheet dated 06/10/2021, it is stated that
approximately 1700 MT industrial refined salt is lying at
GSR Plant which contains that insoluble content above
the permissible standard i.e., 0.5% (Permissible Limit is
0.35% as per BIS Standard) considered as Sub-
Standard Quality. It means at GSR Plant finished goods
other than sub-standard quality was also lying. On the
other hand, contractor is requesting that due to heavy
production and on-selling of goods by SSL there was
no space available at GSR Plant, therefore to continue
the production contactor requested the company for
lifting up the stock by him from plant to sale the same in
open market. However, as per above sheet, total
closing stock as on 05/10/2021 was only 1440.621 MT.

m. All the three statements i.e., books of accounts
maintained by the company, request dated
06/10/2021 submitted by the bidder and note
sheet dated 06/10/2021 signed by Chief Manager
and GM (Works) are contradictory to each other.

n. On 29/09/2021, bidder M/s Manglam Engineering
Equipment’s submitted a request letter that 10%
Security Deposit amounting to Rs. 6,61,500/- can
be adjusted from 25% pending amount vide order
no. 24/GSR/Tender/Comm/2021-22/5305 dated
26/08/2021 and the same was adjusted by
Voucher No. 129 dated 30/09/2021 by the
company. However, as per noting dated
01/06/2022 made on request letter of M/s
Manglam Engineering Equipment’s, till
01/06/2022 dryer was not working properly.

0. From 12/10/2021 to 13//11/2021, goods worth Rs.
14,73,750/- were sold on credit basis to M/s
Manglam Engineering Equipment’s.

p. On 08/11/2021, a request letter was submitted by
M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment's for

Closing stock on 30™ sept-2021 for
1305.181 m.t and sold in sept-2021
for 721.950 m.t in October -2021 till
5" of oct was only 9m.t as the
season started and due to the
demand boom for the private players
company also offered the ind refined
to sell the product to avoid the
losses as stock accumulated for
more than 600 m.t.

The permissible limit as per BIS
insoluble content is 0.35% and the
accumulated stock contains 0.5%
(that is 0.50%) as mentioned in the
note-sheet dated 06.10.2022.

As mentioned above clarified the
raised points hope satisfied the
queries raised hence it was not
contradictory.

It seems question repeated as
mentioned section | ‘D’ already
answered that there is no such letter
filed in the concern file that dryer is
not working properly.

Yes it was as adjusting the payment
to be made to the Awardee against
the purchase of salt as Production
rate fixed per M.T in the work order.
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extension of 2 months period of tender allotted to
him which was going to expire on 12/11/2021 on
following grounds.

i.  Due to short supply of raw salt.

ii. Due to oil leak of new heat exchanger which
was repaired from Ahmedabad and 10 days
was taken to repair the same by the company.

iii. Due to closure of plant for 10 days before
25/09/2021, it was difficult to acquire labour
from market as the plant was available for
running after 25/09/2021, And from
06/10/2021 to 26/10/2021 plant was shut
down for non-availability of godown.
Thereafter, 26/10/2021 due to chatt puja staff
was not available.

g. As per Letter dated 08/12/2021, extension of 2
months was granted to M/s Manglam Engineering
Equipment’s.

Detailed observations in reference to above tender on
the basis of documents provided are as under:

a. As already reported in our previous audit report for
the FY 2020-21, process of allotment of work for
supply of New Static Fluid Bed Salt Dryer, the
bidder M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’'s was
technically qualified on the basis of fabricated
documents i.e., CA Certificate for turnover (giving
the certificate of turnover for the period when the
proprietor of the firm was Minor), Fabricated Work
Orders and Experience Certificates in favour of
bidder’s firm.

b. During the FY 2021-22, as per work order no. 75
dated 16/04/2021 work was allotted to M/s
Manglam Engineering Equipment’s for installation
of Dryer. Accordingly, dryer was installed by the
bidder and invoice was raised on dated 26/05/2021.
However, up to 01/06/2022 dryer was not working
properly which was duly acknowledged by the
company'’s official itself.

c. Management of the company had made the
payment to the bidder including GST against
invoice no. 8 dated 26/05/2021. However, till date
the bidder has not furnished GSTR-1 for the month
May 2021 and as per GSTR-3B submitted for the
month of May 2021 turnover shown was NIL.
Management of the company made GST payment
to the bidder without verifying whether the same
has been deposited by the bidder to the
government or not.

d. Despite our observation given during the statutory
audit for the FY 2020-21 again work order related to
O&M of GSR was allotted on 13/08/2021 to M/s
Manglam Engineering Equipment’s on the basis of
following fabricated documents:

i. Bidder has submitted Work Order No. M/NU/42
dated 15/04/2020 for O&M work at Mahaveer
Namak Udyog, Nawa. Period of works is not
mentioned in the work order. However, as per

On the request of M/s. Mangalam
Engineering Equipment’s, extension of
2 months was granted to Mis.
Mangalam Engineering Equipment’s.
Copy attached as Annexure-I.

Already replied ON 21.06.2022. Copy
attached as Annexure-I.

No any such letter received by the
Gudha refinery incharge as End user
department.

There is no responsibility of the
company to check the payment of GST
have been made by the party or not. If
party is defaulter to make GST payment
in time then he will be sole responsible
for the same.

If it is so, The separate department
can examined if they attached any
fake documents.
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work order it is stated that “This is with
reference to your Discusses 08-04-2021 and
sub sequent negotiotiation held on dated 15-04-
2021 on The Subject cited above, we are
pleased to supply for operation maintenance
work our refinery order on you for the following
mentioned work”. Also, bidder has submitted
certificate dated 12/01/2020 for satisfactorily
conduction of O&M work at Salt Refinery during
the period 01/05/2020 to 30/11/2020. On study
of both the documents, it clearly shows that both
documents were fabricated. No verification of
documents was done by the purchase
committee, even no clarification was taken by

the purchase committee from bidder in
reference to variances in dates in both
documents. On the basis of fabricated

documents, work was allotted to M/s Manglam
Engineering Equipment’s.

Work Order on dated 13/08/2021 was issued
for Rs. 66,15,000/- including GST, however,
same was revised to Rs. 66,15,000/-
excluding GST on 14/08/2021. Following
discrepancies were found in revision of work
order:

In case of online bids where it was clearly
mentioned in the EOI at Point No. 6.1 of Bid
Evaluation Criteria that rates quoted by the
bidder will including GST and all other charges.

On simple request of the bidder which was
submitted on holiday i.e., Second Saturday
14/08/2021, without doing any negotiation, the
request was approved by UTC and HTC on the
same day 14/08/2021 which was Second
Saturday. No entry was found in inward receipt
register maintained by the company, order
related to working of Administrative Office of
Sambhar Unit and Head Office Jaipur on
holiday was not available on record.

As per terms & conditions of work order, 10%
Security Deposit was to be deposited by the
bidder, however no security deposit was
deposited by the bidder and the same was
adjusted from the outstanding balance of M/s
Manglam Engineering Equipment’'s which was
on hold due to unsatisfactory work of earlier
work order as stated above.

Copy of email from SSL unit to HTC Head
Office Jaipur regarding forwarding of Note
Sheet dated 14/08/2021 was not available.

Copy of email from HTC, Head Office Jaipur to
Sambhar unit for forwarding of approval for
revised work order was not available.

As approved by
authority.

the competent

For the kind information there is no
as such holiday at Sambhar i.e IIND
SATURDAY

The Security deposited was adjusted in
the outstanding balance of M/s
Manglam Engineering Equipment's as
work was satisfactorily completed by
the party.

Document is available in the file.

Document is available in the file.
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f. Extension of 2 months was granted to the
bidder on various grounds which were
contradictory from the available records as
stated above

g. Non-lodized salt was sold to M/s Manglam
Engineering Equipment’s at Rs. 3000 per MT
while the bidder was ready to purchase the
same at Rs. 3600 per MT. It was not clear why
the discount of Rs. 600 per MT was given by
the management voluntarily itself.

h. As per routine procedure, no credit sales are
made, however, all the sales to M/s Manglam
Engineering Equipment's were made on
credit. Approvals related to same was not
available on record and it is not clear why the
credit sales were made to specific vendor M/s
Manglam Engineering Equipment’s.

i. GST Certificate of M/s Manglam Engineering
Equipment's was cancelled on 02/12/2021,
however, the bidder had issued tax invoices
no. MEE/21 dated 24/01/2022 and invoice no.
MEE/22 dated 24/01/2022 having total GST
amount of Rs. 3,32,167.50 which was duly
account for by the company in its books of
accounts for the FY 2021-22.

j- M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment's was
not having any experience in O&M work which
is clearly shown from the total output of
3152.975 MT during 13/08/2021 to 12/01/2022
against the estimated production of 2100 MT
per month as per issued work order. Out of
which 1700 MT of goods produced was sub-
standard quality (as per order sheet dated
06/10/2021).

On the basis of above facts/documents available on
record and observations of such documents, prime
facie it seems that the Tender for Installation of New
Static Fluid Bed Salt Dryer O&M work of Gudha Salt
Refinery was allotted to M/s Manglam Engineering
Equipment’'s by the management of the company to
give the unusual benefit to individual vendor by
avoiding all the rules and regulations.

Due to various uncertainty involved, consequential
impact of the same on Financial Statements is not
unascertainable.

Security deposit deducted against
the raised invoice for the production
as adjustment by the contractor.

It was discounted on Rs.3600/- i.e
16.67% finally 3000/-M.T

Generally if a contractor has balance
or doing any short of allotted work in
the company after generated the
invoice it is being adjusted against
the invoice raised for the purchased
salt

Now GST has been deposited by the
party.

Already replied ON 21.06.2022

(Attaching again).

VIIL.

Liability of GST on Payments made to M/s MFB
Geotech Pvt Ltd. against Work Order dated
01/12/2021 for Operation & Maintenance of Nawa
Salt Refinery.

a. As per invoices submitted by MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd.
invoices are raised as Supply of Refined Salt
containing HSN Code 2501 also booked as Refined

For the above either F&A Section can
reply but major reply already
conveyed through the excel sheet in
the tabular for as Attached again.

Party has issued Tax invoice with
HSN code 2501 which is for
salt/purchases of salt with NIL GST

32




Salt in Tally Data by SSL and payment was also
made by the company, while as per Work order
dated 01/12/2021 work was allotted for Operation &
Maintenance of NSR. And as per terms &
conditions of work order quoted rates were
excluding GST. Amended work order were not
available on record.

b. Since the work was allotted for Operation &
Maintenance i.e., Service, SSL was liable to pay
GST @18% to M/s MFB Geotech Pwvt Ltd.
However, MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd had used incorrect
HSN Code for supply of salt i.e.,, goods to the
company which was duly acknowledged by the
company by booking the same as Purchases of
Goods in its books of accounts for the FY 2021-22.
On the basis of facts and information prime facie
available to us, it seems that MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd
had used incorrect HSN Code for the purpose of
tax evasion which was accordingly assisted by the
management of the company by the accounting
the same as Purchases of Salt.

c. Also, we wish to draw kind attention to Note No.
21.1 (Manufacturing Expenses) of Financial
Statements for the FY 2021-22 in which Purchases
of Refined Salt-NSR was also treated as Expenses
by the company which clearly shows that the
company is treating the same as Direct Expense.

d. Therefore, GST liability amounting to Rs.
19,44,000/- may arise on Sambhar Salts Limited in
future and the impact of same on financial
statements was not acknowledged by the
company in its financial statements. However, the
above amount does not include Interest and
Penalty livable if any.

Due to non-recognition of GST amount of Rs. 19.44
Lakhs resulted in overstatement of Profit Before
Tax by Rs. 19.44 Lakhs and understatement of
liabilities by Rs. 19.44 Lakhs. It is to be noted that
the above amount does not include liability of
interest and penalty on GST not collected and paid
to the government. The same may be calculated at
the time of collection and payment and accordingly
the liability may increase by same amount.

rates.

Party has issued Tax invoice with
HSN code 2501 which is for
salt/purchases of salt with NIL GST
rates.

Party has issued Tax invoice with
HSN code 2501 which is for
salt/purchases of salt with NIL GST
rates.

Party has issued Tax invoice with
HSN code 2501 which is for
salt/purchases of salt with NIL GST
rates.

Liability of TDS on Payments made to M/s MFB
Geotech Pvt Ltd. against Work Order dated
01/12/2021 for Operation & Maintenance of Nawa
Salt Refinery

Company had treated the transactions with M/s MFB
Geotech Pvt Ltd. as Purchases in the books of
accounts and accordingly not deducted the TDS u/s
194C of Rs. 1,92,600/- (After deduction TDS of Rs.
23,398 u/s 194C) viz-a-viz deducted TDS u/s 194Q of
Rs. 3,848/-.

Due to non-deduction of TDS amount of Rs. 1.926
Lakhs resulted in understatement of Trade
Payables (For Others) by Rs. 1.926 Lakhs and
overstatement of Trade Payables (For Expenses) by
Rs.1.926 Lakhs. It is to be noted that the above
amount does not include liability of interest and
penalty on TDS not deducted and paid to the
government. The same may be calculated at the
time of deduction and payment and accordingly the
liability may increase by same amount.

Party has issued Tax invoice with
HSN code 2501which is for
salt/purchases of salt with NIL GST
rates.
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IX. | Improper Accounting in Bank Accounts
Transactions related to various banks accounts
maintained at Head Office level are recorded in the
books of accounts maintained at Sambhar Unit by | Noted for compliances and during
debiting or crediting to “Sambhar Salts Limited, Jaipur”. | current financial year i.e. 01.09.22 on
Even no books of accounts are maintained at Head | words unit has changed the above
Office, Jaipur. practice. Now we are debit/ credit to
Due to uncertainty involved and improper | party with related banks.
accounting adopted by the management of the
company, we were unable to verify the
payments/receipts of such bank accounts. The
consequential impact of the same on Financial
Statements is not unascertainable.

Emphisis of Matter

1 We draw attention to Para 10 (ii) of Note No.1.3 and | Company has already taken the action
Note No.6 to the financial statement regarding | to invest the outstanding demand
Retirement Benefits (Gratuity), which states that liability | against gratuity in phased manner after
for gratuity as on 31.03.2022 was provided for * 196.18 | reviewing the financial position of the
lacs in the books, but no investment was made as | company however efforts will be made
required under AS-15. to invest the same amount prior to 31

March, 2023.

2 Attention is also invited to Note no. 29 “Contingent | The liabilities shown in Note No.29 are
Liabilities and Capital Commitments to the extent not | of contingent nature and not payable in
provided for”, wherein liabilities for substantial amount | view of pending court cases and
which may materially affect the financial statements of | position explained of each item at Note
the company, on various accounts have not been | 29.
provided for.

Reply to observation made under Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order 2016 under
Annexure-B.

1 (a) | A). According to information and explanations given to | Fixed assets register will be completed
us, the Company has not maintained reasonable | after completion of physical verification
records showing particulars, including quantitative | work in current financial year
details and situation of fixed assets.

B). According to information and explanations given to | The company will be prepared proper
us, the company has not maintained proper records of | record in current financial year
intangible Assets.

1(b) | As explained to us, the company has no written policy | The work of physical verification of
and procedures for physical verification of the fixed | Assets and preparation of draft policy
assets at reasonable intervals. Fixed assets have not | for physical verification of assets , store
been physically verified by the management. No | etc was awarded to the CA firm in 2019-
comment therefore can be made on discrepancies, if | 20 and they were submitted draft report
any in 20-21 the necessary adjustment if

any will be carried out in current
financial year

1 (c) | According to the information and explanations given to

us and as per records examined by us, we found
following discrepancies in title deeds of immovable
properties. The details of such discrepancies are as
under:-

1. Freehold property at Kharagodha Village, District-
Surendar Nagar, (Gujarat) Area 23596 Acres —
'24.54 lakh. However, as per records of fixed
assets maintained at the unit the total land area is
23449 acres. The details of land holding as
provided to us is as under:-

Particulars Area

Run side land 22768 Acres
Village land 326 Acres
Miscellaneous land 25 Acres
Land acquired back by Govt. 330 Acres
Total 23449 acres

2. Title documents in relation to Run side Land which
is under salt manufacturing area were not provided
to us. It has also been explained that the state

1(c) 1 & 2 Land measuring 23596 Acres
at Kharaghoda Gujarat belongs to
company as the cost of land was paid to
Govt of India by issuing the shares at
the time of formation of company
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Govt. of Gujarat has disputed the above land as
lease hold in place of free hold land and claim of °
272.80 lacs on account of agriculture and non-
agriculture assessment has been raised. The
matter is presently sub-judice.

3. Title documents in form of copy of 7/12 for land
measuring about 132 acres are available on record.
The name of owner of property is mentioned as
“Hindustan Salt Woks, Kharagodha” instead of
“Hindustan Salts Limited”

The action for correction the name of
property will be taken with revenue
department of Govt of Gujarat

4. Title documents in respect of freehold property at
Mohal Khaliyar, Mandi having area of 702.25 sq.
mtr. Rs * 37.92 Lakh were not made available.

5. Leasehold Property at Maigal Salt Works, Gum
Mines, Drang Mines, Himachal Pradesh having
area 133.116 Acres. A photo copy of lease deed
executed on 31.08.2007 in the name of Hindustan
Salts Limited is available and no other document
was provided by the company to verify the title in
the name of the Company. Out of above, title
documents in respect of land measuring 74 acres at
Gum, were not available on records.

1 (c) 4 & 5 Further the action for
correction in revenue record of Govt of
Himachal Pradesh has already been
taken up and is under process for land
at Mandi unit The land is on 20 years
lease till 30 April 2023 the land is in the
name of Salt Commissioner

(&) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial
institution or bank except default in repayment of loan
to Government of India of "3936.55 (including interest
of "2695.26 lakh.) No repayment of loan and interest to
Government of India has been made by the Company.
Details of these overdue amounts are as under :-

Nature offName of |Amount not| Whether | No. of |Remar
borrowin| Lender |[paid on due| principal | days ks
gs date or interest|delay or
unpaid
Unsecure| Govt. of (12,41,29,000( Principal |Different
d Loan | India, dates
Ministry since the
of Heavy loan is
Industry given on
different
dates
Unsecure| Govt. of (26,95,26,201| Interest | Different
d Loan | India, dates of
Ministry repayme
of Heavy nts
Industry

Repayment of Govt loan and interest
due to accumulated losses company is
not able to pay the due amount of loan
and interest to DHI Govt of India
However now company has taken
various steps for enhance the company
performance and there after company
would be able to pay the outstanding
loan & interest in a phased manner

Subsidiary Company

1. (b) Company is doing physical verification of Assets during the financial year through internal
committee and preparation of draft policy is under process.

(9) (&) It is not possible to repay the loan and outstanding interest to holding company Hindustan Salts
Ltd due to accumulated losses. However, necessary steps are being taken by company for improvement
in performance in coming year by putting up sodium sulphate plant, increasing the production of common
salt and process salt etc. make profit to pay the amount of outstanding loan and interest in phase manner.

(11) (@) The company has lodged the FIR in Sambhar Police Station regarding the theft on 29th August,
2021 And also approached to M/s United India Insurance Company regarding the claim amount of Rs.
1,51,129/-
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22.3

22.4
2241

22.4.2

225
(i)

(ii)

Reply on qualified opinion made under Internal Financial Controls under Annexure C

(@)

The Group has no proper policies and procedures for
periodical physical verification of fixed assets and
inventories of the company. During the year under
consideration no physical verification of fixed assets
has been conducted by the company. As reported to
us, physical verification of inventory was not conducted
at any unit. As reported to us, physical verification of

The work of physical verification of
Assets and preparation of draft policy
for physical verification of assets store
etc was awarded to the CA Firm in
2019-20 and they were submitted fraft
report in 20-21 The necessary
adjustment if any will be carried out in
current F Y

inventory was not conducted at any unit but however,
the management has written off inventory at its
Kharagodha Unit.

However company will finalize the
policy of physical verification conducted
by committee of officers at regular
As per the auditor of subsidiary company, their team | interval in current financial year
visited sambhar unit for physical verification on 31%
March 2022, however, no such verification was
undergoing by the committee as on 31% March 2022.
Although, they have received the physical verification

report from the management later on.

(b) | The internal audit of the Holding Company is being
carried by the independent firm of Chartered
Accountants and looking to the size, nature and volume
of transactions, the same needs to be strengthened.

Chartered Accountants Firma has
already been appointed as a Internal
Auditor and being asked to do the work
of internal audit as per the size nature
and volume of transaction of the
company

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER & AUDITOR GENERAL
The Comptroller & Auditor General of India decided not to conduct supplementary audit of

Standalone and consolidated financial statements of the company for the financial year
2021-22.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Certificate on Compliance of Corporate Governance of the company for the FY 2021-22
of M/s H Nitin & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary with Condition of Corporate
Governance is placed elsewhere in the Annual Report. Reply to the observations is as
under:

Training to new Board Members: Company is having a training policy for its Board Members
and a brief about the company’s working and functions presented to the newly appointed
Board Members.

Meetings of Board & Audit Committee: Company is regularly holding Board meetings,
however, sometimes due to non-availability members, meeting could not be held for want of
proper quorum. During the year Board & Audit Committee met four times as required,
however, due to COVID-19, meetings were not held on time. The same shall be taken care
of in future.

Information on number of meetings of the board held during the year, composition of
committees of the board and its meetings held during the year, etc., are contained in Report
on Corporate Governance which forms part of the Annual Report is annexed herewith as
Annexure I.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:
Industry Structure and Developments: With planning and control, the topline and bottom line

of the company during the FY 2021-22 and the turnover had significantly improved by
94.93% and value of production had increased from ¥ 1245.19 Lakhs to ¥ 2475.03 Lakhs
during the year.

Strength and Weakness: The Company is having about 23000 acres of land at Kharaghoda
and efforts were made that Bromine and Magnesium Chloride production could be
enhanced and simultaneously the production of Rock salt was started at Mandi. However
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(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

22.6

high cost of production, old production methodology and infrastructure are hindrance for
optimum utilization of potential, so company has explored and worked out an efficient
operation methodology.

Opportunities, Threats and Outlook: Company explored modes for developing infrastructure
for commercial production of rock salt at Mandi through the Mine Developer and operation
basis under PPP mode. Further company has cancelled the contract of GTCL for installation
of Salt refinery at Kharaghoda and now company is undertaking the completion of the
project at risk and contract of the party. Company is also additionally exploring
diversification business opportunities in green energy segment in PPP mode.

Segment wise or product wise performance: The production of Bromine during the year was
437 MT compared to 242 MT and Magnesium Chloride was 3553 MT compared to 1862 MT
in previous year. The production of Rock Salt was 286 MT during the year compared to 485
MT.

Risks Management: The Company’s core area of business is mainly related to trading and
production of salt, bromine and Magnesium Chloride. The risks involved are predominantly
market and weather conditions.

Internal Control System and their Adequacy: The Company has appointed a firm of
Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditor to carry out the Internal Audit activities. Internal
Audit process is designed to review the adequacy of internal control checks in the systems
covering all significant area of the company. Company has an audit committee which also
reviews the report of internal auditors.

Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance: The Company
has incurred Profit of Rs 151.71 Lakhs in the current year compared to profit of 579.60
Lakhs in the previous year.

Corporate Social Responsibility: Profit in FY 2020-21 was Rs. 579.60 Lakhs. However, in
view of the CAG comments based on the supplementary audit of the financial statements for
the year 2021-22 that there is overstatement of profit of Rs. 82.34 lakhs. Therefore, the
management was of the view that after taking into account, the overstated profit of Rs.
82.34 lakhs, the profit of the company for FY 2020-21 shall stand at Rs. 4.96 crores.
Therefore, relevant provisions of Sec 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding CSR are
not applicable for FY 2021-22. For the financial year 2021-22 company earned a net profit of
Rs. 1.52 crores, therefore, Company does not come under purview of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Further, company is maintaining a hospital for all workers and
general public at Kharaghoda.

CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

During the period under review, the Company had not entered into any material transaction
with any of its related parties. The Company's major related party transactions are generally
with its subsidiary, which is also a government company. All related party transactions were
in the ordinary course of business and were negotiated on an arm's length basis and forms
part of financial statement, attached as a separate section of this Annual Report. They were
intended to further the Company's interests. Accordingly, the disclosure of Related Party
Transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-
2 is not applicable.
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22.7

22.8

22.9

22.10

22.11

22.12

22.13

22.14

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS/ COURTS/
TRIBUNALSIMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

There is no significant and material orders passed by regulators/courts/ tribunals impacting
the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS SYSTEM:

An internal control system is formulated in the Company to ensure reliability of financial
reporting, timely feedback on the achievement of operational and strategic goals,
compliance with policies, procedures, rules and regulations, safeguarding of assets and
economical and efficient use of resources.

The internal auditor which is a Chartered Accountant firm appointed by the Company
continuously monitor the effectiveness of internal controls. The scope of internal audit
activity is well defined in the letter of appointment of internal auditors. The audit committee
met regularly and reviewed the reports of internal audit submitted by the internal auditor.
PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186
OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Details of Loan, Guarantees and investment as required under section 186 of Companies
Act, 2013 forms part of financial statement, attached as a separate section of this Annual
Report.

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013.

The Company has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee to prevent and prohibit
from any sexual harassment at workplace and redress any such grievance of woman
employees as required under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Nil complaints of sexual harassment received during
the calendar year 2021 and NIL complaints disposed- off during the year.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

Extract of Annual Return as provided under Rule 12 of the Company (Management &
Administration) Rule, 2014) is annexed herewith as Annexure 1l to this report in Form MGT
9.

PARTICULARS OF INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 129 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 RELATING TO SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF
SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

The particulars of information under proviso to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
relating to ‘Salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiary companies’ has been
attached with the Financial Statements of the company in Form AOC-1, in pursuance to Rule
5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014. The Annual Accounts of the subsidiary company
is placed elsewhere in the Annual Report.

INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 134(3)(n) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
CONCERNINGDEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICY OF THE COMPANY:

The Risk Management Policy of the company has approved by the board has been
implemented. There are, however, no elements of risk threatening the company’s existence.

No employee in the company was drawing more than ¥ 850,000/- per month or ¥
10,200,000/- per annum during the year.
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22.15

22.16

23

24,

25.

251

25.2

25.3

26.

(i)

(ii)

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The company is not required to have requisite number of independent directors on the board
as per the Companies Act, 2013, however under the Guidelines of Corporate Governance of
DPE dated 14.05.2010 company should have independent directors on board and
accordingly the administrative ministry has appointed three Independent Directors on
21.01.2020. The Independent Directors have given declaration of Independence.

Procurement made from Micro and Small Enterprises during 2021-22

Public Procurement Policy for Micro and Small Enterprises (MSEs) was notified by the
Government under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 which
stipulates that 20% of total annual procurement of goods and services shall be made by all
Central Ministries /Departments /CPSUs from Micro & small Enterprises (MSEs). Within this
percentage, a sub-total of 4% procurement is to be made from MSEs owned by SC/ST
entrepreneurs. The total value of procurement during the year 2021-22 is ¥ 1.59 Cr and out
of the total value procured from MSE is ¥ 0.49 Cr. However the party was not SC/ST/
women entrepreneur.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE
OF THE REPORT:

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company
occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relates and
the date of this report.

VOLUNTARY REVISION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OR BOARD’S REPORT
The management has not voluntarily revised the financial statements or boards report.

CHANGE IN COMPOSITION OF BOARD AND COMMITTEES DURING THE YEAR AND
UPTO THE DATE OF FINALISATION OF THIS REPORT
CHANGE IN COMPOSITION OF BOARD
(&) Shri Sushil K Satpute, Director, DPIIT cum Salt Commissioner was appointed as
director w.e.f. 15.09.2021 in place of Shri Uday singh Mina.

CHANGE IN COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

(a) Shri Uday Singh Mina ceased to be member w.e.f. 15.09.2021.

(b) Shri Sushil K Satpute, Director, DPIIT cum Salt Commissioner was appointed member

of committee w.e.f. 13.10.2021.

CONSTITUTION AND CHANGES IN COMPOSITION OF REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The remuneration Committee of the Board was constituted by board on 15.06.2020 and its
composition was as under:

(&) Shri Uday Singh Mina was appointed member of the committee w.e.f. 18.02.2021 and
he ceased to be member w.e.f. 15.09.2021.
(b) Shri Sushil K Satpute was appointed member of committee w.e.f. 13.10.2021.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As per the requirements of section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013 your directors
hereby declare that:

In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended 31°%' March 2022, the
applicable accounting standard have been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

The Directors had selected such Accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimate that are reasonable prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the company at the end of 31%' March, 2022 and of the profit and loss
of the company for that period.
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(i)

(iv)
V)

27.

28.

The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of the adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and others
irregularities.

The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
applicable laws and that such systems were adequately and operating efficiently.

The web address where information required under Sec 92(3) of the Companies Act is

available on web site is http://www.indiansalt.com/report.htm.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the valuable assistance given by
various Departments and Ministries of the Government of India particularly Department of
Heavy Industry, Department for Promotions of Industry and Internal Trade, Department of
Public Enterprises, Ministry of Finance, Niti Aayog, Salt Commissioner and Railway Board,
etc.
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The Directors also express their sincere gratitude to all the customer of the company for their
unstinted support and confidence reposed in the company. The Directors are also thankful to
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(Cmde Kamlesh Kumar (Retd.))
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 08884327

Place : Jaipur
Date : 24.12.2022
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Annexure-|

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
1. Company’s Philosophy:

Your Company believes that for its sustained success, it must maintain global standards of corporate
conduct towards its shareholders, customers, employees, all other stakeholders and society in
general. The Company has always focused on good corporate governance, which is a key driver of
sustainable corporate growth and long-term value creation for its shareholders.

The Company believes that corporate governance is not just limited to creating checks and balances.
It is more about creating organization excellence leading to increasing employee and customer
satisfaction and shareholder value. The primary objective of corporate governance is to create and
adhere to a corporate culture of conscience and consciousness, transparency and openness, to
develop capabilities and identify opportunities that best serve the goal of value creation. The
Company believes, it must leverage its human and capital resources to translate opportunities into
reality, create awareness of corporate vision and spark dynamism and entrepreneurship at all levels.
Above all, corporate governance must balance individual interest with corporate goals and operate
within accepted norms of propriety, equity, fair play and a sense of justice. Accountability and
transparency are key drivers to improve decision-making and the rationale behind such decisions,
which in turn creates stakeholder confidence.

2. Board of Directors:
2.1 The board of Directors of the company as on 31.03.2022 consists of five directors including
one Chairman & Managing Director. The brief particulars of all the Directors are given below:

Name of Director Category of Date of Birth | Qualification Directorship in
(S/shri) & Directorship Date of other companies
Designation Appointment
Cmde Kamlesh Functional Director 15.06.1969 Post Sambhar Salts Ltd.
Kumar (Retd.), 05.08.2020 Graduate
Chairman &
Managing Director
Sushil K Satpute, Part time official 29.07.1975 Graduate Sambhar Salts Ltd.
Director, DPIIT cum director/ 15.09.2021
Salt Commissioner Government
Nominee
Parveen Gupta, Part time official 09.12.1962 Graduate HMT Watches Ltd.,
Director, Ministry of director/ 22.03.2019 Richardson and
Heavy Industries Government Cruddas Ltd., National
Nominee Bicycle Corp of India
Ltd. & SSL.
Shankar Lal Agarwal, | Part time Non-official | 30.11.1959 FCA Sambhar Salts Ltd
director/ Independent| 21.01.2020
Director
Hari Mohan Johari Part time Non-official | 12.02.1970 FCA Sambhar Salts Ltd
director/ Independent| 21.01.2020
Director
Kavita Chaudhary Part time Non-official | 17.03.1964 Graduate Sambhar Salts Ltd
director/ Independent| 21.01.2020
Director

2.2 Meeting and Attendance:
During the financial year 2021-22, four meetings of the Board of Directors were held on the
dates mentioned hereafter 16.08.2021, 29.11.2021, 25.02.2022 and 30.03.2022.
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Name of Director Whether | Board Meetings Category of Other Membership of
(S/shri) Attended |during respective Director Directorship| Committee of other
Last AGM tenure of S Boards
Directors
Held |Attended Chairperson| Member
Cmde Kamlesh Yes 4 4 CMD (Functional 1 - 1
Kumar (Retd.) Director)
Parveen Gupta No 4 0 Part time official 4 -
director/
Government
Nominee
Uday Singh Mina # No 1 0 Part time official 1
director/
Government
Nominee
Shankar Lal Agarwal No 4 4 Part time Non- 1 - 2
official director/
Independent
Director
Hari Mohan Johari No 4 4 Part time Non- 1 - 2
official director/
Independent
Director
Kavita Chaudhary No 4 4 Part time Non- 1 - 2
official director/
Independent
Director
Sushil K Satpute © No 3 2 Part time official 1 - -
director/
Government
Nominee
# Shri Uday Singh Mina Director DPIIT cum Salt Commissioner was ceased to be Director w.e.f.
15.09.2021.
@ Shri Sushil K Satpute, Director DPIIT cum Salt Commissioner was appointed as Director w.e.f.
15.09.2021.

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committee is committed to good corporate governance with best discharge of its assigned
duties. It is informed that pursuant to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the
Companies (Meeting of Board and its powers) Rule, 2014 company is not required to constitute the
Audit Committee. However, under the Guidelines on Corporate Governance of CPSEs issued by
Department of Public Enterprises, Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises dated
14.05.2010 the board has constituted the Audit Committee to discharge the duties.

3.1 Audit Committee Terms of reference:

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is constituted to assist the Board in fulfilling oversight
responsibilities and to ensure that the framework of internal control, practices, and systems are
robust.

Membership | Chairperson and Members of the Committee

The Committee shall comprise of a minimum of three Directors with independent
Directors forming a majority and majority of the members of the Audit Committee
including its Chairperson shall be persons with ability to read and understand financial
statements.

One Independent Director having Financial knowledge will be appointed as the
Chairperson of the Committee by the Board.

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Committee, the remaining members present
shall elect one of themselves to chair the meeting.
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Reconstitution
The Board shall reconstitute the Committee as and when required.

Secretary The Company Secretary shall act as Secretary to the Committee and attend all its
meetings.
Quorum The quorum would be one third of the strength of the Committee or two Members,

whichever is higher.

Questions arising in any meeting shall be decided by a simple majority of votes.

A duly convened meeting of the Committee at which a quorum is present shall be
competent to exercise all or any of the authorities, powers and discretions vested in
or exercisable by the Committee.

Frequency of

The Audit Committee should meet atleast once in every quarter. Atleast four

Meetings meetings of Audit Committee should be held during the year.
The Chairperson of the Committee or the Chairman of the Board may each convene
meetings of the Committee at any time to consider any matters falling within this
Terms of Reference.
Duties and e To oversee the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its
Responsibilit financial information to ensure that the financial statements is correct, sufficient
ies and credible;

e To review with management, the annual financial statements before submission
to the Board, focusing primarily on;

a. Matters required to be included in Directors’ responsibility statement to be

included u/s sec 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013

Any changes if any, in accounting policies and practices.

Major accounting entries based on exercise of judgment by Management.

Qualifications in draft audit report.

Significant adjustments arising out of audit.

The going concern assumption.

Compliance with accounting standards.

Compliance with legal requirements relating to financial statements;

Disclosure of any related party transactions; and

. To review & recommend the Company’s financial policies to the Board for

approval;

To examine the financial statements and the auditors’ reportthereon;

To approve and recommend the annual budget to the Board for approval.

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

To recommend to Board fee for Statutory Audit;

To recommend to Board for appointment, remuneration and terms of

appointment of Internal auditors and any audit related services of the company;

e To review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and
effectiveness of audit process;

e Reviewing with the management Quarterly;

e To review with the management, performance of external and internal auditors,
the adequacy of internal control systems;

e To review the adequacy of internal audit function, including the structure of the
internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the
department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

e To discuss with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up there on;

e To review the follow up action on the audit observation of the C&AG audit;

e Provide an open avenue of communication between the independent auditor,
internal auditor and the Board of Directors;

e To review the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into
matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal

~s@e "o aocC
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control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board;

Consider and review the following with the management, internal auditor and the

Statutory auditor:

1. Significant findings during the year, including the status of previous audit
recommendations;

2. Post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

To give approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company

with related parties;

To take on record CAG Audit Report;

To exercise its powers and carry out its responsibilities as may be required from

time to time under the Whistle Blower Policy;

To address and deal with such other matters as may be delegated by the Board

to the Audit Committee and matters referred under Section 177 of the

Companies Act, 2013.

Authority

Vi.

The Audit Committee is empowered to do the following

To recommend to Board, financial sanctions, if any, to matters pertaining to
this Committee
To seek information from any employee as considered necessary;

i. To obtain outside legal and professional advice as considered necessary;

To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise; and
To investigate any activity within terms of reference, if it considers necessary.
To protect whistle blowers.

Sitting fee As

decided by the Board from time to time.

Review Thi

s Terms of Reference shall be reviewed as and when necessary.

3.2 Composition

of Audit Committee

Audit Committee as on 31.03.2022 consisted of the following Directors:

1. Shri. Shankar Lal Agarwal, Independent Director - Chairman

2. Cmde Kamlesh Kumar (Retd.), CMD, HSL - Member

3. Shri Sushil Satpute, Director, DPIIT cum Salt Commissioner - Member

4. Shri Hari Mohan Johari, Independent Director - Member

5. Smt Kavita Chaudhary, Independent Director - Member

3.3 Audit Committee Meetings and Attendance:
During the financial year 2021-22, the Audit Committee met on 16.08.2021, 29.11.2021,
25.02.2022 & 30.03.2022.
Name of the | Status Category Number of
Member (S/Shri) Meetings
attended
Shankar Lal | Chairman | Part time Non-official director/Independent 4
Agarwal Director
Uday Singh Mina® | Member | Part time official director 0
Cmde Kamlesh | Member | Functional Director 4
Kumar (Retd.)
Hari Mohan Johari | Member | Part time Non-official director/Independent 4
Director
Kavita Chaudhary Member | Part time Non-official director/Independent 4
Director

Sushil Satpute # Member | Part time official director 2

AN

#

Shri Uday Singh Mina was ceased to be member of the Audit Committee w.e.f. 15.09.2021.
Shri Sushil K Satpute, Director DPIIT cum Salt Commissioner was appointed as member of the

Audit Committee w.e.f. 13.10.2021.
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4.2

4.3

5.
51

52

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies
(Meeting of Board and its powers) Rule, 2014 is not required to constitute the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. However, under the Guidelines on Corporate Governance of
CPSEs issued by Department of Public Enterprises, Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public
Enterprises dated 14.05.2010 the board had constituted Remuneration Committee on
30.08.2010. On appointment of three independent directors, the Remuneration committee has
been reconstituted on 18.02.2021.

Composition of Remuneration Committee
Remuneration Committee as on 31.03.2022 consisted of the following Directors:

1. Shri. Shankar Lal Agarwal, Independent Director - Chairman
2. Shri Sushil Satpute, Director, DPIIT cum Salt Commissioner - Member
3. Shri Hari Mohan Johari, Independent Director - Member
4. Smt Kavita Chaudhary, Independent Director - Member

Remuneration Committee Meetings and Attendance:
During the financial year 2021-22, the Remuneration Committee met on 16.08.2021 &
25.02.2022.

Name of the Member | Status Category Number of Meetings

(S/Shri) attended

Shri.  Shankar Lal | Chairman | Part time Non-official 2

Agarwal director/Independent Director

Uday Singh Mina Member | Part time official director 0

Sushil Satpute Member | Part time official director 1

Hari Mohan Johari Member | Part time Non-official 2
director/Independent Director

Kavita Chaudhary Member | Part time Non-official 2
director/Independent Director

GENERAL BODY MEETING
The last three Annual General Meetings of the Company were held as under:

Financial Date Time Location

Year

2020-21 30.11.2021 | 12:15Hrs | Through VC at Registered Office: G-229, Sitapura
Industrial Area, Jaipur, Rajasthan, PIN: 302022

2019-20 24.12.2020 | 11.00 Hrs | Through VC at Registered Office: G-229, Sitapura
Industrial Area, Jaipur, Rajasthan, PIN: 302022

2018-19 29.11.2020 | 15.30 Hrs | Registered Office: G-229, Sitapura Industrial Area,
Jaipur, Rajasthan, PIN: 302022

63" Annual General Meeting of the company is scheduled to be held on Tuesday, the 27" day
of December, 2022 at 14:30 Hrs at the Registered Office of the Company situated at G-229,
Sitapura Industrial Area, Jaipur, Rajasthan — 302022 through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other
Audio Visual Means (OAVM).

CODE OF CONDUCT

The board in its meeting held on 30.8.2010 approved the “Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics for Board Members and Senior Management” in terms of guidelines on corporate
governance in Central Public Sector Enterprises (CPSES) issued by the Government of India.
Pursuant to this Board members and senior management personnel have affirmed
compliance with the code on an annual basis within 30 days from the end of FY and same
was placed before board. The certificate of Compliance is enclosed as Addendum to the
Directors’ Report.
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8.1

10.

10.1

10.2

11.

4

TRAINING OF BOARD MEMBERS

.Having regard to the financial status currently company is unable to provide formal training to

fts newl;_r appointed directors, however directors on board have been provided with an

:nt{oducglon to the company's business model, area of operations etc. Directors attend the

Sngr;;tnon Program for capacity building for existing and newly appointed directors organized
y ;

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Being a Government Company, the remuneration of functional director like Chairman and

Managing Director is decided by the Government of India. Government Nominee was not paid

any remuneration.

;r;et‘independent Director is entitied to sitting fees for attending board and committee
etings.

Details of the remuneration of functional directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
company during the year under review are provided in the extract of the Annual Return in
Annexure —|| of the Directors’ Report.

AUDIT QUALIFICATION

It is always the company’s endeavor to present unqualified financial statement; however, the
Statutory Auditors has given qualified opinion in its report on Standalone and Consolidated
financial statement of the Company for the financial year 202}-22 and has drawn attention
under “Emphasis Matter”, observation under “CARQ" and qualified opinion on “Internal
Financial Controls”. Management reply to the Statutory Auditors’ Qualification/femphasis
matter/observations on the Accounts of the company for the financial year ended 31% March,
2022 is furnished in the Directors’ Report.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Website
The company’s website www.indiansalt.com hosts information for investors and all

stakeholders. The Annual Financial statements of the company are available on the website in
a user friendly and downloadable form.

Official News releases
The company communicates with stakeholders by way of official news releases in electronic

and print media.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY
A Whistle Blower Policy of the company has been approved by the Board and implemented in

the company w.e.f. 18.02.2021. In addition to this company as in—built procedure to provide
an opportunity to employees to report to the management instances of unethical behavior,
actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the company's code of conduct.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(Cmde Kamlesh Kumar (Retd.))

Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 08884327

Place : Jaipur
Date : 24.12.2022
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Annexure- Il

FORM NO. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 31* March 2022
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]

l. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

I CIN U14220RJ1958G01001049

ii Registration Date 12.04.1958

iii Name of the Company Hindustan Salts Limited

iv Category / Sub-Category of the Company Private Company/ Government Company

V Address of the registered office and contact | G-229, Sitapura Industrial Area, Jaipur, Rajasthan,
details PIN: 302022

Telephone No.: 0141-2771448; Fax :0141-2771449
Email: information@indiansalt.com

Vi Whether listed company No

vii Name, Address and Contact details of | NA
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

S.No | Name and Description of main products / | NIC Code of the | % to total turnover of the
services Product/ service company

1 Bromine 20111 59.35%

2 Magnesium Chloride 20119 6.84%

Il PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S.No Name and address of the company CIN/GLN % of shares held
Subsidiary Company {Section 2(87)(ii)}
1 Sambhar Salts Limited U14220RJ1964G01001188 60

G-229, Sitapura Industrial Area, Jaipur,
Rajasthan, PIN- 302022

IV. (A) SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i. Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning No. of Shares held at the end of the year | % Change
Shareholders of the year during the
Demat |Physical Total | % of Total| Demat| Physical Total [ % of Total year
Shares Shares
A. Promoter
1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Central Govt. 0 520596 | 520596 100 0 520596 | 520596 100 100
c) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Bodies Corp 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Banks /Fl 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f) Any Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total(A)(1):- 0 520596 | 520596 100 0 520596 | 520596 100 100
2) Foreign
g) NRIs-Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
h) Other-Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
i) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
j) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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k) Any Other.... 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total(A)(2): 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total of A= - 520596 | 520596 100 - 520596 | 520596 100 100
A(1)+A(2):
B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions
a)Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) State Govt.(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Venture Capital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Funds
f) Insurance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Companies
g) Flis 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
h) Foreign Venture 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Capital Funds
i) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (B)(1) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2. Non Institutions
a) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(i) Indian 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
i) Individual 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh
i) Individual 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
n excess of Rs 1
akh
c) Others (Specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total(B)(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Public 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)
C. Shares held by 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Custodian for GDRs
and ADRs
Grand Total 0 520596 | 520596 100 0 520596 | 520596 100 100
(A+B+C)
(B) Shareholding of Promoters
S.| Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning of the Shareholding at the end of the year % change
No Name year in
No.of | % of total % of Shares No.of | %oftotal | % of Shares  |ohareholding
shares | Shares of Pledged / shares | Shares Pledged / during the
the encumbered to of the encumbered to year
company total shares company total shares
1 President of 520592 100 0 520592 100 0 -
India
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(C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
Sr. Particulars Shareholding at the Transaction during the year Cumulative Shareholding
No beginning of the year during the year
No. of % of total Date Increase/ Reason [No. of shares % of total
shares | shares of the Decrease in shares of the
company share company
holding
1 At the beginning of the | 520596 100 520596 100
year
2 Allotment - - - - - - -
3 At the end of the year 520596 100 520596 100
(D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and
ADRs):
Sr. Particulars Shareholding at the Transaction during the year Cumulative Shareholding
No beginning of the year during the year
No. of % of total Date Increase/ Reason [No. of shares % of total
shares | shares of the Decrease in shares of the
company share company
holding
1 |At the beginning of the 0 0 0 0
year
2 Allotment - 0 - - -
3 At the end of the year 0 0 0 0

(E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. Particulars Shareholding at the Transaction during the year Cumulative Shareholding during
No beginning of the year the year
No. of % of total Date Increase/ Reaso [No. of shares | % of total shares
shares | shares of the Decrease in n of the company
company share holding
V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount - 1241.29 - 1241.29
i) Interest due but not paid - 2424.72 - 2424.72
iii) Interest accrued but not due - -
Total (i+ii+iii) - 3666.01 - 3666.01
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year - -
- Addition - 270.54 - 270.54
- Reduction - - - -
Net Change - 270.54 - 270.54
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount - 1241.29 - 1241.29
i) Interest due but not paid - 2695.26 - 2695.26
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+ii-+iii) - 3936.55 - 3936.55

* Excess interest charged in earlier year on Government of India loan were written back.
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
(Tin Lakhs)
Sl. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total
No. Amount
1. CMD WTD [ Manager
2. Cmde Kamlesh
Kumar (Retd.)
3. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 34.06 - - 34.06
section 17(1) of the Income tax Act,
1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income 16.65 - - 16.65
Tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) - - -
Income Tax Act,1961
4. Stock Option - - -
5. Sweat Equity - - -
6. Commission - -
- as % of profit - - -
- others, specify... - - -
7. Others, please specify - -
8. Total(A) 50.71 50.71
Ceiling as per the Act -NA*

* Section 197 of Companies Act, 2013 shall not apply vide MCA notification dated 5.6.2015

B. Remuneration to other directors:

(3 in Lakhs)

S.N

(0]

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Director

Total

1

Independent Directors

Mr Shankar Lal
Agarwal

Mr Hari
Mohan Johari

Ms Kavita
Chaudhary

eFee for attending board/committee

meetings — Sitting Fees

44000

44000

44000

132000

e Commission

¢ Others, please specify

Total(1)

44000

44000

44000

132000

Other Non-Executive Directors

eFee for attending board/committee
meetings

e Commission

¢ Others, please specify

Total(2)

Total(B)=(1+2)

132000

132000

Total Managerial Remuneration

132000

Ceiling as per the Act (@ 1 % of profits
calculated under Section 198 of the
Companies Act, 2013)

NA*

* Section 197 of Companies Act, 2013 shall not apply vide MCA notification dated 5.6.2015
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MDIMAN?SlERLmD)
n s
Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel Total
CEO CS CFO
Ms. Sumona
Majumdar
1 Gross salary
(a)Salary as per provisions contained - 9.36 - 9.36
insection17(1) of the Income tax Act,
1961
(b)Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income | - 2.08 - 2.08
Tax Act, 1961
(c)Profits in lieu of salary under section| - - - -
17(3) Income Tax Act,1961
2 | Stock Option - - - =
3 | Sweat Equity - - i -
4 | Commission - - - -
- as % of profit - - - -
5 | Others, please specify - - - =
Total - 11.44 - 11.44

VIl. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section  of | Brief Details of Penalty/ Authority Appeal
the description | Punishment/ [RD/NCLT/Court] | made.  If
companies Compounding fees any (give
Act imposed details)

There were no penalty/punishment/compounding of offences for breach of any section of Companies
Act against the company or its Directors or other officers in default, if any, during the year.

Place : Jaipur
Date : 24.12,2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

)

(Cmde Kamlesh Kumar (Retd.))
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 08884327
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Code of Conduct-Compliance Affirmation

This is to confirm that HSL has laid down a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for all the Board
Members and Senior Management of the HSL and the code is posted on the company website. The
board and Senior Management have affirmed compliance with the said Code for the financial year
ended 31% March, 2022.

For Hindustan Salts Limited

(Cmde Kamlesh Kumar (Retd.))
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 08884327

Place: Jaipur
Date: 24.12.2022
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Practicing Company Secretary

13230, Malviyn Nagnr
Near Kardhani Shopping Centre

Jalpur - 302017
Mob: 19 1-98R877250241
es,enmitingpmngl.com
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IANGE CERTIFICATE ON GORPORA INANCE,

To

The Members,.
Hindustan Salts Limited
Jaipur '

D,e'_at_' Sir,

I have examined the compliances of conditions-of Corporate Governance by Hindustan Salty

Limited (‘the Company')for the financial year ended on 31=March, 2022, as stipulated In the
Guidelines ‘on Corporate Governance by Central - Public Sector -Enterprises issued by
Government of India, Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises, Department of Publie
Enterprises(the Guidelines”). ‘

_l‘}_iave sruql_ig_q _th_e_ ;Rgport on Corporate Governance of the said Company and also examined the
relevant records and-documents maintained by the Company and furnished to me tor my review

- ‘The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governauce is the responsibility of Management of
- _.the Company. My examination was limited to review of the procedures and implementation

thereof on test basis, adopted by the Company. for ensuring the compliance with the

, conditions
'of Corparate Governance. .-

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the_explanation_giuen to me, |
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions as stipulated in the Guidelines in all

‘material respect except to__prow'de training to the new board members and Meeting of the Boanl
“-and audit committee in every three months. ‘ e

| further state that 1 have not verified the correctness and appropristeness
and it is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on-the financial statements SF s
company and also such compliancé is neither an assurance as to the further viability of the
company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the nmnafzér\in;nt has conducted the
affairs of the Company. oG TAGRENY | .

of (inanclalRecords

'Practicing Company Secretary
M.No.F 9632, CP 11673
UDIN: F009632D001254172
Date: 17/10/2022

Scanned with CamScanner
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b) READ WITH SECTION 129 (4) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
HINDUSTAN SALTS LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

The preparation of consolidated financial statements of Hindustan Salts Limited for
the year ended 31 March 2022 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act. 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of
the company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of
India under section 139 (5) read with section 129 (4) of the Act is responsible for expressing
opinion on the financial statements under section 143 read with section 129 (4) of the Act
based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report
dated 27 August 2022.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India have decided not to
conduct the supplementary audit of the consolidated financial statements of Hindustan Salts
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022 under section 143 (6)(a) read with section 129(4)
of the Act. ‘

For and on behalf of
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

dﬂ'fuia.
(S. Ahlladini Banday

Principal Director of Audit
(Industry & Corporate Affairs)
New Delhi

Place: New Delhi
Date: 18/10/2022

Scanned with CamScanner
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: MATHUR & CO.
a CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Hindustan Salts Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hindustan Salts
Limited (hereinafter referred to as the ‘holding company’) and its subsidiary (holding
company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31% March, 2022, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss and the consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Financial
Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of
our report, the aforesaid consolidated financial statement, give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their consolidated
state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March, 2022, its consolidated profit and its
= consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

5 Basis for Qualified Opinion

We draw attention, towards matters specified in Annexure —A on the basis of which we are
expressing qualified opinion over the consolidated financial statements.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the act (SAs). Our responsibilities
~ under those Standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI) together with ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there
under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by

financial statements.

C-33, Pankaj Singhvi Marg, Lal Kothi Scheme, Near Vidhan Sabha, Jaipur 302015

Ielﬁphnne C0141-2743928, 4033715, (M) 98290 56151 | Email : mathur_co@rediffmail. com
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Emphasis of Matter

1. We draw attention to Para 10 (ii) of Note No.1.3 and Note No.6 to the financial
statement regarding Retirement Benefits (Gratuity), which states that liability for
gratuity as on 31.03.2022 was provided for ' 196.18 lacs in the books, but no
investment was made as required under AS-15.

2. Attention is also invited to Note no. 29 “Contingent Liabilities and Capital
Commitments to the extent not provided for”, wherein liabilities for substantial
amount which may materially affect the financial statements of the company, on
various accounts have not been provided for.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of above matters.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report
Thereon

The company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Directors” Report, Management Discussion and Analysis, Report
on Corporate Governance and other Annexure to the Directors’ report but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

“Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that if there is a material misstatement
of this other information; we are required to report that fact. The other information is not
available as on date of signing the report, and hence we do not report on the information other
than the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s report thereon.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The holding company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash
- flows of the Group in accordance with Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of
the Act read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and other accounting
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principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
by the Directors of the holding company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated the financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
overseeing financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatement can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individual or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
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design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section
143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the company has adequate internal financial controls in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in auditors’ report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transaction and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.’

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For
the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been
audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with statement that we have compiled with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may be reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements of the subsidiary company, whose financial
statements reflect total assets of * 4235.89 lakhs as at 315 March, 2022, total revenue of °
E 4662.36 lakhs and net cash outflows amounting to * 7.41 lakhs for the year ended on that
date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have
been audited by other auditors’ whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management
and our opinion on the consolidated financial statementg, in so far ac it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-section
(3) and (11) of section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, is
based solely on the reports of the other auditors’.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

(b)  In our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept by the Group so far as
it appears from our examination of those books except in subsidiary company as
mentioned for the effects of the matter described in the basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph at Annexure-A;

(¢)  The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and
the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with
the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements except in subsidiary company as mentioned for the effects of the
matter described in the basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph at Annexure-A;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014; ; except AS-2 “Valuation of Inventories”, AS -15
“Employee Benefits” and AS-29 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent

Assets " TUR 2>\
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(e) In pursuance to the Notification No. G.S.R 463(E) dated 05-06-2015 issued by the
Ministry of Corporate affairs, Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining
to disqualification of Directors, is not applicable to the Government Company.

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in Annexure “C”,

(g) In pursuance to the Notification No. G.S.R 463(E) dated 05-06-2015 issued by the
Ministry of Corporate affairs, Section 197(16) of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining
to Managerial Remuneration, is not applicable to the Government Company.

(h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a.  The consolidated financial statements do not disclose the impact of pending
litigations on the consolidated financial position of the Group. (Refer to in
Note No. 29 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements).

b.  The company did not have any long - term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

c.  The company is not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund.

d. 1 The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

ii. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behal@?‘ \o \
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of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

iii. Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub clause [i]
and [ii] above, contain any material mis-statement.

e.  No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

3. Asrequired by section 143 (5) of the Act, we give in the Annexure “D” a statement on
the compliance to the direction issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India
in respect of the holding company. This statement has been prepared incorporating the
comments of the Auditor of the subsidiary company mentioned in his report.

For Mathur & Co.

. Chartered Accountants
) @R : FRN: 001952C
VA SN 7
! 'll (AN
(Manisha Maheshwari)
Place: Jaipur Partner
Date:  27.08.2022 M. No. 079617

UDIN: 22079417 ARK RET 5918
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Annexure-A

Forming part of Independent Auditor’s Report on Consolidated Financial Statements
of Hindustan Salts Limited for the year ended on 31% March, 2022

Basis for Qualified opinion

(Referred to in para under “Basis for Qualified opinion” of our report)

1) It has been observed that D-1 Mine Project at Mandi Unit was not operational during
the year and no extraction of salt is being carried out from this mine. The company is
doing limited extraction from a separate D-2 Mine. The operational utility and
commercial viability of this mine shall be ascertained and necessary adjustment in this
regard may be made at the earliest. It has also been observed that at Mandi unit of
holding company particulars of assets relating to addition during the years only are
available and not for the brought forward balances of assets. Therefore, the
depreciation as per Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013 has not been properly
charged. In absence of relevant details, the same cannot be quantified.

2) The provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) are applicable to the
Holding Company for the financial year 2021-22 as the Net profit for the immediate
preceding previous year was more than Rs. 5 Crore. The holding company has neither
incurred any expenditure on this account nor due provision has been made for CSR
liability. The expenditure are understated by Rs. 3.47 Lacs and profit overstated by
Rs. 3.47 Lacs on this account.

3) The holding company has received rent from letting out of part of its office premises
to M/s Instrumentation Limited for which no formal agreement is available on records
for period till January, 2022. It has been observed that such rental income is not
accounted for on regular basis and therefore, GST payable on this income is also
delayed on this account.

4) The holding company has given loan to its subsidiary company in previous years out
of the funds received as loan from Govt. of India, Ministry of Industry. Company is
required to pay interest as well as penal interest on the outstanding amount of loan
received from Govt. of India. During the year, the holding company has passed a
board resolution stating that since the Govt. of India is not charging any penal interest,
the holding company will also not charge any penal interest on loan given to its
subsidiary company. The rate of interest on loan to subsidiary was also fixed at 12%
per annum only. However, the loan received by the company from Govt. of India is at
different rates of interest ranging from 11.50% to 15.50% and penal interest is from
14.00% to 18.25%. As per the records, the Govt. of India during the year has charged
penal interest from the company on such loan, The reduction on rate of interest and
not charging penal interest from subsidiary company is therefore against the facts cyﬂf HRE
the matter. In absence of relevant details amount cannot be quantified.

C-33, Pankaj Singhvi Marg, Lal Kothi Scheme, Near Vidhan Sabha, Jaipur 302015
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5) The holding company has provided security deposit and performance security to
relevant courts/ authorities of Rs. 45.05 Lacs and Rs. 19.35 Lacs respectively in form
of Fixed Deposits Receipts. The accrued interest on such deposits has been included
in such Security deposit and performance seourity in place of being shown as accrued
interest on FDR. Security deposit and performance security are overstated by Rs.
2,06,763 and Rs. 7,17,021 respectively and accrued interest on FDR’s is understated
by Rs. 9,23,784.

6) The holding company has carried out trading activities at Ramnagar Unit but no stock
register was maintained for it. The modus for such activity was “Bill to Company’ and
“ship to customer” by the supplier i.e. Sambhar Salt Limited without having physical
delivery of goods at Ramnagar. The unit at year end has declared closing stock of Rs.
70,11,200. The disclosure of fact that such physical stock is lying elsewhere along
with its confirmation has not been stated in the financial statements.

7) It has been observed that large balances in following cases are being brought
forwarded from earlier years by holding company. It is suggested that the matter may
be finalized and necessary adjustments be made in this regard at the earliest :-

S. | Account Head Particulars Amount in Rs,
No.
1 Note- 12 Amount outstanding from M/s Gujrat | 1,98,88,958
Long term Loans & | Tech Cell Pvt. Ltd depicted under sub
Advances head “Other loans & advances”
2 | Capital Reserve Amount being depicted from last
many years. Nature & details not | 10,26,28,293.41
made available

8) Asreported earlier, the work of production of Magnesium Chloride was leased out by
the holding company to M/s Mayur Stone. This entity had discontinued the operations
in F.Y. 2018-19 but the lease agreement was not cancelled nor was any handing over /
taking over of the plant at that time was carried out. At the time of discontinuation of
the operation and as on beginning of the year certain debit and credit balances were
appearing in account of Mayur Stone in books of accounts of the holding company.
The details of same are enumerated hereunder :

L Amount receivable from Mayur Stone Rs. 2527262
I1. Amount due to Mayur stone

a)  Amount payable Rs. 1203900

b)  Security deposit Rs. 600000

¢)  Earnest money deposit Rs. 200000 Rs. 2003900

L. Net amount receivable from Mayur Stone Rs. 523362
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Accordingly, as at beginning of the year, the company was entitled to receive a sum of
Rs. 523362/ from Mayur Stone.

During the year, as per copy of note sheet, a sum of Rs, 9,90,000/- has been written
off as receivable from the company on account of value of stock of wood belonging to
Mayur Stone and lying at site of the company. However no documentary evidence in
this regard were provided to us. Apart from it, a further sum of Rs, 3,67,962/- was
also written off as receivable for which no approval is available on record. This sum
of Rs.3,67,962/- has been adjusted against amount of SD & EMD of Rs. 800000/-
depicted in books of account of the company leaving a sum of Rs. 432038/- as
payable to Mayur Stone. The write offs have not been approved by the board and no
approval for refund of SD & EMD is also available on record.

The net result of all these adjustment is that a sum of Rs. 4,32,038/- is now payable to
Mayur Stone against a sum of Rs. 5,23,362/- receivable from it when this entity
discontinued its lease arrangement with the Company.

9) As pointed out in the previous year’s supplementary audit :
a) The company has not disclosed the cost formulae used for valuation of
inventory / salt in progress and accordingly AS-2 for Valuation of Inventories
issued by ICAI has not been properly complied with.

b) The company has not made proper disclosure of additional information
regarding minority interest in subsidiary, net assets and share in profit etc.
pursuant to requirements of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013

10) The company has not bifurcated trade receivables into long term and short term as
required by the Revised Schedule -IIT of the Companies Act, 2013. The company has
depicted under Note 15, total trade receivables of Rs.67.81 lacs as on 31.3.2022
(Previous year Rs. 53.54 lacs). However, there are debtors of Rs. 32.72 lacs as on
31.3.2022 (Previous year Rs. 34.69 lacs) which are outstanding for a period of more
than 12 months and should be shown separately under the Note 13 “Other Non current
assets”,

11) The company has not bifurcated trade payables into long term and short term as
required by the Revised Schedule-ITT of The Companies Act, 2013. The company has
depicted under Note 8, total trade payables of Rs. 848.27 lacs as on 31.3.2022
(Previous year Rs.549.32 lacs.) However, there are trade payables of Rs. 359.08 lacs
as on 31.3.2022 (Previous year Rs.350.74 lacs) which are outstanding for a period of
more than 12 months and should be shown separately under Note 5 “Other Long term
liabilities™.

12) The numerator and denominator used for computation of various accounting ratios

have not been explained as required by the Revised Schedule III of The Companies
Act, 2013.
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13) As per the practice followed by the holding company, the head office on behalf of its
units make payments to different vendors and also receives payment from various
parties. The units make adjustment entries in this regard in accounts of the parties as
and when the relevant intimation is received from head office of holding company. It
is observed that the date of actual receipts and payments are not available with the
units and thus period wise outstanding of such parties cannot be evaluated properly
from the books of accounts of the units, Therefore, we are unable to comment on the
ageing schedule of debtors and creditors as depicted in the financial statements of
holding company.

14) We have observed in following cases of notes to the financial statements that details
stated in the consolidated financial statements do not match with individual
standalone financial statements of the group companies :

—_—

As per F. S. of Particulars of Amount As per
No | Subsidiary Company | head Consolidated F.S.
1 | Note 10 “Non-current | Amount depicted | 11.00 Lacs (P.Y. | Shown under Note
assets” under Long term | 12.96 Lacs) 15 “Trade
Trade receivables Receivables™
2 | Note 15 “Other Amount depicted | 141.10 Lacs Shown under head
Current assets” under recoverable | (P.Y. 306.87 Others in Note 17
in cash or kind Lacs) “Short term Loans
& Advances”
3 | Note 15 “Other Amount depicted | 9.58 Lacs (P.Y. | Shown under Note
Current assets” under Income Tax | 11.69 Lacs) 17 “ Short term
Deducted at loans and
source advances”
4 | Note 15 “Other Amount depicted | 3.68 Lacs (P.Y. | Shown under head
Current assets” under recoverable | 9.85 Lacs) Prepaid expenses in
in cash or kind Note 19 “Other
Current Assets”
L

15) All the notes mentioned in standalone financial statements of holding and subsidiary
company have not been fully incorporated line by line while preparing consolidated
financial statements.

16) The Statutory auditors of subsidiary company Sambhar Salts Limited have also issued
qualified opinion in their audit report over the financial statements, as under:-

L. Secured Long Term Trade Receivables Rs, 11.00 Lakhs (Note No. 13: Non-
Current Assets) and Trade Receivables of Rs. 34.81 Lakhs (Note No. 15)
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II.

III.

IV.

Company has not followed any procedure to obtain confirmation for their balances
featured for the FY 2021-22 as there is no system of seeking confirmation from such
parties.

Therefore, we are unable to comment on the realizability of such advances/dues, due
to uncertainty involved.

Trade Payables of Rs. 653.46 Lakhs (Note No. 8)
We draw kind attention to Note No. 8 of Financial Statements, where Rs. 245.26
Lakhs of Trade Payables are outstanding for more than 3 years.
Company has not followed any procedure to obtain confirmation of their outstanding
balances featured for the FY 2021-22 as there is no system of seeking confirmation
from such parties.
Therefore, we are unable to comment on the liability of such dues, due to uncertainty
involved.

Project Expenses (Including Solar Project) Rs. 80.84 Lakhs (Note No. 14: Non-
Current Assets)

We draw kind attention to Project Expenses (including Solar Project) under Note
No. 14 of Rs. 80.84 Lakhs which is pending for more than 3 years. The same amount
should either be written off or to be capitalized. Due to non-receipt of proper
clarification from the management of the company, we are unable to comment on
same.

Liability of GST on Penalty & Forfeiture of Security Deposit (Note No. 21)

We draw kind attention to Note No. 21 Other Income which Rs. 14.88 Lakhs on
account of Penalty and Forfeiture of Security Deposit. The company had not charged
and collected GST @18% amounting to Rs. 2.6784 Lakhs from the vendors.

Due to non-collection of GST, Profit before Tax is overstated by Rs. 2.6784 Lakhs
and Liability is understated by Rs. 2.6784 Lakhs. It is to be noted that the above
amount does not include liability of interest and penalty on GST not collected and
paid to the government, The same may be calculated at the time of collection and
payment and accordingly the liability may increase by same amount.

Contingent Liabilities (Note No. 29)

We draw kind attention to Note No. 29 of Financial Statements. The company had
not disclosed the impact of pending litigations on financial statements.

Due to absence of information and uncertainty involved, we are unable to comment
on same.
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VI.

Deficiency in allotment of Work Order for Operation and Maintenance of
Nawa Salt Refinery to M/s MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd. Work Order dated
01/12/2021

Brief Facts and Information of the above Works

a. Company has entered into a MOU with RSFCSC, Jaipur for supply of “Raj
Salt” Refined Iodized Free Flow Salt @Rs. 7850 per MT FOR
destination/godowns of RSFCSC in whole Rajasthan. Separate purchase order
for quantity will be issued by the RSFCSC, no minimum quantity of supply is
prescribed under MOU.

b. RSFCSC issued PO for supply of 171.350 MT amounting to Rs. 15,42,150/-
for supply of salt at various locations of Nagaur District which is to be
supplied within 30 days from confirmation of order. Other than this PO, 8§ PO
was also issued by RSFCSC for supply of salt amounting to Rs. 28,125/-.
Total salt supplied to RSFCSC during the FY 2021-22 was Rs. 13,45,098.

¢.  On the basis of PO received from RSFCSC, a proposal for engagement of
agency for processing and manufacturing of salt at Nawa Salt Factory was
prepared on 24/11/2021 by Purchase Committee of SSL, Sambhar.

d.  On the basis of proposal prepared by Sambhar unit. same was approved on
25/11/2021 by HTC at Head Office, Jaipur for selection of agency as per point
a) of point i) of Point 3.5.7 Single Tender Enquiry (STE) or Selection by
Nomination of Manual for Procurement of Works 2019.

€. Technical and Financial Proposals from 4 parties were received on 26/11/2021
and the same was evaluated by Purchase Committee Sambhar unit, approved
by HTC, Head Office on “26/11/2021” itself only.

f.  As per evaluation of HTC, lowest rate of MEB Geotech Pvt Ltd. was found
@Rs. 702 per MT in case of Industrial Salt and @Rs. 802 per MT for iodized
salt excluding GST @18%.

g Work order was issued on 01/12/2021 or 22/01/2022 in favor of M/s MFB
Geotech Pvt Litd.

h.  Condition to supply the spare parts by SSL vide work order dated 01/ 12/2021
was modified to spare parts may be purchased by M/s MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd.
and same will be reimbursed by SSL vide letter dated 12/02/2022. Reason for
relaxation/modification of condition was not clear.
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i Extension of 3 months was granted by SSL for Operation and Maintenance of
NSR vide letter dated 05/03/2022 to M/s MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd without any
sufficient orders.

J- In addition to Work Order dated 01/12/2021 and extension dated 05/03/2022
additional amount of Rs. 100 per MT or Rs. 90 per MT will be paid to M/s
MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd. for Loading vide letter dated 25/03/2022 issued by
SSL.

Detailed observations in reference to above tender on the basis of documents
provided are as under:

a. Copy of NIT issued by the company is not made available. Even no details of
NIT were available on website of the company.

b.  Copy of email from SSL unit to HTC Head Office Jaipur regarding forwarding
of Note Sheet dated 24/11/2021 was not available.

¢. Copy of email from HTC, Head Office Jaipur to Sambhar unit for forwarding
of approval of tender was not available.

d. Copy of email from SSI, Sambhar unit for forwarding of comparative chart of
BOQ to HTC Head Office Jaipur was not available.

e. Copy of email from HTC Head Office Jaipur to SSL Sambhar unit for
forwarding of approval to issue LOI/Award of Contract was not available.

f. No envelopes or copy of emails were available on files. It is not clear that how
the financial bids were taken by the management.

g. Documents related to technical specifications of bidder was not available on
record.

h.  Even KYC documents from the bidders were not taken by the company.

1. Vendor/Contractor registration form to be submitted duly filed along with all
the documents as required were not available on record.

j. In absence of technical documents, it is not clear, how the bidders were
technically qualified for O&M of NSR.

k. As per note sheet dated 26/11/2021, market survey was undertaken by the
Purchase Committee, however, no such market survey report was available on
record.




Continuation Sheet

MATHUR & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

. Comparative chart of monthly production by existing system, monthly sales,
stock in hand and profit on sale of manufactured goods was attached with the
proposal sheet dated 24/11/2021, even the same was not asked by HTC Head
Office Jaipur. Company was generating loss from sale of products by NSR.

m. Financial Bids were received from 4 different parties, the same tender cannot
be covered Clause 3.5.7 (i)(a) of Manual for Procurement of Works 2019,
Clause 3.5.7 is applicable only in case of Single Tender Enquiry.

n. No specific reasons are placed on record for issuance of work order of Rs.
1,14,30,000 excluding tax by opting STE clause 3.5.7 for supply of goods of
171.350 MT amounting to Rs. 15,42,150/-, while the company was already
selling the goods more than 500 MT monthly (Specially from NSR Unit in the
month of April 2021, June 2021, Sept 2021, Oct 2021 company was selling the
goods more than 1000 MT) and most of the existing sales from NSR unit were
generating loss.

0. Before issuing the extension order vide letter dated 05/03/2022, no comparison
chart was placed in record showing the actual difference in earlier system and
new system because no major order from RSFCSC was received by the
company after 18/11/2021 as total sales to RSFCSC during the year was of
only Rs 13,45,098 against the total orders of Rs. 15,70,275/- (15,42,150 +
28,125) and main reason to change the current system was urgent supply to
RSFCSC.

p. As per rectified order dated 25/03/2022, additional payment of Rs. 100/90 per
MT for loading of salt was approved retrospectively from 01/12/2021 on the
basis of conversation held between MD of MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd and
Competent Authority of SSL. Copy of letter regarding intimation from MFB
Geotech before loading of salt and approval from SSL was not available on
record. Even request letter for modification of terms and conditions of ori ginal
work order was not available on record.

On the basis of above facts/documents available on record and observations of such
documents, prime facie it seems that the Tender for O&M of Nawa Salt Refinery
was allotted to M/s MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd. by the management of the company to
give the unusual benefit to a particular vendor by avoiding all the rules and
regulations prescribed under Manual for Procurement of Works 2019.

Due to various uncertainty involved, consequential impact of the same on Financial
Statements is not unascertainable. TR
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VII. Deficiency in process of various works allotted, payments made/goods supplied
to M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s during the FY 2021-22 by
overriding rules and regulations.

Brief Facts and Information 2 work order allotted to the above vendor

I Work for Installation of New Static Fluid Bed Salt Drver

a. As per Work order No. 75 dated 16/04/2021 amounting to Rs. 39,30,500 plus
7,07,490 (GST) total amounting to Rs. 46,37,990/-., work was allotted for
supply of new static fluid bed salt dryer. As per work order, payment terms are

as under:
s 60% on receipt and acceptance of all requisite materials at site.
ii. 25% after 3 months of smooth operation of the equipment,

iii. Balance 15% after 12 months from the date of payment of 25% amount as
stated above,
iv, 10% Security Deposit

Details of Payments made are as under

S. No. Date Amount in Rs.
1 14/07/2021 15,00,000/-

2 15/07/2021 8,00,000/-

3 16/07/2021 3,57,804/-

b. As per work order, maximum payment can be done 60% of Basic Value i.e.,
Rs. 23,58,300/- (60% of 39,30,500). Excess payment of Rs. 2,99,504/- was
made by the management of the company,

¢. Rs. 6,61,500/- was adjusted towards Security Deposit of work allotted for
O&M of work at Gudha Salt Refinery on dated 30/09/2021.

d. Up to 01/06/2022, dryer was not working properly as per noting dated
01/06/2022 made on request letter of M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s
by the company official.

e. The bidder has raised Invoice No. 8 dated 26/05/2021 of Rs. 39,30,500/- plus
GST of Rs. 7,07,490/- total amounting to Rs. 46,37,990/-, however, as per
GSTR-3B of May 2021 submitted by the bidder turnover is NIL. Further as
per database available on GST Website www.gst.gov.in GST No. of the bidder
(08FIQPP2989J1Z5) was cancelled on 02/12/2021 and the bidder was
continuously issuing the tax invoices up to March 2022. Also, the bidder has
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not submitted the GSTR-1 from May 2021 to Dec 2021 and GSTR-3B from
June 2021 to Dec 2021,

II. Work for Operation & Maintenance of Gudha Salt Refinery

f. As per note sheet dated blank, signing date 01/07/2021, a proposal was
prepared for engagement of the contractor for O&M of work at Gudha Salt
Refinery. As per proposal prepared by the purchase committee, due to low
production of iodized/non-iodized salt current production cost is higher, hence
the same work is proposed to be given to the contractor. As per proposal note
selling price of refined salt was taken as Rs. 4500 per MT, while as per
available database from April 2021 to June 2021 major goods were sold at Rs.
3300 per MT. Cost of Raw Salt is taken at Rs. 800 per MT, however, company
is selling the same goods (named as “Sambhar Kyar Salt™) at Rs. 4000 per
MT. The same fact was concealed by the committee at the time of preparation
of proposal. During April 2021 to June 2021 total sales of Non-lodized
Refined Salt was only 463 MT and as per available database closing stock as
on 30/06/2021 was 1123.15 MT. As the selling price is same in current and
proposed system, it is not clear how the sale of non-iodized salt manufactured
by contractor will be enhanced. As per proposed note, estimated cost is taken
Rs. 66.15 Lakhs including GST for 3 months.

g. Same proposal note was approved by the HTC Head Office Jaipur on
01/07/2021 itself.

h. Inresponse to online tender floated, total 4 bids were submitted by the bidders.
Out of 4 bids, 3 were found non-responsive by the Technical Committee and
only 1 bidder M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s was found responsive
as per note sheet dated 03/08/2021. Work related to O&M of GSR was allotted
to M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s vide order dated 13/08/2021
amount to Rs. 66,15,000/- (inclusive of GST), contract period was from
13/08/2021 to 12/11/2021 and contractor has to deposit 10% SD.

i. A request letter was submitted by M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s on
14/08/2021 that, Price submitted in BOQ was Rs. 1050 per MT (excluding tax)
and tax may be borne by the company and bidder is not ready to do the work
below Rs. 1050 per MT (Excluding Taxes), hence revised work order may be
issued.

j.  As per note sheet dated 14/08/2021, on the request of the bidder, purchase
committee proposed to revise the work issued by placing excluding GST in
place of including GST. On the same day i.e., 14/08/2021, it is also approved
by the HTC, Head Office, Jaipur. Revised Work Order was issued on
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26/08/2021. However, the plant was handed over to the bidder on 18/08/2021
without receiving of SD of Rs. 6,61,500/-,

Continuation Sheet

k. On 6/10/2021, bidder had requested the management to allow him to lift up the
stock from godown at market price of Rs. 3600 per MT. On the same day as
per note sheet dated 06/20/2021, it was stated by committee at Sambhar that
approximately 1700 MT Salt of Sub-Standard quality is lying GSR Godown
and eventually M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s Nawa has shown the
interest to buy 5000 MT Salt and the same was approved to sale the goods at

Rs. 3000 per MT by offering 16.67%

at Rs. 3600 per MT.

discount, while bidder was ready to buy

. As per provided Tally Database, position of stock as on 05/10/2021 at GSR are

as under:
Sale
Highest between *Production
Opening as | Level of Closingas | 01/10/2021 | between Closing as
S on ' stock before | on to 01/10/2021 to | on
No. | Item Name 01/04/2021 | 06/10/2021 30/09/2021 | 05/10/2021 | 05/10/2021 05/10/2021

NON-IOD Refined

1 salt in 50 KG. 1333.15 1540.15 1070.5 9 141.62 1203.12
Non-Iod fine

2 | Powder in 50 KG. 65.4 71.9 59.1 0 2.82 61.92
Tod-Refined salt in

3 25 KG. 1.3 1.3 1.3 0 0 1.3
Iod-Fine powder in

4 | 50KG, 41.55 4773 47.3 0 0 473
Retension Non-Iod.

5 | In30KG, 26 49.85 49.85 0 0 4985
1 KG. PP Iod. D.M.

6 IN 50 KG. 1.25 1.25 1.25 0 0 125
Iodized 1/2 KG PP
Refined Salt (D.M)

7 in 25KG 54.856 92.481 38.856 0 0 38.856
lkg PP iod
shakambhari salt in
25 KG 0 26.375 26.375 0 0 26.375
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lodized 1/2 kg P.P
Refined Salt (D.M)
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9 in 25 Kg 0 10.5 10.5 0 0 10.5
1 kg Iodised
refined Salt S.S.in
10 | 25kg 0.15 0.15 0.15 0 0 0.15
1440.621

*Details of daily production are not available in provided database, hence to
arrive at the production of 5 days, total production of Oct 2021 is divided by
31 days and multiplied by 5 days.

As per note sheet dated 06/10/2021, it is stated that approximately 1700 MT
industrial refined salt is lying at GSR Plant which contains that insoluble
content above the permissible standard i.e., 0.5% (Permissible Limit is 0.35%
as per BIS Standard) considered as Sub-Standard Quality. It means at GSR
Plant finished goods other than sub-standard quality was also lying. On the
other hand, contractor is requesting that due to heavy production and on-
selling of goods by SSL there was no space available at GSR Plant, therefore
to continue the production contactor requested the company for lifting up the
stock by him from plant to sale the same in open market. However, as per
above sheet, total closing stock as on 05/10/2021 was only 1440.621 MT.

All the three statements i.e., books of accounts maintained by the company,
request dated 06/10/2021 submitted by the bidder and note sheet dated
06/10/2021 signed by Chief Manager and GM (Works) are contradictory to
each other.

On 29/09/2021, bidder M/s Manglam Engineeting Equipment’s submitted a
request letter that 10% Security Deposit amounting to Rs. 6,61,500/- can be
adjusted  from  25%  pending  amount vide order no.
24/GSR/Tender/Comm/2021-22/5305 dated 26/08/2021 and the same was
adjusted by Voucher No. 129 dated 30/09/2021 by the company. However, as
per noting dated 01/06/2022 made on request letter of M/s Manglam
Engineering Equipment’s, till 01/06/2022 dryer was not working properly.

From 12/10/2021 to 13//11/2021, goods worth Rs. 14,73,750/- were sold on
credit basis to M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s.

On 08/11/2021, a request letter was submitted by M/s Manglam Engineering
Equipment’s for extension of 2 months period of tender allotted to him which

was going to cxpire on 12/11/2021 on following grounds. ¥
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1. Due to short supply of raw salt.

ii. Due to oil leak of new heat exchanger which was repaired from Ahmedabad
and 10 days was taken to repair the same by the company.

iii.Due to closure of plant for 10 days before 25/09/2021, it was difficult to
acquire labour from market as the plant was available for running after
25/09/2021, And from 06/10/2021 to 26/10/2021 plant was shut down for non-
availability of godown. Thereafter, 26/10/2021 due to chatt puja staff was not
available. '

q. As per Letter dated 08/12/2021, extension of 2 months was granted to M/s
Manglam Engineering Equipment’s.

Detailed observations in reference to above tender on the basis of documents
provided are as under:

a.  Asalready reported in our previous audit report for the FY 2020-21, process of
allotment of work for supply of New Static Fluid Bed Salt Dryer, the bidder
M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s was technically qualified on the basis
of fabricated documents i.e., CA Certificate for turnover (giving the certificate
of turnover for the period when the proprietor of the firm was Minor),
Fabricated Work Orders and Experience Certificates in favour of bidder’s
firm.

b.  During the FY 2021-22, as per work order no. 75 dated 16/04/2021 work was
allotted to M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s for installation of Dryer.
Accordingly, dryer was installed by the bidder and invoice was raised on dated
26/05/2021. However, up to 01/06/2022 dryer was not working properly which
was duly acknowledged by the company’s official itself.

c.  Management of the company had made the payment to the bidder including
GST against invoice no. 8§ dated 26/05/2021. Howeyver, till date the bidder has
not furnished GSTR-1 for the month May 2021 and as per GSTR-3B
submitted for the month of May 2021 turnover shown was NIL. Management
of the company made GST payment to the bidder without verifying whether
the same has been deposited by the bidder to the government or not.

d.  Despite our observation given during the statutory audit for the FY 2020-21
again work order related to O&M of GSR was allotted on 13/08/2021 to M/s
Manglam Engineering Equipment’s on the basis of following fabricated
documents:
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i. Bidder has submitted Work Order No. M/NU/42 dated 15/04/2020 for O&M
work at Mahaveer Namak Udyog, Nawa. Period of works is not mentioned in
the work order. However, as per work order it is stated that “This is with
reference to your Discusses 08-04-2021 and sub sequent negotiotiation held on
dated 15-04-2021 on The Subject cited above, we are pleased to supply for
operation maintenance work our refinery order on you for the following
mentioned work”. Also, bidder has submitted certificate dated 12/01/2020 for
satisfactorily conduction of O&M work at Salt Refinery during the period
01/05/2020 to 30/11/2020. On study of both the documents, it clearly shows
that both documents were fabricated. No verification of documents was done
by the purchase committee, even no clarification was taken by the purchase
committee from bidder in reference to variances in dates in both documents.
On the basis of fabricated documents, work was allotted to M/s Manglam
Engineering Equipment’s.

e. Work Order on dated 13/08/2021 was issued for Rs. 66,15,000/- including
GST, however, same was revised to Rs. 66,15,000/- excluding GST on
14/08/2021. Following discrepancies were found in revision of work order:

i. In case of online bids where it was clearly mentioned in the EOI at Point No.
6.1 of Bid Evaluation Criteria that rates quoted by the bidder will including
GST and all other charges.

ii. On simple request of the bidder which was submitted on holiday i.e., Second
Saturday 14/08/2021, without doing any negotiation, the request was approved
by UTC and HTC on the same day 14/08/2021 which was Second Saturday.
No entry was found in inward receipt register maintained by the company,
order related to working of Administrative Office of Sambhar Unit and Head
Office Jaipur on holiday was not available on record.

iii. As per terms & conditions of work order, 10% Security Deposit was to be
deposited by the bidder, however no security deposit was deposited by the
bidder and the same was adjusted from the outstanding balance of M/s
Manglam Engineering Equipment’s which was on hold due to unsatisfactory
work of earlier work order as stated above.

iv. Copy of email from SSL unit to HTC Head Office Jaipur regarding forwarding
of Note Sheet dated 14/08/2021 was not available.

v. Copy of email from HTC, Head Office Jaipur to Sambhar unit for forwardmg
of approval for revised work order was not available. 0
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f. Extension of 2 months was granted to the bidder on various grounds which
were contradictory from the available records as stated ahove

g Non-lodized salt was sold to M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s at Rs.
3000 per MT while the bidder was ready to purchase the same at Rs. 3600 per
MT. It was not clear why the discount of Rs. 600 per MT was given by the
management voluntarily itself.

h.  As per routine procedure, no credit sales are made, however, all the sales to
M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s were made on credit. Approvals
related to same was not available on record and it is not clear why the credit
sales were made to specific vendor M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s.

1. GST Certificate of M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s was cancelled on
02/12/2021, however, the bidder had issued tax invoices no. MEE/21 dated
24/01/2022 and invoice mo. MEE/22 dated 24/01/2022 having total GST
amount of Rs. 3,32,167.50 which was duly account for by the company in its
books of accounts for the FY 2021-22.

j- M/s Manglam Engineering Equipment’s was not having any experience in
O&M work which is clearly shown from the total output of 3152.975 MT
during 13/08/2021 to 12/01/2022 against the estimated production of 2100 MT
per month as per issued work order. Out of which 1700 MT of goods produced
was sub-standard quality (as per order sheet dated 06/1 0/2021).

On the basis of above facts/documents available on record and observations of such
documents, prime facie it seems that the Tender for Installation of New Static Fluid
Bed Salt Dryer O&M work of Gudha Salt Refinery was allotted to M/s Manglam
Engineering Equipment’s by the management of the company to give the unusual
benefit to individual vendor by avoiding all the rules and regulations,

Due to various uncertainty involved, consequential impact of the same on Financial
Statements is not unascertainable.

VIIL.  Liability of GST on Payments made to M/s MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd. against
Work Order dated 01/12/2021 for Operation & Maintenance of Nawa Salt
Refinery

a.  As per invoices submitted by MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd. invoices are raised as
Supply of Refined Salt containing HSN Code 2501 also booked as Refined

Salt in Tally Data by SSL and payment was also made by the company, while

as per Work order dated 01/12/2021 work was allotted for Operation &
Maintenance of NSR. And as per terms & conditions of work order quoted
rates were excluding GST. Amended work order were not available on regg;gfﬁ:g
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b.  Since the work was allotted for Operation & Maintenance i.e., Service, SSL
was liable to pay GST @18% to M/s MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd. However, MFB
Geotech Pvt Ltd had used incorrect HSN Code for supply of salt i.e., goods to
the company which was duly acknowledged by the company by booking the
same as Purchases of Goods in its books of accounts for the FY 2021-22. On
the basis of facts and information prime facie available to us, it seems that
MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd had used incorrect HSN Code for the purpose of tax
evasion which was accordingly assisted by the management of the company by
the accounting the same as Purchases of Salt.

c.  Also, we wish to draw kind attention to Note No. 21 (Manufacturing
Expenses) of Financial Statements for the FY 2021-22 in which Purchases of
Refined Salt-NSR was also treated as Expenses by the company which clearly
shows that the company is treating the same as Direct Expense.

d.  Therefore, GST liability amounting to Rs. 19,44,000/- may arise on Sambhar
Salts Limited in future and the impact of same on financial statements was not
acknowledged by the company in its financial statements. However, the above
amount does not include Interest and Penalty leviable if any.

Due to non-recognition of GST amount of Rs. 19.44 Lakhs resulted in overstatement
of Profit Before Tax by Rs. 19.44 Lakhs and understatement of liabilities by Rs.
19.44 Lakhs. It is to be noted that the above amount does not include liability of
interest and penalty on GST not collected and paid to the government. The same
may be calculated at the time of collection and payment and accordingly the liability
may increase by same amount.

Liability of TDS on Payments made to M/s MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd. against Work
Order dated 01/12/2021 for Operation & Maintenance of Nawa Salt Refinery

Company had treated the transactions with M/s MFB Geotech Pvt Ltd. as Purchases
in the books of accounts and accordingly not deducted the TDS u/s 194C of Rs.
1,92,600/- (After deduction TDS of Rs. 23,398 u/s 194C) viz-a-viz deducted TDS
u/s 194Q of Rs. 3,848/-.

Due to non-deduction of TDS amount of Rs. 1.926 Lakhs resulted in understatement
of Trade Payables (For Others) by Rs. 1.926 Lakhs and overstatement of Trade
Payables (For Expenses) by Rs. 1.926 Lakhs. It is to be noted that the above amount
does not include liability of interest and penalty on TDS not deducted and paid to the
government. The same may be calculated at the time of deduction and payment and
accordingly the liability may increase by same amount. 3




MATHUR & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

IX.

Improper Accounting in Bank Accounts

Transactions related to various banks accounts maintained at Head Office level are
recorded in the books of accounts maintained at Sambhar Unit by debiting or
crediting to “Sambhar Salts Limited, Jaipur”. Even no books of accounts are
maintained at Head Office, Jaipur.

Due to uncertainty involved and improper accounting adopted by the management of
the company, we were unable to verify the payments/receipts of such bank accounts.
The consequential impact of the same on Financial Statements is not
unascertainable.

For Mathur & Co.
) Chartered Accountants
) f;u FRN: 001952C

Place: Jaipur
Date: 27.08.2022

#
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e (Manisha Maheshwari)
Partner
M. No. 079617
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“Annexure-B”

Forming part of Independent Auditor’s Report on Consolidated Financial Statements
of Hindustan Salts Limited for the year ended on 31 March, 2022

(Referred to in Para 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of
Our report of even date)

With reference to the Annexure B referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report to the
members of the Company on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2022, we report the following:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, following
company incorporated in India and included in the consolidated financial statements, have
unfavorable remarks, qualifications or adverse remarks given in their reports under the
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (CARO) :

S. | Name of the | CIN Holding Clause number of the
No. | entity Company/ | respective CARO report
Subsidiary | which is unfavorable or
qualified or adverse
1. | Hindustan U14220RJ1958G0I1001049 | Holding i(a), (b), (c) & (d),
Salts Limited ii (a), iii (c) & (d),
ix (a), xiv (a), xx (a)
2. | Sambhar U14220R11964GOI001188 | Subsidiary | 1 (b), () & (d), 2 (),
Salts Limited 8,9 (a), 11 (a), 14 (a)

For Mathur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 001952C

Place: Jaipur
Date: 27.08.2022

(Manisha Maheshwari)
Partner
M. No. 079617
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ANNEXURE - C

Z (Forming part of the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated Financial
Statements of Hindustan Salts Limited for the year ended on 31 March, 2022)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’)

(Referred to in para 2 (f) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of
our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Hindustan Salts
Limited (“the Company™) and its subsidiary company incorporated in India as at 31%
March, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended and as on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the company and its subsidiary company incorporated
in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
respective internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company and its
subsidiary company incorporated in India considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over .Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

-~ Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, and the Guidance Note, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

C-33, Pankaj Singhvi Marg, Lal Kothi Scheme, Near Vidhan Sabha, Jaipur 302015
Telephone : 0141-2743028, 4033715, (M) 68290 56151 | Email : mathur co@rediffmail.com
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditors of the subsidiary company incorporated in India, in terms of their reports referred
to in the “Other Matter” paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Group’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial teporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and '

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate. /
?.
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Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the
following material weaknesses have been identified as at 31 March, 2022:

a) The Group has no proper policies and procedures for periodical physical verification
of fixed assets and inventories of the company. During the year under
consideration no physical verification of fixed assets has been conducted by the
company. As reported to us, physical verification of inventory was not conducted at
any unit. As reported to us, physical verification of inventory was not conducted at
any unit but however, the management has written off inventory at its Kharagodha
Unit.

As per the auditor of subsidiary company, their team visited sambhar unit for physical
verification on 31% March 2022, however, no such verification was undergoing by the
committee as on 31% March 2022. Although, they have received the physical
verification report from the management later on.

b) The internal audit of the Holding Company is being carried by the independent firm of
Chartered Accountants and looking to the size, nature and volume of transactions, the
same needs to be strengthened.

¢) Internal Control System of the subsidiary company with regards to Tender Evaluation,
Tender Processing, Cost-Benefit Analysis, Estimation of Tendering Cost, Adequacy &
Effectiveness of Procurement Process and various other matters related to Procurement
is not operating effectively. Also, during the audit process it has been observed that
tender documents were designed and process for evaluation of tenders were outlined to
benefit the particular identified bidders only.

d) The group lacks an appropriate control system for obtaining third party balance
confirmations for various advances & liabilities. Further, the group does not reconcile
the periodic balances with the confirmations, which could potentially result is material
misstatement of the Financial statements & may lead to fraudulent activity resulting in
financial losses. The groups’ internal control over existence, completeness, valuation
& allocation of fixed assets is not operating effectively.

e) The Subsidiary company has no comprehensive model for internal control over
financial reporting incorporating risk assessment, control process and gap tracking
along with the description of objective, process and risk associated thereof, as per the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

f) The subsidiary’s internal control system for identification & allocation of overheads to
inventory was also not operating effectively. These could result in material

misstatements in the corporation’s assets & liabilities, inventory & expense accounts

balances. / SUR g\{_\ﬂ\
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g) Group’s internal control system lacks formal reconciling the balances of the banks/
third parties, which could potentially result in material misstatement in regard to carry
forward of balances in the financial statements.

h) The subsidiary company’s internal control system of accounting on real time basis is
not operating.

i) Group’s internal control system with regard to matters described in Annexure “A” to
the Independent Auditor’s Report for the FY 2021-22 is not operating effectively.

In our opinion, except for the effects / possible effects of the material weaknesses described
above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the group has
maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Group considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the
nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2022 financial
statements of the Group, and these material weaknesses does not affect our opinion on the
financial statements of the Group.

Other Matter

Our aforesaid report under section 143 (3) (i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting, in so far as it relates to
subsidiary company, a company incorporated in India is based on the corresponding report of
the auditor of subsidiary company.

For Mathur & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 001952C
Place: Jaipur e ol d
Date: 27.08.2022 '
_ (Manisha Maheshwari)
Partner
M. No. 079617
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Annexure-D

(Forming part of Independent Auditors’ Report on Consolidated Balance Sheet of

Hindustan Salts Limited for the year ended on 31st March, 2022)

Compliance to the Directions u/s 143 (5) of the Act by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India

(Referred to in para 3 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”)

Particulars

Auditors’ Reply

Impact on Financial
Statements

Whether the company has
system in place to process all the
accounting transactions through
IT  system? If yes, the
implications of processing of
accounting transactions outside
IT system on the integrity of the
accounts along with the financial
implications, if any, may be
stated.

Holding Company is maintaining
accounting transactions through Tally
Software at all its units i.e. Kharagodha
Unit, Mandi Unit and Ramnagar Unit as
well as at its Head office.

Subsidiary company, Sambhar Salts
Limited is not having the system in place
to process all the accounting transaction
through IT system. However, accounting
entry being done through Tally ERP 9.

No impact on
standalone financial
Statements

Not ascertainable on
financial statements
of Subsidiary
company, Sambhar
Salts Limited

Whether there is any
restructuring of any existing loan
or cases of waiver / write off of
debts / loans / interest etc. made
by a lender to the company due
to the company’s inability to
repay the loan? If yes, the
financial impact may be stated.

As informed to us, there is no such case
of restructuring of any existing loan or
loan/interest etc. made by a lender to the
holding company.

In respect of Subsidiary Company,
Sambhar Salts Limited, there is no
restructuring of any existing loan or cases
of waiver / write off of debts/ loans/
interest etc. made by a lender i.e.
Hindustan Salt Limited , due to the
company’s inability to repay the loan.

No impact on
standalone financial
Statements

No Impact

Whether funds received /
receivables for specific schemes
from Central / State agencies
were properly accounted for /
utilized as per its term and
conditions? List the cases of
deviation.

Based on the information available and
according to the information and
explanations given to us, the holding
company has not received any fund for
specific schemes from central / state
agencies during the year.

However, the holding company has
received grant for payment of pension to
ex- employees of salt department. The
same was properly recorded and no

deviation was observed.

C-23, Pankaj Singhvi Marg;,

Lal Kothi Scheme, Near Vidhan Sabha, Jaipur 302015
T@_Iephone *0141-2743028° 4033715, (M) 98290 56151 ! Email - -n\a‘l‘hur_c'nf@rodif'l:nﬁﬁ'nl com

No adverse impact on
financial Statements

except routing of it in
books of accounts of
its holding company,
Salts

Hindustan
Limited.
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Not ascertainable on
Subsidiary Company, Sambhar Salts | financial statements
Limited has not received / receivable the of Sabsid
fund for specific scheme from Central u
company, Sambhar
Govt.& State Agency except plan S 8
scheme, for payment of pension of ex alts Limited
salt department employees through its
holding company and which was properly
account for and utilized as per its term
and condition.
For Mathur& Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 001952C
'} o '\.)-r-.-\-:.i‘".'f:_]_
SDAGCES> (Manisha Maheshwari)
Place: Jaipur (Partner)
Date: 27.08.2022 M. No. 079617
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HINDUSTAN SALTS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

('Z in Lakh)
PARTICULARS Note | FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
No. 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
A. EQUITY AND LIABILITIE:!
1. SHARE HOLDER'S FUND
(a) Share Capital 2 5,205.96 5,205.96
& (b) Reserve & Surplus 3 (2,858.80) (4,102.99)
(C) Money Received Against Share Warrant - -
2. SHARE APPLICATION MONEY PENDING
ALLOTMENT - &
3. NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Long Term Borrowings 4 - 60.00
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) - =
(¢) Other Long Term Liabilities 5 103.35 109.76
(d) Long Term Provisions 6 408.05 451.92
- 4. CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Short Term Borrowing 7 1,241.29 1,181.29
(b) Trade Payables 8
(A) Total outstanding dues of Micro
' enterprises and small enterprises 89.71 20.74
3 (B) Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than
Micro enterprises and small enterprises : '758.56 5.8.58
(c) Other Current Liabilities 9 3,318.14 3,138.87
(d) Short Term Provisions 10 20.50 -
TOTAL 8,286.76 6,594.13
B. ASSETS
1. NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible
Assets 11
— (i) Property Plant & Equipment 2,574.63 2,280.07
(i) Intangible Assets 0.40 0.35
(iii) Capital Work-In-Progress 22.71 41.59
(iv) Intangible Assets under Development - *
~ {b) Non Current Investments 2 =
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 29.19 -
- (d) Long term Loans and Advances 12 201.62 201.62
(e) Other Non Current Assets 13 275.20 401.72
3,103.75 2,925.35
2. CURRENT ASSETa
= (a) Current Investments = =
(b) Inventories 14 1,347.24 1,496.15
= {c) Trade Receivables 15 67.81 53.54
(d) Cash & Cash Equivalents 16 3,40,%8.32 1,591.44
= (e) Short Term Loans and Advances 17 248.94 481.52
(f) Other Current Assets 18 50.70 46.13
5,183.01 3,668.78
TOTAL 8,286.76 6,594.13
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES
— ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 1 to 30 4

- s grmmt O TN

v Yadav)
- Company Secretary

{Sandeep Kumar Tak)
GGM.(F&A) Director

DIN -07182357

(Shankar Lal Agan‘v;') {CMDE {g;;’h's'ﬁfix.umar(netdn

Chairman and Managing Director
DIN -08884327

in terms of our report of even date annexed hereto

For Mathur & Co
Chartered Accountants

ﬁ
Place : Jaipur

v Dated : 2 -

L/ oL ’-4’— Y —

Partner
Membership No. 079617

(Manisha Maheshwari)

‘\\{\\\ Firm Registration No, 001952C
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HINDUSTAN SALTS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

{T" in Lakh)
FIGURES FOR THE | FIGURES FOR THE
PARTICULARS . Note YEAR YEAR
No. 2021-22 2020-21
REVENUE :-
I Revenue from Operations 19 6,603.01 3,736.82
II Other Income 20 594.34 354.84
III Total Income 7,197.35 4,091.66
IV EXPENSES :-
Cost of Materials Consumed 21 1,858.96 1,303.94
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 1,176.14 399.67

Less: Inter Company Purchase =
Changes in inventories of finished goods work-in-

progress and Stock-in-Trade 22 197797 (755.51)
Employee Benefits Expense 23 849.85 736.77
Finance costs 24 270.73 301.75
Depreciation and amortization expense 362.12 401.47
Other expenses 25 1,147.54 629.25
Total Expenses 5,823.11 3,017.35

V PROFIT BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL AND

EXTRAORDINERY ITEMS & TAX 1,374.24 1,074.31
VI EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS 206.50

Prior Period income (Expenses) /Adjustment Net 26 60.70 39.79
VII PROFIT BEFORE EXTRAORDINERY ITEMS & TAX 1,228.44 1,114.10
VIII EXTRAORDINERY ITEM

IX PROFIT BEFORE TAX 1,228.44 1,114.10
X Tax Expenses

Current Tax 20.50 -
Deferred Tax -29.19 -
XI PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD FROM CONTINUING

OPERATIONS 1,237.13 1,114.10
XII PROFIT (LOSS]) FROM DISCONTINUING

OPERATIONS - -
XIII TAX EXPENSES OF DISCONTINUING

OPERATIONS - -
XIVPROFIT FROM DISCONTINUING OPERATION

AFTER TAX - -
XV PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 1,237.13 1,114.10
Adj of unrealised Profit in Closing Stock - -
Adj of Minority Interest 434.16 213.80
XVI PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 802.97 900.30
XVII EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE: 27

Basic EPS (in Rs.) 237.64 214.00
Diluted EPS (in Rs.) 237.64 214.00

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES
ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i\va/ U\ N J{J 7

(Vikas Yadav) (Sandeep Kumar Tak)  (Shankar Lal Agarwal) (CMDE Kamléh Kumar(Retd))
Company Secretary G.G.M.(F&A) Director Chairman and Managing Director
DIN -07182357 DIN -08884327

in terms of our report of even date annexed hereto
For Mathur & Co
- Chartered Accountants
QUR &\ 1 e
A ~_ Firm Registration No. 001952C
?_,/'_-\\_ .;\
<) (@A \ ;
* ; ) ' S TP S
o 1% Ip‘}) L e
~/ (Manisha Maheshwari)

A // Partner
£0ACCSY" Membership No. 079617

Place : Jaipur ’?(:;\@
Dated ‘N
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~
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HINDUSTAN SALTS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2022

(" Zin Lakn;
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit/(Loss) before Tax and Extraordinary Items 1,228.44 1,114.10
A Adjustments for
Depreciation 363.80 403.39
Capital Reserve (1.57) (1.78)
Provision for Income Tax (20.50)
Provision for Leave Encashment & D.C.R.G. (43.89) (54.11)
Interest Expenscs 270,73 301,75
Other non current assets 126.52 33.73
Interest Income (103.98) (62.60)
Profit From Fair Price Shop 0.20
B Operating Profit before working capital changes 1,819.55 1,734.68
C Change in working Capital
Short Term Borrowings - E
Trade Payables 298.95 (142.01)
Other Long Term Liabilities (6.41) 109.76
Other Current Liabilities 259.77 56.10
Inventories 148.91 (641.32)
Trade Receivables (14.27) (13.17)
Short Term Loans and Advances 232.58 44.29
Other Bank Balance (1,892.42) (173.31)
Other Current Assets (4.57) (5.64)
D Cash generated from operations 842.08 969.38
E Adjustments for direct tax paid o =
F Net Cash Flow from Operative Activities 842.08 842.08 969.38 969.38
G Cash Flow from investing Activities
Purchase of fixed assets & Capital W.I.P. (630.88) 50.47
Interest Income 103.98 : 62.60
Security Deposits - (526.90) (259.44) (146.37)
H Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Net proceeds from long term borrowing (60.00) {60.00)
Shares Capital Received
Interest Expenses (270.73) (330.73) (301.75) (361.75)
I Net changes in Cash and Cash equivalent (15.54) 461.26
J Cash and Cash equivalent at the beginning of Fin. Year 593.76 132.50
K Cash and Cash equivalent at the end of the Fin. Year 578.22 593.76

1. Cash Flow Statements has been prepared on indirect menthod as per AS-3

2. FDRs of Rs. 95.68 lakh pledged with SBI, Jaipur, Kharaghoda and Mandi (previous year Rs 91.49 Lakh With SBI)) and FDR of 2. 583.50 lakhs

pledged with PNB [previous year %. 557.11 Lakh and FDR of Rs 9.65 Lakhs with SBI Sambhar Lake previous year Rs 9.22 llakhs} towards security for
OD Loan. )

Cash and Cash equivalent at the end of the Fin. Year

As per Cash Flow Statement 578.22 593.76
Includs the FDR more then 3 Months 2,890.10 997.68
Total as per Note 16 : Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,468.32 1,591.44
L L
\ =A . ,"'Jl il
\\\F\wf %LL_ NN —— — /—2':"'
(Vikas Yadav) (Sandeep Kumar Tak) (Shankar Lal Agarwal) (CMDE Kamlesh Kumar(Retd))
Company Secretary G.G.M.(F&A) Director Chairman and Managing Director
DIN -07182357 DIN -08884327

in terms of our report of even date annexed hereto
For Mathur & Co
R Chartered Accountants
S O\ Firm Registrati
@ gistration No. 001952C
i o\

A\ N p
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Place : Jaipur \*?- %—Q/ Partner
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1.1

1.2

NOTE NO. — 1: - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE YEAR
ENDED ON 31* MARCF, 2022.

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The Consolidated Financial Statements relate to Hindustan Salts Limited (the Company) and
its subsidiary, Sambhar Salts Limited (the subsidiary). The Consolidated Financial
Statements have been prepared on the following basis:-

(@)

(i)

(iii)

@iv)
(a)

(b)

)

The Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiary have been combined on a
line-by-line basis by adding together the book values of like items of Assets, Liabilities,
Income and Expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group balances, intra-group
transactions and unrealised profits or losses as per Accounting Standard (AS) 21 —
“Consolidated Financial Statements”.

The Financial Statements of the subsidiary consolidated are drawn upto the same
reporting date of the Company, i.e. 31% March, 2022.

The excess of the Company’s portion of equity of the subsidiary as at the date of its
investment over the cost of its investment is treated as Capital Reserve on
Consolidation. The excess of cost to the Company of its investment in subsidiary over
the Company’s portion of equity as at the date of investment is treated as Goodwill on
Consolidation.

Minority Interest in the net assets of Consolidated subsidiary consists of:
The amount of equity attributable to the minorities at the date of Financial Statements
of the subsidiary for immediately preceding period for the basis of consolidation.

The minorities share of movements in equity at the date of Financial Statements of the
subsidiary for immediately preceding period for the basis of consolidation.

Minority interests’ share of net profit for the year of consolidated subsidiary is defined
and adjusted against the profit after tax of the consolidated company.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Name of Subsidiary Company Country of | Ownership in %

Incorporation

Current | Pervious
Year Year

SAMBHAR SALTS LIMITED INDIA 60% 60%

The Company has acquired the subsidiary company, Sambhar Salts Limited in the year 1964

and

issued for the basis of consolidation.

it is impracticable to draw the Financial Statements of the Subsidiary Company for the

W e F—— -+
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1.3 OTHER SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY

1.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost
convention on the basis of going concern, with revenue recognised and expenses

accounted for on accrual system of accounting,

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of Financial Statements requires estimates and assumptions which
affected the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the
reporting period. The difference between the actual results and estimates are

recognised in the period in which the results are known or materialised.

INVESTMENTS

Investments are classified into Current and Non-Current Investments. Current
Investments are stated at lower of cost or market value. Non-Current Investments are
stated at cost and provision for diminution in value is made only if such decline is

other than temporary in the opinion of the management.

CLASSIFICATION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS CURRENT AND
NON CURRENT

All assets and liability are classified as current or non-current as per the companies
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in schedule III to the Companies Act
2013 Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for
processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalent, 12 months has been
considered by the company for the purpose of current — non-current classification of

assets and liabilities.
VALUATION OF INVENTORIES/SALT IN PROCESS

(1) Stores & Spares are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower
except otherwise mentioned. J

(i)  Raw materials and packing materials are valued at cost or net realisable value
whichever is lower except otherwise mentioned.

(iii)  Released material and scrap is valued at estimated realisable value and Assets
(Scraped) is valued at book value.

(iv)  Loose tools those exceeding Rs. 750/- added during the year. Loose tools

costing Rs. 750/- or less purchased during the year are charged }o—gwq‘gvcnuc
under respective heads.

i /’__\ \ \ -
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(v) Salt, Bromine stocks and Work in Progress are valued at cost/Net Realisable
Value whichever is lower.

. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and on hand and
short term deposit with an original maturity of 3 months or less, and maturity more
than 3 Months are shown in other bank balances which are subject to an insignificant

risk of changes in value.

. RECOGNITION OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

Revenue / Income and expenditure / cost are generally accounted on accrual basis as
they are earned or incurred. Revenue from sale of goods recognized when the

significant risk and reward of ownership has been transfer to the buyer.

. FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTION

The expenditure in foreign currency is accounted for at the rate prevailing on the date
of transaction. Any income or expenses on account of exchange rate difference either

on settlement or a transaction is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

. PROVISION FOR BAD AND DOUBTFUL TRADE RECEIVABLES AND

ADVANCES

Trade Receivables and Advances outstanding for more than 3 years are reviewed at
the close of the year and provision made on case to case basis in case of uncertainty in

the realisation of outstanding amount, in the opinion of the management.

. RETIREMENT BENEFITS
(1) Pension
The Payment of Pension with regard to pensioner charges for the staff
absorbed in the company from Salt Department is being paid from the Grant-
in-Aid received from Department of Heavy industries, Govt. of India, New

Delhi and is passed on to Pension Fund Trust.

(i)  Gratuity
Gratuity is administered by a separate irrevocable Trust which has taken a L.I.C.
Policy covering all the eligible employees except Agarias - Company's piece-

rate workers, and eligible daily paid workers in whose case the liability is

provided as per the payment of Gratuity Act-1972. No liability is provided /ftirj
Y
gratuity in respect of work charged staff for the period prior to the formatign ofi 4, |
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the Company. Demands made by the Trust including the Annual Renewal
Premium of the L.L.C. Policy after taking 1st October of the year are charged to

Statement of Profit & Loss.

(iii)  Leave Encashment

Liability for leave due upto end of the accounting year has been provided on
the assumption that such benefits are payable to all employees at the end of the

Accounting Year.

(iv)  Expenditure incurred on VRS are being written off in five years in equal

instalments.

11. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION

(i) Fixed Assets are valued at historical cost on consistent basis and are net of
refundable taxes and levies wherever applicable. All cost relating to
acquisition of fixed assets till commissioning of such assets are capitalised.

(i)  Depreciation on fixed assets is being provided consistently on written down
value method over useful life of assets specified in Schedule II of the
Companies Act 2013 and 100% depreciation has been provided on the assets

costing Rs. 5,000/~ or less acquired during the year.

(iii)  In subsidiary company, Depreciation on Gudha Jhapog Dam has been charged
on straight line method (SLM) in 40 years as per decision dated 26-09-1980 of
Board of Directors

12. BORROWING COST :

Borrowing costs that are attributable to acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset
is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for intended
use. All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(1)  INITIAL RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

Intangible assets that are acquired by the company, which have defined useful

life, are recognized at cost. Subsequent measurement is done at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes

any directly attnibutable incidental expenses necessary to make the a ,':‘ér\‘li%c;‘:}\

ready for its intended use.




(i) DERECOGNITION

An intangible assets is derecognized when no future economic benefits are
expected from their use or upon their disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of
an item of intangible assets are determine by comparing the proceeds from
disposal with the carrying of intangible assets and are recognized in the

statement of profit and loss.

(i) AMORTIZATION

Cost of software recognized as intangible assets is amortized on written down
valuee method over a period of legal right to use or 3 years whichever is less.
Other intangible assets are amortized on straight line method over a period of

legal right to use or life of the related plant whichever is less.

14. GRANT-IN-AID

Grant-in-aid received / sanctioned during the year from Cess Fund against Completed
/ Capital / Development work is transferred to Capital Reserve Account except as
otherwise stated. In that case the depreciation on such subsidised assets is being
charged to Capital Reserve and Statement of Profit and Loss in the ratio of Grant in
aid received and cost borne by the Company.

Against Kacha works is directly credited to Profit & Loss Account.in subsidiary

The Payment of Pension with regard to pensionary charges for the staff absorbed in
the company from Salt Department is being paid from the Grant-in-Aid received
from Department of Heavy industries Govt. of India New Delhi and is passed on the

Pension Fund Trust.

15. PROVISION FOR WASTAGES ON SALT STOCKS

Physical verification of salt heaps on accurate and reliable basis is not feasible because
of the irregular shapes of salt heaps. Actual deficit / wastages are adjusted in the
accounts of the financial year in which the heaps are finally cleared. However, provision
for wastages @10% of the quantity produced / stored during the financial year and @
5% on the opening stock of the year is made in respect of salt heaps not finally cleared
during the year. In Subsidiary the provision are made for wastages @5% of the quantity

produced/stored during the financial year and @2.5%per annum on the opening st

L
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in respect of heaps not finally cleared after adjusting the excess provision if any on

heaps finally cleared during the year.

The holding co is outsourced its production facility & does not carry any inventory of

manufacturing item accordingly policy in the Company & its subsidiary as per AS 21
applicable

16. APPORTIONMENT OF COMMON CORPORATE OFFICE EXPENSES

(1) There is a common Chairman & Managing Director for Hindustan Salts Ltd.
(Holding Company) and Sambhar Salts Ltd (Subsidiary Company). In the
absence of any specific mention in the terms of his appointment as regards
sharing of the remuneration the same is apportioned between the two
Companies in the ratio of 25% and 75% respectively.

(i)  The Corporate Office common expenses, depreciation and interest (including
Chairman and Managing Director's remuneration) and receipts have been
apportioned 25% between the holding Company and 75% in its subsidiary
Company (Sambhar Salts Ltd.).

17. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

In respect of the transactions pertaining to the period prior to the current accounting
year, the Company follows the practice in conformity with the Accounting
Standards.

18. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research and development cost (other than cost of fixed assets acquired) are charged

as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

19. TAXATION
@) Current Income Tax is determined on the basis of taxable income computed in

accordance with the provision of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(ii)  Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences between taxable and
accounting income / expenditure that originates in one period and are capable
of reversal in one or more subsequent period(s). Deferred Tax Asset is
recognised on the basis of virtual / reasonable certainty about its realisability

as applicable.

20. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS
Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation and measurement are recognised
when there is present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that ther
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will be an outflow of resources. Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor
disclosed in the financial statements. Contingent liabilities, if material, are disclosed

by way of notes.

21. CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash Flow Statement is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in
Accounting Standard on 'Cash Flow Statement” (AS-3) as issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountant of India. The cash flow are reported using the indirect method
where by profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transaction of non-cash nature,
any deferrals or accruals or part on future operating cash receipt or payments and
items of income or expenses associates trade with investing or financing cash flows.
The cash flow from operating, investing and financial activity of the company are

segregated.

22. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. In case
there is any indication of impairment based on internal / external factors, an
impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its

recoverable amount,

23. WRITE OFF OF DEFFERED REVENUE EXPENDITURE

As per practice in vogue, the deferred revenue expenditure is being written off in
five equal annual instalments beginning from the year in which such expenditure are

incurred.
24. MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES

The Disclosures on the basis of information received from supplier regarding their
status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 the
unpaid amount as at the year and together with the interest paid / payable as

required under the said Act have been made.

25. PRELIMINARY AND PROJECT EXPENDITURE

Expenditure incurred on projects is shown as other non-current assets and will be
charged /capitalized in the year in which it is decided by the management to
implement the project. Otherwise, in case, the management decides not to implement
/ close the projéct,_ expenditure on such project is charged to the Statement of Profit

, g B APUR £
& Loss for the year in which such decision is taken. pA N
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HINDUSTAN SALTS LIMITED

Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

(% in Lakh)
ROTE.. 35 SHARE CABIFAL FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
Tk 31.03.2022 '31,03.2021
Authorised
600,000 Equity Shares (Previous year 6,000.00 6,000.00
600,000 Equity Shares) of Rs. 1000/- each '
6,000.00 6,000.00
Issued Subscribed and paid up 5,205.96 5,205.96
520596 Equity Shares (Previous year 520596
Equity Shares) of Rs. 1000/- each fully paid
up (Out of above shares, 15,461 fully paid up
shares allotted without payment being
received in cash)
5,205.96 5,205.96
NOTE - 2.1 : Details of Shareholders FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
holding more than 5% Shares: 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
No. of No. of
Shares Held 9 of Holding Shares Held % of Holding
Hon'ble President of India 520,596 100% 520,596 100%
(¥ in Lakh)
NOTE - 2.2 : Details of number of shares FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
outstanding during the year 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Number of Number of
Shares Amount Shares Amount

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the
year 2 520,596 5,205.96 520,596 5,205.96

Shares Issued during the year = 7
Shares bought back during the year = = A =

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 520,596 5,205.96 520,596 5,205.96

NOTE -2.3 : Share held by promoters at the end of the year ]

FIGURES AS ON 31-03-2022 FIGUREs AS ON 31-03-2021

% Change during the
year

8 No Promotor Name No of Share | % of total Shay No of Share | % of total Shares
1|Hon'ble President of India 520,596 100 520,596 100 -
Total 520,596 100 520,596 100 -

t
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(% in Lakn)

NOTE - 3 : RESERVES & SURPLUS l ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ FIGURESAS O FIAURESAE 0N
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Capital Reserves
As per the last Balance Sheet 1.026.28 1,026.29
Addition during the year - =
Less : Adjusted During the year {Depreciauon) 0.01
Total (&) 1,026.28 1,026.28
Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss
As per the last Balance Sheet {3,475.03) [4,374.37)
Add/Less:- Profit/|Loss] during the year 80297 S00.30
less : Adjustment during the year (Depreciation) (8.63)
Share of Additions in Capital Reserves in Subsidiary Co, N =
Share of Dep. In Capital Grant in Subsidiary Company |0.94) [1.08)
Share of Fair Price Shop Profit in Subsidiary Company 0.12
Total (B} (2,664.27) (3,475.03)
Minerity Interest
As per the last Balance Sheet [1,659.25) (1,867.41)
Face Value of Shares held by Minority - -
Add/ Less:- Profit/ (Loss) during the year 434.16 213.80
Minority Share of Additi in Capital R -
wlinority Share of Dep. in Capital Grant [0.62) [0.72)
Minority Share in Fair Price Shop Profit 0.08
Total (C) {1,220.71) [1,654.25)
Surplus with Fair Price Shop - -
Grend Total (A+B+C) (2,858.80) (4,102.99)

{i) The Minority Interest comprises of 4,000 shares of Rs. 1,000/- each fully paid and issued to the Rajasthan Govt. against their Royalty Rights in terms of
V.T.Krishnamachari Award and form the part of opening Minority Interest,

(ii) The whole amount of Surplus with fair price shop is related to the separate entity which is operated by the Subsidiary for the benefit of its employees.

(¥ in Lakh
FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
NOTE - (-] RM BORROWINGS
FAACAAEy ‘ | | | 21.03.2022 31.03.2021
UN-SECURED
Loans from Govt. of India, Ministry of Heavy Industry - 60,00
- 60.00
Loan from Government of India and Interest accrued and due on loans are subject to iliati and v audj;
NOTE - 4.1 : DETAILS OF GOVERNMENT LOAN (PAYABLE IN 5 YEARLY INSTALLMENT)
(' % in Lakh
NORMAL RATE OF PENAL RATE OF
5.ND. |PARTICULARS OF LOAN AMOUNT C.Y. P.Y. INTEREST (%) INTEREST (%}
1 2005-06 150.00 150.00 11.50 14.25
2 2005-06,2008-09 2009-10 2013-14 678.50 678.50 12.50 15.35
3 2006-07 37.79 37.79 15.50 18.25
4 2014-15 75.00 75.00 13.50 16.00
5 2016-17 300.00 300.00 11.50 14.00
Total 1241.29 1241.29
Less: Overdue Current 1241.29 1181.29
Balance Long Term Dabts Nil 60,00
(% in Lakh)
: F AS ON ¥ AB ON
NOTE - & : OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES l | l | 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Security Deposits 102.62 109.04
Other Liabilities 0.72 0.7z
Dues Payable to Govt. Departments = -
Total 103.35 109.76

W
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('Z in Lakn

NOTE - 6 : LONG TERM PROVISIONS ‘

FIGURES AS ON

FIGURES AS ON

31.03.2022 31,03.2021
FORDCRG
Balance at the beginning of the year 245.62 291.80
Add: Provision for the year 36.99 715
Less: Adjustment during the year - 37.52
Less: Payment during the year £6.43 15.81
Total (&) 196.18 245.62
For Encashment of lcave
Balance at the beginning of the year 206,30 214.23
Add: Provision for the year 46.78 59.30
Less: Payments/ Adjustments during the year 41.23 67.23
Total (B) 211.85 206.30
For Wastage of Stock of Salt
Balanes at the beginning of the year T2.81 a7.14
Add: Provision for the year 176.95 50.03
249.76 97.17
Less: Wastage on Final Clearance of heaps during the year 189.05 10.83
Less: Excess Provision Written Back - 13.53
G60.71 72.81
Deducted from Stock in Trade as per Contra 60.71 72.81
Totat (€) - :
For Wastage of By-Product/Processed Salt
Balance at the beginning of the year 0.56 .56
Add: Provision for the year - =
0.56 0.56
Lessa: Wa_ét'age on Final Clearance of heaps during the year - -
0.56 0.56
Deducted from Stock in Trade as per Contra 0.56 0.56
Total (D) = .
Grand Total (A+B+C+D) 408.05 451.92
{2 in Lakh)
[ FIGURES AS OR | FIGURES AS ON |
NOTE -7 : SHORT TERM BORROWING | ‘ [ TR i TR T |
Current Maturities of Long Term Debis
Loan from Govt of India [Including overdue amount) 1,241.29 1,181.29
Total 1,241.29 1,181.29
( %in Lakh)

NOTE - T.1: A T AND F or TS

In case of Continuing default as on the balance sheet
date in repayment of loans and interest with respect
to above:

1. Period of Default

1to 15 Years

1 tol4d Years

2, Amount of Default 3,936.55 3,606.01
loan from Govt of India and interest accured and due on loans subject to confirmation and reconciliation
NOTE -7.2 : DETAILS OF GOVERNMENT LOAN (PAYAELE IN 5 YEARLY INSTALLMENT)
NORMAL RATE OF | PENAL RATE OF
5.ND. |PARTICULARS OF LOAN AMOUNT C.Y. P.Y. INTEREST (%) INTEREST (%)
1 2005-06 150.00 150.00 11.50 14.25
2 2005-06,2008-09 2009-10 2013-14 678.50 678,50 12.50 15.25
3 2006-07 37.79 3t 15.50 18.25
4 2014-15 75.00 75.00 13.50 16.00
5 - 2016-17 300.00 300.00 | 1150 14.00
Total 1241.29 1241.29
Less: Long Term Borrowing Nil 50.00 r
-Balance Overdue/Current Maturities1241.29 118129 |
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(' in Lakn)
NOTE - 8 : TRADE PAYABLES FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Sundry Creditors for Goods Supplied 438.42 233.89
Sundry Creditors for Expenses 221.38 16802
Sundry Creditors for Others 188.47 147.21
Total 848.27 545.32
Trade Payable ageing schedules 2021-2022
(% In Lakh)
5 No FParticulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of
Less than 1
Mot Due year 1.2 Years 2-3 Yoars Maorethen 3 Years Total
1 MSME 89.71 = i3 = = 83.71
2 Others 393.24 6.23 20.35 5.18 260.31 689,32
3 |Disputed Dues MSME = z = 5
4 |Disputed Dues :-Others - 69.24 69.24
Trade Payable ageing schedules 2020-2021
(T in Lakh}
3 No Particul [a] ding for following periods from due date of
Less than 1
Not Dua year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Morethen 3 Years Total
1 MSME 20.74 . - - - 20.74
2 Others 166.67 11.17 21.38 62.79 157.33 458.34
3 Disputed Dues MSME - - - - -
4|Disputed : Others - - - 69,24 69.24
% in Lakh
FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
NOTE - 9 : OTHER ILITIES
| HER CURREAT Livg ' I ‘ [ 31.08.2022 31.03.2021
Interest Acerued e O T .
Interest due on Loan from Govt of India 2,695.26 2,424.72
Advance receipts for the portion for which value is still to be
Gk 201.23 214.31
Dues Payable to Govt, Departments 8,01 4.22
Unspent Grnat in Aid for Swatch Bharat - -
Other Pavable
Liabilities for Expenses 76.27 13761
Statutery Liabilities 105.96 66.97
Liabilit
Security Deposits 204.42 248,28
Others 26.99 42.76
Total 3,318.14 3,138.87
T in Lakh
B FIGURES A8 ON FIGURES AS ON
NOTE - 10 Te
i S o | | | J 31.02.2022 31.03.2021
Provision for Income Tax 20.50
‘Total 20,80 -
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Note 11.1 Capital work in progress (CWIP)

CWIP ageing schedules 2021-22

( Zin Lakh)
S No Particulars Amount on CWIP for a period of
More
Less than then 3
cwip lyear |[1-2Years |2-3 Years| VYears Total
1 Project in progress 2.76 4.47 10.56 4.92 22.71
Projects temporaily
2 suspended - - - - -
for capital work in progress whose completion is overdue of has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan
SNo Particulars To be completed in
More
Less than then 3
CWIP lyear |1-2Years |2-3Years| VYears Total
1 Projects 1 - - - - -
2 Projects 2 - - - - -
Capital work in progress (CWIP)
CWIP ageing schedules 2020-2021
(" ¥ in Lakh)
S No Particulars Amount on CWIP for a period of
More
Less than then 3
CWIP lyear |1-2Years |2-3Years| Years Total
3, Project in progress 7.59 4.47 24,91 4.63 41.60
Projects temporaily
2 |suspended - - - - -
for capital work in progress whose completion is overdue of has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan
SNo Particulars : To be completed in
More
Less than then 3
Cwip lyear |1-2VYears | 2-3 Years| Years Total
1 Projects 1 - - - - -
2 Projects 2 - - - - -
" |
AN Wy P S
- \- =
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(" % in Lakn)

FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
NOTE - 12 : LONG TE ANS AN AN
iz R HADYANCRS ‘ 31.08.2022 1 31,03.2021
Othe, Ad =
Seeured, considered good - -
Unsecured, considered good {Refer Note 12.1) 201.62 201.62
Doubtful 3 =
Less: Provision for dout Loans and Adx - -
Total 201.62 201.62
Tatal 201.62 201.62
Zin Lal@‘
| FIGURES AS ON | FIGURES AS ON
-12.1: s AN .
NOTE - 12.1 : LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES I 31.05.2033 [31,03.2021 —]
Amount Against Lease Rent to RLY Afe 2,73 2.73
Adv to M/s Guj. Techno Pvt. Ltd 10880 198.89
Total 201.62 201.62
{2 in Lakh
7 FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
NOTE - 13 : OTHER RON-CURRENT ASSETS 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Security Deposits
Secured, considered good = -
Unsecured, considered good 164.93 86.44
Doubtful 2 E -
Less: Provision for doubtful Loans and Ad - -
29.43 32,80
80.84 80,84
Project expend pending all [ Capital - 201.64
Total 276.20 401.72

NOTE - 13.1 : PRELIMINERY & PROJECTSE EXPENDITURE

During the vear the management has decided to close the project and expenditure on such project is charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss in the cureent year.

{ ¥ in Lakh)
Amount Ameunt
8.Ho. Name of the Project As on 31,03.2022 Az on 31.03.2021
1 Solution Mining Project Cum Salt Refinery Project - 152.27
2 |ITDS Project - 9.43
3 Pottasium Sulphate Project - 0.37
4 Solar Energy Project - 9.38
5 |Salt Washery Project - 35.39
6 Plan Project - .80
- 201,64 |

!
NP
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(" ¥ in ILakh)

FICURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
Iﬂ’ s [ ‘ J I | ‘ 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
(As taken valued & certified by the Management)
STOCK & STORES [At Cost or Net Realisable Value whichever is less)
& Stores, statonary & Spare Parts 125.44 108.46
b. Raw Material - =
©. Release Material 10,30 10.67
d. Packing Material - 20,02
e. Loose Tools 0.56 0.04
f. Stock in Trade (Refer Note No. 14.1) 1,210.94 1,356.96
Total 1,347.24 1,496.15
{ % in ILakh)
FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
o e J J ’ 1 ‘ 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Stock in Trade (At cost or Net Reli value whichever is less]
a. Bromine (At Cost) -
Less: Provision for wastage - -
a Total {A) - -
h. Salt 672.03 925.05
Leas : Provision for Wastage 60.69 72.81
Adj of Unrealised Profit in Closing Stock - o
Total (B) 611.34 852.24
. Processed Salt 166.03 173.86
Less: Provision for Wastage - 0.28 0.28
Total (C) 166.75 173.58
d. Bye-Product MGCL 0.28 0.28
Less: Provision for Wastage 0.28 0.28
Total (D) - -
e. Work In Progress 433.84 330.76
Less . Provision for wastage = 2
Total (E) 433.84 230.76
f. Stock of Fair Price Shop 0.01 0.38
Less : Provision - -
Tetal (F) 0.01 0.38
Total (A+B+C+D+E+F} 1,210.54 1,356.96
(i} Release Material includes stores, spares and other fixed assets which are no longer usable and are rel d,/ d in ive years and ferred to release

material at book value. During the year Assets Scraps having book value of %, Nil lakhs {Previous year Rs Nil lakh) are transferred to Release Material in Hand. Sale

Proceeds of disposal of release material are shown as sale of scraps under the head other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Further, its also includes a sum of T.

0.03 lakhs [Previous Year Rs 0.62 Lakh) being the estimated realisable value in respect of unserviceable material/Scrap lying in stores at Kharaghada as the hoolk value of

these items are not inable. The v adj will be made as and when these items are disposed off/ utilised.

(if) Physical Veri ion of G 1 Stores, ials at site, i inls was carried out during the year .

liii) No provision for losses if any on the slow moving items lying in General Store has been made in the bosks and the same was shown in the Inventories [Amount
determined). In the opinion of g the current value of slow moving items is more than the value taken.

(iv) In Subsidiary : No provision for losses if any on the slow moving items amounting to T. 14.84 lakhs (previous year 2. 19.75 lalchs) lying in General Store has been made

in the pooks and the same was shown in the Inventories at cost. In the opinion of t the value of slow moving items is more than the value taken.

(¥} In Subsidiary : Released stores in hand including the value of Serap amounting of 2.10.26 lakhs (previous year . Nil Lakhs taken at the Net Realizable Value on the

basis of tender received
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< 7 Fin fLakh)

NOTE - 15 : TRADE RECEIVABLES

| 1 FIGURES AS ON

FIGURES AS ON

31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Secured, Considered Good 43.81 31.06
Unsecured, Considered Good 22.00 24,48
Unsecured, Considered Doubtful 25.07 25.07
91.88 78.61
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debes 25.07 25.07
Total 67.81 53.54

During the year the C hag adj i the of old bl

not recovered in spite of best efforts in the

of the

of the

ting to £.NIL lakhs (Previous Year NIL lakhs} against the provision, as these amount could

Trade Receivables ageing schedules 2021-2022

(% in ILakh)
5 No Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 | 6 months-1
Not Due Months Years 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Maorethen 3 Years Total
1 Undisputed Trade Receivables
Consider Good 29.20 5.89 3.82 7.76 21.14 67.81
2 |Undisputed Trade Receivabl
Consider Doubtful - - - - 25.07 25.07
Trade Receivables ageing schedules 2020-2021
 #in ILakh)
5 No Particulars (2] g for g periods from due date of pay
Less than 6 | 6 months-1
Not Due Months Years 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Morethen 3 Years Total
1 |Undisputed Trade
Consider Good 17.75 1.10 5.42 7.85 21.42 53.54
2 disputed Trade Rec
Consider Doubtf = - + - 25.07 25.07
(‘2 in Lakh)
NOTE - 16 : CASH & Bank Balances ¥ agon g AR.oN
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Balance with Bank:-
Balance in Current Account 110.08 111.01
Balance in Term Deposits* 453.06 465.60
Cash on Hand 0.77 1.15
Cheque in Transit = -
Other Bank Balance :-FDR more then 3 month 2,890.10 997.68
Others (Securities of Staff, Contractors & Others) 14.31 16.00
Total 3,468.32 1,691.44
* *FDRs of Re. 95.68 lakh pledged with 2BI, Jaipur, Kl hoda and Mandi (previous year Rs. 91.49 lakh with and FDR of Re 9.65 Lakhs with SB] Sambhar Lake previous year Rs 9.22 lakhs|
and FOR of Rs 583.50 Lakh pledge with PNB [Frevious Year Rs 557.11 Lakh) towards security for OD Loan.
{7 in Lakh)
NOTE - 17 : SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES TIGURES Ap O BERa ARy
(Recoverable in Cash or in Kind or for valic to be roceived) 31.03.2024 31.03.2021
Other
Secured, considersd good
Unsecured, considered good [Refer Note 17.1) 248.94 481.52
Doubtful #4.62 84.74
333.56 566,26
Less: F for doubtfil Loans and Ad 84.62 84.74
Total 248.94 481.52
" % in Lakh
KOTE - 17.1 : Other Loans & Advance FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
(Unsecured, Considered good) 31.02.2022 31.03.2021
Others
Advance to Stafl 0.46 0.96
Deposit with Govt, Semi Govt. Bodies 0.53 71.80
Income Tax Deducted at Source (C.Y.) 38.53 11.52
Income Tax Deducted at Source (P.Y.) 19.52 19.20
TCS 2020-21 0,03 0.18
Security Deposit .
Advance Income Tax 21-22 10.00 -
Others 264.49 362,60
Total 333.56 566.26
{" % in Lakh]
NOTE - 18 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS FRURGEARON. | FEORES AR ON
31.02.2022 21.03.2021
Prepaid Expenses Vg 17.24
Interest Acerued on Term Depandta 4341
Total 50.70
-~
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HINDUSTAN SALTS LIMITED

Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2022

(* Z in Lakn)
— FIGURES FOR __ FIGURES FORTHE
NOTE - 1S : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS THE YEAR YEAR
2021-22 2020-21
Sale of Products (Refer Note No. 19.1) 6,603.01 3,736.82
TOTAL 6,603.01 3,736.82
(" % in Lakh)
FIGURES FOR FIGURES FOR THE
NOTE - 19.1 : SALE OF PRODUCTS THE YEAR YEAR
2021-22 2020-21

Common Salt
Indigenous 4,730.65 2,397.69
MGCL 165.03 112.42

Processed Salt

: Indigenous 480.42

Bromine 1,432.03 720.48

De-Brominated Bittern - 25.81

Operational Income From Bromine Plant 275.30 -

TOTAL 6,603.01 3,736.82
. _ (% in Lakh)
FIGURES FOR FIGURES FOR THE
NOTE - 20 : OTHER INCOME THE YEAR YEAR
2021-22 2020-21
Interest Income
Interest Received on FDR 100.76 59.15
Interest Received from Others 3.22 3.45

Other non-operation income (Net)

Excess Provision Written Back - 37.52
Misc. Receipts 188.91 56.26
Rental Income from Plant & Machinery - 97.28
Facility Charges 1.29 -
General Store (Goods) 1.42 16.20
Rent Received 3.90 3.18
Land Licence Fees 0.65 0.65
Sundry Cr. Balance Written Off 74.09 35.87
Tender Cost receipts 0.40 0.10
Packing & Forwarding 0.04 -
Profit on Sale of Assets 12.32 -
Penalty Received on Encrochment 0.52
Recovery on Account of Electricity and Power 17.68 19.38
Wastages on Final Clearance of heaps Written Back 189.05 10.10
Sale of Scraps/Released Material and profit on assets 0.10 15.70

TOTAL 594.34 354.84

(i) In Subsidiary : Other income/adjustment includes 2 14.88 lakhs on acco
of Security Deposit ¥ 155.101 lakhs on account of sale of scrap,
Lakh on a/c of Receipt from Tourism Activity Rs Nil Lakh on a/c of Faciliation Fee

4.38 Lakhs ,% Nil Lakhs % 42.60 Lakh and NIL Lakh Respectively).

Unserviceable and dead stock articles etc.

(ii) In Subsidiary : Misc. receipts (Includes Sales, Transfer and adjustment of Fixed assets, %uaq;ﬂ_lf%{
Pl

vy

unt of penalty & forfeiture
assets and released material Rs 14.08

(Previous years 2

/Y




(' % in Lakh)
FIGURES FOR FIGURES FOR THE

NOTE - 21 : COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED

THE YEAR YEAR
2021-22 2020-21
Manufacturing Expenses
Manufacture & Excavation Expenses of Salt 524.12 481.67
Manufacture of Bromine 645.94 288.01
Manufacture of Processed Salt including jodisation 9.24 1177
Manufacture of Rock Salt 36.89 -
Manufacture of Refined Salt 167.33 118.90
Compensation & Land Revenue 1.32 1.32
Manufacture of MGCL : 92.65 77.55
Purchases of Black Salt Powder 2.78 -
Purchases of Refined Salt-NSR 88.47 -
Repair to Machinery 2.16 20.63
Lease Rent 5.50 5.50
Electricity & Power Charges 254.56 279.44
Running & Mtc of Loco and Diesel Shunter 28.00 19.15
TOTAL 1,858.96 1,303.94
_ ('Z in Lakh)
FIGURES FOR FIGURES FOR THE
NOTE - 22 : CHANGES IN INVENTORY OF THE YEAR YEAR
FINISHED GOODS & W.I.P 2021-22 2020-21
Opening Stock
Salt
Common Salt 925.05 269.02
Processed Salt 173.86 83.76
Bye-Products 0.28 0.28
Bromine - 3.02
MGCL - 3.27
Work-in-Progress 330.76 315.08
Total 1,429.95 674.44
Closing Stock
Salt
Commeon Salt 672.03 925.05
Processed Salt 166.03 173.86
By Product 0.28 0.28
MGCL - -
Bromine 2 =
Work In Progress 433.84 330.76
Total 1,272.18 1,429.95
Grand Total 157.77 (755.51)

Value of closing stock arrived of after adjusting the amount of stock of salt written off at

kharaghoda & ramnagar

e
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(‘% in Lakh)

FIGURES FOR

FIGURES FOR THE

NOTE - 23 : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES THE YEAR YEAR
2021-22 2020-21
Salaries, Allowances & Other Benefits
Salaries & Allowances 628.05 531.43
Death Cum Retirement Gratuity 59.72 39.69
Employer's Contribution (PF & DLI) 110.06 101.48
Group Gratuity Insurance Premium 13.05 20.97
Bonus 2552 25.43
Staff Welfare Expenses 13.41 17.60
Workman Compensation 0.04 0.17
Other Expenses = =
TOTAL 849.85 736.77
(" % in Lakh)
FIGURES FOR FIGURES FOR THE
NOTE - 24 : FINANCE COSTS THE YEAR YEAR
2021-22 2020-21
Interest To Government of India 270.54 264.55
Interest To Bank 0.17 0.26
Interest To Others 0.02 36.94
TOTAL 270.73 301.75
(‘% in Lakh)
FIGURES FOR FIGURES FOR THE
NOTE - 25 : OTHER EXPENSES THE YEAR YEAR
2021-22 2020-21
Administrative Expenses (Refer Note No. 25. 1) 476.29 286.07
Auditors Expenses (Refer Note No.25 2) 4.56 4.24
Township Expenses and Other Social Overheads
(Refer Note No. 25.3) 69.76 73.59
Selling & Distribution Expenses (Refer Note No. 25.4) 316.10 158.76
Amounts/Stores Written Off (Net) 14.52 2.68
Income Tax 79.36
Penalty on JCB Tax 0.02 0.13
Provision & wastage
(Refer Note No. 25.5) 176.95 46.83
General Stores Written Off - 46.29
Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts and Advances - -
Penalties/Fine Including demurrage, Demand on TDS - -
Research & Development 9.97 10.66
TOTAL 1,147.54 629,25
lm. 3%\ 5 "}‘ S /3
i
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(% in Lakh)

NOTE - 25.1 : ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

FIGURES FOR

FIGURES FOR THE

THE YEAR YEAR
2021-22 2020-21
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 6.40 6.58
Postage Telegram & Telephones 5.44 6.24
Rent Expenses 6.20 5.29
Rates & Taxes 3.78 4.54
Insurance Charges 6.63 4.78
Guest House Expenses 4.50 3.98
T.A. to Directors 2.73 1.96
Office Expenses 50.76 32.63
Running & Mtc. of Vehicle 8.41 14.63
Repair & Maintenance of Buildings 37.44 -
Repair & Maintenance of Plant & Machinery 164.73 87.74
Maintenance of P, Way 86.96 47.82
Other Repairs 92.32 69.88
TOTAL 476.29 286.07
: FIGURES FOR FIGURES FOR THE
NOTE - 25.2 : AUDITORS EXPENSES THE YEAR YEAR
2021-22 2020-21
Payment to Auditor
As Audit Fee 2.35 2.07
As Tax audit fee 0.30 0.58
As TA/DA Expenses 0.89 0.36
As Other Capacity 0.35 0.47
Trust Audit Fees - 0.10
Other Payment to Trust Auditor = 0.02
As GST Audit Fees 0.12 0.30
Internal Auditor Remuneration
As Audit Fee 0.46 0.34
As TA/DA Expenses 0.10 -
TOTAL 4.56 4.24
\\"V N ~+— He—.
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(‘' in Lakh,

NOTE - 25.3 : TOWNSHIP EXP AND OTHER SOCIAL

FIGURES FOR

FIGURES FOR THE

OVERHEADS THE YEAR YEAR
2021-22 2020-21
Township Expenses
Maintenance of Building/Roads - 23.54 12.01
Sanitation 10.41 15.32
Water Supply 12.79 11.69
Mtc. Of Electricity 0.35 7.19
Depreciation 0.03 0.03
Total (A) 47.12 46.24
Less: Receipts
House Rent 12.10 16.06
Ground Rent 2.49 1.22
Water Supply 0.60 0.54
Total (B) 15.19 17.82
Other Social Overheads
Salaries & Allowance of Hospital Staff 27.79 27.98
Reim. Of Medical Exp. And Cost of Medicines & Medical
contingencies 10.78 18.03
Depreciation 0.09 0.10
Others 0.08 0.06
Less: Hospital Receipts 0.91 1.00
Total (C) 37.83 45.17
Total (A-B+C) 69.76 73.59
(% in Lakh)
FIGURES FOR FIGURES FOR THE
NOTE - 25.4 : SELLING & DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES THE YEAR YEAR
2021-22 2020-21
Packing & Forwarding/Dispatch Charges 156.87 100.35
Advertisement & Publicity 1.96 0.29
Discount & Commission 156.17 58.08
Other Expenses 1.10 0.03
Free Sample - 0.01
TOTAL 316.10 158.76
_ ("€ in Lakh)
FIGURES FOR | FIGURES FOR THE
NOTE - 25.5 : PROVISIONS & WASTAGES THE YEAR YEAR
2021-22 2020-21
For Wastages on Stock of Salt
Normal Provision on Salt Stock Required 60.70
Add: Wastages determined on clearance of heaps 189.05
Add: Excess Provision found on Final clearance of Heap =
249.75
Less: Opening Balance 72.80
176.95

In Subsidiary : Wastages of 25447.767 MT salt valuing Z 189.05 lakh found during the year

adjusted subject to investigation/approval of Appropriate Authority.

54
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( %in Lakh)
FOR THE YEAR 2021-22 FOR THE YEAR 2020-21

NOTE- 26 : PRIOR PERIOD

TOTAL TOTAL
B i it RECEIPTS | EXPENSES | RECEIPTS | EXPENSES
Manufacture & excavation charges 0.01 0.11 - 5.28
Salaries, Allowance & Other benefits 6.14 0.97 52745 2.28
Administrative Expenses 0.02 2.63 0.25 | 2.58
Excess Provision Written Back on Final Clearance
of heap 58.29 & e -
Excess provision written back - - & 0.05
Township & other Social Overheads - - - 0.05
Selling & Distribution Exp. - 0.41 1.08 -
Other Expenses/Adjustment 0.06 - 0.02 0.44
(Including for deficit of Salt)
Rent Received . - 0.01
Payment to Auditors - - = -
income tax 0.31 E 0.07 -
Receipt for salt from service contractor - - - =
Dpreciation less charged in Prev. year - - - 178.39
Misc. Income/ Adjustment - - - .
| Sales = - = =
Interest on TDR - = o g
Excess Interest Charge on Govt Loan in Earlier
Years Written Back 0.01 - 174.63 -
A NET INCOME/EXPENDITURE 64.82 4.12 228.81 189.02
Less: Share of Common HO Expenses as
apportioned to Sambhar Salts Limited = - = -
- 64.82 4.12 228.81 189.02
NET RECEIPTS/(EXPENESES) - 60.70 - 39.79
NOTE - 27 : EARNINGS PRICE PER SHARE FOR THE YEAR FOR THE YEAR
2021-22 _ 2020-21
 Profit (+) / Loss ) as per statement of
Profit & Loss (without minority interest)
usual as the Numerator (* ¥ in Lakh) 1,237.13 1,114.10
~  Weighted Average Number of Share
Basic Number of Shares 520,596 ) 520,596
Diluted Number of Shares _ 520,596 520,596
Face value as per Equity Share 1,000 1,000
Earnings per equity share:
—___BasicEPS (inZ ) . .237.64 214.00.
Diluted EPS (in ¥ ) 237.64 214.00
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NOTE NO. 29:- CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS TO THE EXTENT
NOT PEOVIDED FOR

A Contingent Liabilities

(i) Claim of Gujarat Electricity Board for 2. 21.13 lakhs (excluding interest if any)
J
(Previous year 2. 21.13 lakhs) being subjudice.

(i) Claim of N.E. Railway towards differential License Fee of Railway land at
Ramnagar Unit 2. 32.74 lakhs and interest if any (Previous year 2. 32.74 lakhs)
pending decigion of the court cage.

(11) In respect of Agricultural and Non-agricultural assessment demand for % 85.64
lakhs (plus interest if any) raised by Taluka Vikas Adhikari, Patri (Gujarat). The
matter is under dispute and the Company did not received any demand
thereafter. However, subsequently demand for *. 5.51 lakhs (plus interest if any
) was raised for which the stay was obtained from the Hon'ble High Court,
Gujarat. The Hon’ble High Court of Gujarat has since disposed of the case and
directed to form a high power Committee consisting of representatives of State &
Central Govt. The dispute is still pending with High Power Committee Now the
Taluka Vikas Adhikari, Patri has revised the claim of ¥272.80 lakhs (plus
interest) (previous year . 272.80 lakhs (plus interest).

(iv) Other claims lodged but not acknowledged as debt by the Company % 35.16 lakhs
plus interest if any (Previous year 2. 35.38 lakhs).

(v) Claim of H.P Government towards Royalty on Rack Salt in Mandi Unit % 20.94
lakhs (Previous year % 20.94 lakhs).

(vij Other cases in which the Company is contingently liable (amounts not
ascertainable except as and where mentioned).

(vii) Liability if any, on account of Bank guarantee amounting to % 16.40 lakhs (Previous Year
% 10.00 lakhs) issued by SBI Jaipur in favour of Regional Control of Mines, Indian
Bureau of Mines. In subsidiary Bank Guarantee amounting to Rs 3.65 Lakh (Previous
Year Rs 1.90 Lakh ) issue by SBI Jaipur in favour of Kota Super Thermal Power Station.

(viil) Other cases in which the Company is contingently liable (amounts not ascertainable
except as and where mentioned).
(i) Claims on account of labour/service/land and other matters for the suiis
pending in different Courts ~amount indeterminate.
(i) Liability, if any, on account of revision of pay scales of employees covered
under Industrial D.A. Pattern and CDA Pattern.

(ix) An award was given for liability by Arbitrator on 14t July 2018 of Rs 90.10
Lakh ( Including Interest, Cost of Arbitration and watch & ward expenses of Rs
24.96 Lakh) for the office building at Sitapura Jaipur. The matter is sub judice
before honorable High Court of Rajasthan. Hon’ble High Court has issued order
for stay in the matter subject to deposit of 50 % of the award in the court.
Company has made due compliance of the order of Hon’ble High Court/é_e{\/.\gﬁ_.a N
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(B) Capital Commitments

(1) amount on account of contract remaining to be executed on Capital accounts <.
668.12 lakhs (previous year 2. 659.02 lakhs)Estimated

(i1). Liability on Account of equity participation with H.P. Government for Solution
Mining Cum Caustic Soda Project at Mandi amounting to % 43.55 Lakh (Previous
Year % 43.55 Lakh).

NOTE NO. 30:- ADDITIONAL NOTES

(i) In lieu of issue of shares by the Company to the Government of India on its
formation, possession of assets at Kharaghoda and Mandi has been acquired
by the Company, pending finalisation of formal Agreement. No agreement has
been made so far in this regard.

(1) In the opinion of the management, current assets, loans and advances are
based on the realizable value in the ordinary course of business and provision
for all liability, except as otherwise stated has been provided.

(iii)  The details of minority interest are as under :-

(Rs in Lakh)
Minority Interest Amount Amount
2021-22 2020-21
As per the last Balance Sheet (1654.25) (1867.41)
Face Value of Shares held by Minority (in RS) | 1000 1000
Add/Less:- Profit/(Loss) during the year 434.16 213.80
Minority Share of Additions in Capital | - _
Reserves
Minority Share of Dep. in Capital Grant (0.62) (0.72)
Minority Share in Fair Price Shop Profit 0.08
Total 1(1220.71) (1654.25)

Name of the | Net Assets i.e total assets minus | Share in profit or loss
entity in the total liabilities
As % of | Amount As % of | Amount
consolidated net consolidated
assets profit or loss
1 2 3 4 B
Parent
Subsidiaries
Indian (-)52.01 (-) 1220.74 35.09 434 .16
Foreigh - B - -
Minority

R+ s




Interests in all |
Subsidiaries '
Associates

Indian (-)52.01 (-) 1220.74 35.09 434.16

Foreign - - - -

Join Ventures o - - .

Indian - - - -

Foreign - E -

Total (-)52.01 (-) 1220.74 35.09 434.16

(ivy  The Immovable Properties including land stands transferred from Govt. of
India to the company in succession, in terms of V.T. Krishnamachari's Award
under the provisions of Rajasthan Government Grants Act, 1961 and the
position stands communicated to the Government of India.

(v) No adjustment has been carried out for Refinery Plant at Kharaghoda for the work
awarded on turnkey basis. The contractor has not completed the work so far. The
payment made to contractor of Rs 198.89 Lakh has been shown under the note No 16
as Loan and Advances of the Balance Sheet

(vij  Government of India decided to provide Grant-in-Aid to the company vide letter no. 19-
09/2005-PE-V dt.01.02.2012 for disbursement of pension. During the current year
Company has received Rs. 200.00 lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 200.00 Lakh) as grant-in-
aid.

(vi) At Kharaghoda MGCL Plant was given to M/s Mayur Stone for running the operation.
The company was to receive the sum of Rs 1112 per ton production with minimum
production 525 MT in a month from April 2018 and taken back on 9" Jan-2019.
Afterwards 411.MT MGCL was sold of Rs 12.04 Lakhs by the company from the
quantity of Mayur Stone available on 9" Jan 2019 and same amount has been credited
to party account. After approval of competent authority, during the year company has
incorporated necessary adjustment in the book

(viii)  During the Year, HSL-Kharaghoda had awarded a contract to M/s. Jai Overseas Private
Limited, Ahmedabad for Operation and Maintenance of Newiy Commissioned Plants
and Existing Plants at the Cost of Bidder and Sale of Product(s) Produced from
Existing as well as New Plants & Salt Refinery and Production, Sale and Expansion
of all the Plants with related activities at Hindustan Salts Limited, Kharaghoda from 1%
Nov.-2021. Party is doing production of Liquid Bromine, MGCL on behalf of HSL at
Bromine & MGCL Plant, Kharaghoda by utilization of HSL resources under this
contract. Accordingly, processing of Liquid Bromine & MGCL has shown as per the
accounting practices, hence, the production of Liquid Bromine & MGCL may be
considered as Liquid Bromine & MGCL production of HSL-Kharaghoda unit.

(ixX)  As per approval of Board during the year a sum of Rs 201.64 Lakh towards Preliminary
& Project Expenditure and Rs 4.86 lakh toward other expenses shown in exceptional
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(x) During the year a sum of Rs 58.29 lakh toward excess liability booked In earlier year
written back In Subsidiary During the year a sum of 0.02 Lakh towards excess liability
booked in earlier year written back and shown in Prior Period Adjustment Note No 21
and Rs 44.76 Lakh towards excess provision provided for gratuity written back

(i) During the year Rs 29.33 Lakh written off and shown in Sundry Cr. Balance written off

(xii)  In the previous year deficit in stock of salt amounting to Rs. 1.06 Lakh at Kharaghoda
on final clearance of salt heap against the existing provision for wastages of salt of Rs.
0.73 Lakh adjusted in the books subject to approval of competent authority. The matter
is under process . .

(xii)  During the year amount of Rs 3.50 lakh recovered from both the employee against
order issued by DA in previous year

(xiv) The company has not held any immovable property whose title deeds are not in the
name of company

(xv)  During the year Property, Plant & Equipment of the company not revalued

(xvi)  During the year company has not granted loan to promoters, Directors KMPs and the
related partied (as defied under Companies Act 2013) either severally or jointly with any
other person

(xvi) Company has not held intangible assets under development

(xviii) During the year no proceeding have been initiated or pending against the company for

holding any benami property under the Benami transaction ( Prohibition)Act 1988(45 of
1988) and the rules made thereunder

(xix)  During the year company has not borrow fund from banks or financial institution on the
basis of security of current assets

(xx)  During the year company has not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender

(xxi)  During the year company has not made any transaction with companies struck off under
sectin 248 of the companies Act 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act 1956

(xxii) During the year no charges or satisfaction registered with ROC

(xxiii) Company has not granted and received fund from any other person or entity including
foreign entities

(xxiv) During the year, HSL-Mandi has awarded a contract through open tender to M/s
Bumi MFB Geotech Pvt. Ltd., on 13" May, 2021 wherein complete cost of Mine
Development and Operations including obtaining clearance from statutory
authorities will be borne by MDO Company. The revenue from the sale of Rock
Salt will be shared between HSL and Contractor in the ratio of 25.37:74.63 post——.

\UR "
payment of royalty for Rock Salt Mining and for Edible Salt the sharing sha L &
in the ratio of 35.37.64.63 ;Q
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(xxv} .Charge of single rate of Interest on the outstanding loan amount given to
SSL by the HSL

Hindustan Salts Limited (HSL) has given loan to the Sambhar Salts Limited (SSL) on
the different rates which varies from 12.50% to 19.50% as applicable on the date, the
loan was given to SSL and as on 31.03.2021, total outstanding loan amount is
Rs.72.98 Crores in which Principal Loan amount is Rs.35.76 Cores and Interest
amount Rs.37.22 Crores

As per the present situation, it has been decided that only single rate of interest
i.e.12.00% be charged from 01.04.2021. The matter was approved by the Board

(XXVI) The Gudha Salt Refinery has been taken in the fixed assets of the company in the
- 2014-15 though contractor M/S Pandian Engineering did not supply, installed or
commissioned Machinery and equipment’s as per TOR and still not handed over the
Gudha Salt Refinery after satisfactory trial run .Company has incurred  the
expenditure of Rs 49.90 lakhs on behalf of contractor and same are shown in note
no 15-Other Current Assests of Financial statements as 31.3.2020.However the
refinery had been undertaken for operation after incurring the expenditure as
mentioned. Further Company is also having the Security Deposit of RS 14.85
deposited by contractor in the Books and shown in note no 8-Other Current
Liabilities of Financial Statement as on 31.3.2021. Therefor it is to noted that an
amount of Rs 35.05 lakhs is still recoverable from M/S Pandian Engineering.

(XXVIl)Company was declared Sick Company under Section 3(1)(O) of the SICA Act on
13.6.2000. The BIFR had appointed Industrial Development Bank of India (IDBI) as
the operating agency u/s 17(2) of the Act to examine the viability of the Company
and to formulate a rehabilitation scheme for its revival. IDBI had submitted the
viability report to the BIFR on 22.8.2005.

BIFR had sanctioned the Revival Scheme on the basis of Draft Rehabilitation Scheme
(DRS) submitted by the Operating Agency on 22.8.2005. The Govt. of India, DHI
approved the Draft Rehabilitation Scheme (DRS) on the basis of the recommendation
Board of reconstruction of Public Sector Enterprises (BRPSE).

In view of the positive net worth, BIFR has delisted the Company from the purview of
SICA Act vide Order dated 15.12.2008.

(XXVIII)  Land at Mandi were leased to HSL by Central Govt. on long term basis from 01-
05-1963 onwards. The said lease was revised time to time in 1983 and thereafter in
2003 up to year 2023. In the said lease deed, a condition has been imposed in
clause 3. Annexure whereby lease rent for land and assignment fee had to be
paid to salt commissioner by HSL. The said lease rent and assignment fee have not
been paid by HSL from 1 Jan 2003 onwards hence a notice has been received from
Salt Commissioner Office in this regard. On the basis of show cause notice, an
amount of Rs. 2,38,277/-(Assignment Fees of Rs. 117304 & Ground Rent of
Rs.120973/-) Paid to Salt Commissioner in Financial Year 2020-21.

o N —————




(XXIX) The company is having the land as per detail below :-

(. in Lakhs)
JATPUR KHARAGHODA MANDI ‘RAMNAGAR
AREA |[VALUE| AREA VALUE AREA |VALUE| AREA (VALUE
1. Free - - 23596 702.75 | 37.92 - -
Hold Land Acres 24.54 Sq. Mtr
2. Leased | 2048 | 5.53 - - 133.116 - 4712.61 -
Hold Land [Sq. Mtr. Acres Sq. Mtr
(On licence Fee)

Further there is no encroachment in Run area in Kharaghoda unit (Gujarat), Mandi
(H.P.) and Ram Nagar (Uttarakhand) .

Inspite of action for eviction of unauthorized encroachment taken by the
subsidiary company i.e. SSL the encroach land i.e. 424.80 acres is still under
encroachment. The value of encroach land cannot be ascertain as the land has
been given by Govt of India on lease basis for 99 years. As per
V.T Krishnaachari award dated 29.04.1961. Company has not executed the
lease deed with the Govt. of Rajasthan so far. The details of land are as under:-

S.No. | Description Land Area
A Lease Land 57600 Acres (90 SQ. Miles)
B Disputed with Govt of Rajasthan 2648 Acres
C Encroached Area 424.80 Acres
D Free hold land 660.35 Acres
'E Disputed Area 58.24 Acres !
() Rawan Tiba / Sambhar | 16.41 Acres (Case is pending with
Lake Court)
(ii). Beg Shed Sambhar Lake 18.12 Acres (Case with railway
Jodhpur
(iii). Sahidpur Gudha Salt 23.71 Acres pending for correction in
Nawa court)

58.24 acres of land which is disputed in other name but possession with
company. Out of 2648 Acres of land, 292 Acres of land was allotted to the
other parties by Govt. of Rajasthan. The value of land assessed by M/s
Protocol Valuer Pvt Ltd, Assets Valuers as on 31-03-2021 is Rs 3756.02 Crore
in case of lease land and Rs 504.38 Crore in case of free hold land.

(XXX) The balance of Trade Receivable, Trade Payable, Loans and Advances, Salt
Department and Other Government Departments are subject to
confirmation and reconciliation if any. Loan from Government of India and
Interest accrued and due on loans subject to confirmation and
reconciliations and no payment against loan along with the interest was
made since 2005 except Rs 12.21 Lakh paid in 2009

(XXXI) Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged wherever
considered necessary so as to make these comparable with current year's
figures.

(XXXII)  Figures are rounded off to lakhs of rupees with two decimal place

t
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(XXXIII) Details of significant accounting ratio are mentioned below:-
S.No. | Ratio Formula As on | As on Diff. Remarks
31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021
1. | Current Ratio Current Asset/ Current 0.96 0.75 28.00 | Due to increase
Liabilities in cash & cash
equivalent
2 Debt Equity | Total Borrowings/ 0.53 1.07 -50.47 | Due to increase
Ratio Shareholder equity in profit
3 Debt Service | Earnings available for 6.88 6.02 14.29
Coverage Ratio | debt service/ Debt
service
4 Return on Equity | Net Profit after Tax/ 0.72 1.02 -29.41 | Due to increase
Average Shareholder's in profit e.
equity
5 Inventory Revenue From 4,64 3.18 4591 | Due to increase
Turnover Ratio Operations / Average in turnover
inventory
6 Trade Credit sales/ Average 117 1.03 13.59
Receivables Trade receivables
Turnover Ratio
7 Trade Payable | Credit purchase / 1.66 1.00 66.00 | Due to Increase
Turnover Ratio | Average Trade in Credit
payables Purchase
8 Net Capital | Revenue From -9.16 -1.99 360.30 | Increase in
Turnover Ratio Operations/ Average turnover.
Working Capital
9 Net Profit Ratio Net Profit for the 0.19 0.30 -36.67 | Due to increase
period/ Revenue From in profit.
Operations
10 Return on | PBIT/ Capital 0.43 0.60 -28.33 | Due to increase
capital employed | employed in profit and
capital employed
11 Return on | Income From 0.00 0.00 0.00
investment Investments/ Weighted
Average Investments.
i
L\/ AL H———~ APl __—
(Vikas Yadav) {Sandeep Kumar Tak) (Shankar Lal Agarwal) (CMD mlesh Kumar(Retd.))
Company Secretary G.G.M.(F & A) Director Chairman and Managing Director

DIN -07182357 DIN -8884327

in terms of our report of even date annexed hereto

For Mathur & Co
- Chartered Accountants

R, ooFiml Registration No, 001952C

k. '
12 ;;;,'-.,—'.,T}—J_‘-‘__f——

(Manisha Maheshwari)
Partner
Membership No. 079617

Place : Jaipur
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF HINDUSTAN SALTS LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2022

The preparation of financial statements of Hindustan Salts Limited for the ycar ended 31
March 2022 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the management of the Company. The statutory
auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139(5) of the
Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of the Act
based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report
dated 27 August 2022.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India have decided not to conduct
the supplementary audit of the financial statements of Hindustan Salts Limited for the year ended
31 March 2022 under section 143(6)(a) of the Act.

For and on behalf of
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

(S. Ahuad;mipaniﬁi

Principal Director of Audit
(Industry & Corporate Affairs)
New Delhi

Place: New Delhi
W

Date: \T DCT
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Hindustan Salts Limited
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Hindustan Salts Limited
(“the company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, the Statement of
Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and notes to the
standalone financial statements including a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Standalone Financial

Statements”. -

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
excepl for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report, the aforesaid standalone financial statement give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at 31 March, 2022, its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

= Basis for Qualified Opinion

We draw attention, towards matters specified in Annexure —A on the basis of which we are
expressing qualified opinion over the standalone financial statements.

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the duditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
together with ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code
= of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements. s

C-33, Pankaj Singhvi Marg, Lal Kothi Scheme, Near Vidhan Sabha, Jaipur 302015
Telephone : 0141-2743928, 4033715, (M) 98290 56151 | Email : mathur_co@rediffmail.com




MATHUR & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Emphasis of Matter

. We draw attention to Para 1.10 (ii) of Note No.l and Note No.6 to the financial
statement regarding Retirement Benefits (Gratuity), which states that liability for
gratuity was depicted as on 31.03.2022 for *114.38 lakh in the books, but no investment
was made as required under AS-15.

Aftention is also invited to Note no. 30 “Contingent Liabilities and Capital
Commitments {0 the extent not provided for”, wherein liabilities for substantial amount

[

which ‘may materially affect the financial statements of the company, on various’

accounts have not been provided for.

3. We draw attention to the Note No. 12 “Non-Current Investments” wherein no provision
for loss has been made in respect of the investment of Rs.60.00 lacs made in subsidiary
company, Sambhar Salts Ltd. in the books of accounts in view of much higher net worth
of the subsidiary company calculated on the basis of the market value of fixed assets
which was last assessed by the Certified Assets Value in the year 2001.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of above matters.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Directors’ Report, Management Discussion and Analysis, Report on
Corporate Governance and other Annexure to the Directors” report but does not include the
standalone financial statements and our auditors® report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If; based on the work we have performed, we conclude that if there is a material misstatement _

of this other information; we are required to report that fact. The other information is not
available as on date of signing the report, and hence we do not report on the information other
than the standalone financial statements and auditor’s report thereon.

Continuation Sheet
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Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financia] Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or erTor. :

In preparing the standalone the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

- Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatement can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individual or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that Is sufficient and appropriate to
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provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal ﬁnanmal controls in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

¢ [Dvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management,

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
cxists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in anditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. OQur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e LEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transaction and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.’

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial

- statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those éharged with statement that we have compiled with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and wherc
applicable, related safeguards. :




MATHUR & CO. Continuation Sheet

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companics (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the Annexure “B” a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

{b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c)  The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the cash flow statement dealt
with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) TIn our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014; except AS-2 “Valuation of Inventories”, AS -15
“Employee Benefits™ and AS-29 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets ™

(¢)  In pursuance to the Notification No. G.S.R 463(E) dated 05-06-2015 issued by the
Ministry of Corporate affairs, Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to
disqualification of Directors, is not applicable to the Government Company.

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate

Report in Annexure “C”

(g} In pursuance to the Notification No. G.S.R 463(E) dated 05-06-2015 issued by the
Ministry of Corporate affairs, Section 197(16) of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining
to Managerial Remuneration, is not applicable to the Government Company.

(h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a.  The company has not disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements- refer note No. 30 to the financial statements.

b. The company did not have any long - term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 7 :
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c.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

d i The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or... .
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

ii. ‘The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (“Ultimatc Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

i. Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub clause [i]and
[ii] above, contain any material mis-statement.

e.  Nodividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

3. Asrequired by section 143 (5) of the Act, we give in the Annexure “D” 3 statement on
the compliance to the Direction / Sub-direction issued by the Comptroller & Auditor
General of India in respect of the company.

) For Mathur& Co.
' Chartered Accountants
FRN: 001952C

(Manisha Maheshwari)

Place: Jaipur Partner
Date: 27.08.2022 M. No. 079617

UDIN: 220179417 ARKOWV 1859
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Annexure-A

{(Forming part of Independent Auditor’s Report on Standalone Financial Statements of
Hindustan Salts Limited for the vear ended on 315 March, 2022

* Basis for Qualified opinion

(Referred to in para under “Basis for Qualified opinion” of our report)

1) It has been observed that D-1 Mine Project at Mandi Unit was not operational during
the year and no extraction of salt is being carried out from this mine. The company is
doing limited extraction from a separate D-2 Mine. The operational utility and
commercial viability of this mine shall be ascertained and necessary adjustment in this
regard may be made at the earliest. It has also been observed that at Mandi unit
particulars of assets relating to addition during the years only are available and not for
the brought forward balances of assets. Therefore, the depreciation as per Schedule 11
of the Companies Act 2013 has not been properly charged. In absence of relevant
details, the same cannot be quantified.

2) The provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) are applicable to the

Company for the financial year 2021-22 as the Net Profit for the immediate preceding

previous year was more than Rs. 5 Crore. The Company has neither incurred any

expenditure on this account nor due provision has been made for CSR liability. The

i expenditure are understated by Rs. 3.47 Lacs and profit overstated by Rs. 3.47 Lacs on
this account.

3) The company has received rent from letting out of part of its office premises to M/s
Instrumentation Limited for which no formal agreement is available on records for
period till January, 2022. It has been observed that such rental income is not accounted
for on regular basis and therefore, GST payable on this income is also delayed on this
account.

4) The Company has given loan to its subsidiary company in previous years out of the
) funds received as loan from Govt. of India, Ministry of Industry. Company is required
to pay interest as well as penal interest on the outstanding amount of loan received from
Govt. of India. During the year, the company has passed a board resolution stating that
since the Govt. of India is not charging any penal interest, the company will also not
- charge any penal interest on loan given to its subsidiary company. The rate of interest
on loan to subsidiary was also fixed at 12% per annum only. However, the loan received
by the company from Govt. of India is at different rates of interest ranging from 11.50%
to 15.50% and penal interest is from 14.00% to 18.25%. As per the records, the Govt.
of India during the year has charged penal interest from the company on such loan. Th
reduction on rate of interest and not charging penal interest from subsidiary compa

C-33, Pankaj Singhvi Marg, Lal Kothi Scheme, Near Vidhan Sabha, Jaipur 302015
Telephone : 0141-2743928, 4033715, (M) 98290 56151 | Email : mathur_co@rediffmail.com
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is therefore against the facts of the matter. In absence of relevant details amount cannot
be quantified.

5) The company has provided security deposit and performance security to relevant courts/
authorities of Rs. 45.05 Lacs and Rs. 19.35 Lacs respectively in form of Fixed Deposits
Receipts. The accrued interest on such deposits has been included in such Security
deposit and performance security in place of being shown as accrued interest on FDR..
Security deposit and performance security are overstated by Rs. 2,06,763 and Rs.
7,17,021 respectively and accrued interest on FDR’s is understated by Rs. 9,23,784.

6) The company has carried out trading activities at Ramnagar Unit but no stock register
was maintained for it. The modus for such activity was “Bill to Company” and “ship to
customer’ by the supplier i.e. Sambhar Salt Limited without having physical delivery
of goods at Ramnagar. The unit at year end has declared closing stock of Rs, 70,11,200.
The disclosure of fact that such physical stock is lying elsewhere along with its
conlirmation has not been stated in the financial statements.

7) It hasbeen observed that large balances in following cases are being brought forwarded
from earlier years. It is suggested that the matter may be finalized and necessary
adjustments be made in this regard at the earliest :-

S. | Account Head Particulars Amount in Rs.
No.
1 Note- 12 Amount outstanding from M/s Gujrat | 1,98,88,958
Long term Loans & | Tech Cell Pvt. Ltd depicted under sub
Advances head “Other loans & advances”
2 | Capital Reserve Amount being depicted from last :
many years. Nature & details not | 10,26,28,293.41
made available

8) As reported earlicr, the work of production of Magnesium Chloride was leased out by
the company to M/s Mayur Stone. This entity had discontinued the operations in F.Y.
2018-19 but the lease agreement was not cancelled nor was any handing over / taking
over of the plant at that time was carried out. At the time of discontinuation of the
operation and as on beginning of the year certain debit and credit balances were
appearing in account of Mayur Stone in books of accounts of the company. The details
of same are enumerated hereunder :

L. Amount receivable from Mayur Stone Rs. 2527262
II. Amount due to Mayur stone

a)  Amount payable Rs. 1203900

b)  Security deposit Rs. 600000

¢)  Earnest money deposit Rs. 200000 Rs. 2003900

II.  Net amount receivable from Mayur Stone Rs. 523362
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Accordingly, as at beginning of the year, the company was entitled to receive a sum of
Rs. 523362/- from Mayur Stone.

During the year, as per copy of note sheet, a sum of Rs. 9,90,000/- has been written off
as receivable from the company on account of value of stock of wood belonging to
Mayur Stone and lying at site of the company. However no documentary evidence in
this regard were provided to us. Apart from it, a further sum of Rs. 3,67,962/- was also
written off as receivable for which no approval is available on record. This sum of
Rs.3,67,962/- has been adjusted against amount of SD & EMD of Rs. 800000/- depicted
in books of account of the company leaving a sum of Rs. 432038/- as payable (o Mayur
Stone. The write offs have not been approved by the board and no approval for refund
of SD & EMD is also available on record.

The net result of all these adjustment is that a sum of Rs, 4,32,038/- is now payable to
Mayur Stone against a sum of Rs. 5,23.362/- receivable from it when this entity
discontinued its lease arrangement with the Company.

9) As pointed out in the previous year’s supplementary audit, the company has not
disclosed the cost formulae used for valuation of inventory / salt in progress and
accordingly AS-2 for. Valuation of Inventory issued by ICAI has not been properly
complied with.

10) The company has not bifurcated trade receivables into long term and short term as
required by the Revised Schedule -II of the Companies Act, 2013. The company has
depicted under Note 16, total trade receivables of Rs. 22 lacs as on 31.3.2022 (Previous
year Rs. 23.23 lacs). However, there are debtors of Rs. 21.71 lacs as on 31.3.2022
(Previous year Rs. 21.73 Jacs) which are outstanding for a period of more than 12
months and should be shown separately under the Note 14 “Other Non-current assets™.

[1)The company has not bifurcated trade payables into long term and short term as
required by the Revised Schedule-III of The Companies Act, 2013. The company has
depicted under Note 8, total trade payables of Rs.194.81 lacs as on 31.3.2022 (Previous
year Rs.109.98 lacs. However, there are trade payables of Rs. 93.50 lacs as on
31.3.2022 (Previous year Rs.107.28 lacs) which are outstanding for a period of more
than 12 months and should be shown separately under Note 5 “Other Long term
liabilities™.

12) The numerator and denominator used for computation of various accounting ratios have
not been explained as required by the Revised Schedule III of The Companies Act,

2013.

13) The bifurcation of l[oan given to subsidiary company into long term and short term has
not been done while preparing financial statements in absence of relevant information
the same cannot be quantified. '
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14) As per the practice followed by the company, the head office on behalf of its units make
payments to difterent vendors and also receives payment from various parties. The units
make adjustment entries in this regard in accounts of the parties as and when the
relevant intimation is received from head office. It is observed that the date of actual
receipts and payments are not available with the units and thus period wise oufstanding
of such parties cannot be evaluated properly from the books of accounts of the units.
Therefore, we are unable to comment on the ageing schedule of debtors and creditors
as depicted in the financial statements.

For Mathur& Co.
: Qhartered Accountants
"~ FRN: 001952C

(Manisha Maheshwari)
Place: Jaipur . Partner
Date: 27.08.2022 M.No. 079617
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“Annexure-B”

Forming part of Independent Auditor’s Report on Standalone Financial Statements of
Hindustan Salts Limited for the vear ended on 313 March, 2022

(Referred to in Para 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements™ of
Our report of even date)

We report that:-

i.  (a) (A) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not maintained
reasonable records showing particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed

assets.
(B) According to information and explanations given to us, the company has not maintained

proper records of intangible assets,

(b) As explained to us, the company has no written policy and procedures for physical
verification of the fixed assets at reasopable intervals. Fixed assets have not been physically
verified by the management. No comment therefore can be made on discrepancies, if any.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and as per records examined by
us, we found following discrepancies in title deeds of immovable properties. The details of such
discrepancies are as under:-

1. Frechold property at Kharagodha Village, District- Surendar Nagar, (Gujarat) Area
23596 Acres — "24.54 lakh. However, as per records of fixed assets maintained at
the unit the total land area is 23449 acres. The details of land holding as provided to
us is as under:-

Particulars Area

Run side land 22768 Acres
Village land 326 Acres
Miscellaneous land 25 Acres
Land acquired back by Govt. 330 Acres
Total 23449 acres

2. Title documents in relation to Run side Land which is under salt manufacturing area
. were not provided to us. It has also been explained that the state Govt. of Gujarat
has disputed the above land as lease hold in place of free hold land and claim of °
272.80 lacs on account of agriculture and non-agriculture assessment has been
raised. The matter is presently sub-judice.

) 3. Title documents in form of copy of 7/12 for land measuring about 132 acres are
available on record. The name of owner of property is mentioned as “Hindustan Sal
Woks, Kharagodha” instead of “Hindustan Salts Limited” '

C-33, Pankaj Singhvi Marg, Lal Kothi Scheme, Near Vidhan Sabha, Jaipur 302015
Telephone : 0141-2743928, 4033715, (M) 98290 56151 | Email : mathur_co@rediffmail.com
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arca of 702.25 sq. mtr, Rs ¥ 37.92 Lakh were not made available.

5. Leaschold Property at Maigal Salt Works, Gum Mines, Drang Mines, Himachal
Pradesh having area 133.116 Acres. A photo copy of lease deed executed on
31.08.2007 in the name of Hindustan Salts Limited is available and no other
document was provided by the company to verify the title in the name of the
Company. Out of above, title documents in respect of land measuring 74 acres at
Gum, were not available on records.

6. Leasehold Property at Ramnagar, District: Nanital, with area of 4712.61 sq.-mir.
Original title documents were not made available for verification.

(d) As explained to us, Company has not revalued any of its property, plant, equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e} According to information and explanation given to us, no proceeding have been
initiated or are pending against the company as at March 31, 2022 for holding benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules
made thereunder. :

ii. (a) According to information and as explanation given to us, company has no procedure and

iii.

policy for verification of inventory at reasonable intervals.

(b) As explained to us, the company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess
of Rs. 5 Crore, in aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets hence reporting under clause 3(ii) (b)
of the order is not applicable.

(a) During the year the company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 however the company has
given loan to its subsidiary company Sambhar Salts Limited in previous years having
outstanding balance as on 31.3.22 of Rs. '3576.50 lakh.

(b) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loan prima-facie are not prejudicial to
the company’s interest.

(¢) In respect of loans of “3576.50 lakh to subsidiary company, Sambhar Salts Limited,
no regular recoveries have been made of principal or of interest, There is no proper
schedule of repayment of principal and interest. The company has also given advances in
nature of loan to its employees which are recovered regularly together with interest if
applicable as per company policy.

(d) In respect of loans granted by the company to subsidiary, the total outstanding amount
of principal and interest as on 31.03.2022 is *6105.87 lakh i.e. principal 3576.50 lakh and
interest “2529.37 lakh, which is overdue by 90 days. The company has not taken
necessary steps for recovery of loan along with interest from its subsidiary company,.
Sambhar Salts Limited. ' 1-
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(e) During the year the company has not renewed or extended any loan or granted any
fresh loans to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same parties.

(f) The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the
year.

iv.  Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grants of
loans, making investments and providing guarantecs and securities as applicable.

v.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not accepted
any deposits under the provisions of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of
the Companies Act and rules framed there under. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) is
not applicable.

vi. In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, maintenance of
cost records is not applicable to the company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(vi) is not
applicable.

vii. a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of books of accounts and records, the company has been generally regular
in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income tax, goods and service tax, custom duty, cess and other material
statutory dues as applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and as per the records of
the company examined by us, there is no dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax,
custom duty, excise duty or value added tax outstanding on account of any dispute,

According to information and explanations given to us, there were no transactions relating
to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the income tax act,1961 (43 of 1961). Hence,
reporting under clause 3(viii) is not applicable. :

Viil.

ix. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution or bank
except default in repayment of loan to Government of India of "3936.55 (including
interest of "2695.26 lakh.) No repayment of loan and interest to Government of India has
been made by the Company. Details of these overdue amounts are as under :-

Nature of | Nameof | Amount Whether | No. of days | Remarks |
borrowings | Lender not paid on | principal | delay or
due date or interest | unpaid

Unsecured | Govt. of 12,41,29,000 | Principal Different
Loan India, dates since

Ministry the loan is

of Heavy given on

Industry
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different
dates
Unsecured | Govt. of 26,95,26,201 | Interest Different
Loan India, dates of
Ministry repayments
of Heavy
Industry

(b) The company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or Government or any government authority. .

(c) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, term loan is
applied for the purpose for which the loan was obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the company
has not taken any funds on short term basis.

(¢)During the year the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f) The Company, during the year, has not raised any loans on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries.

x. (a) The company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and by way of term loans during the year.

(b) During the year, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of share or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under clause 3(x) (b} of the order is not applicable.

xi. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the
' company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the course of our audit.

(b) No report under sub section {12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed
in ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle blower
complaints were received by the company during the year (and upto the date of this report)
and hence reporting under clause 3(xi) (¢} of the order is not applicable. .

xii, The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under this clause is not
applicable.

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company” s transactions with its related parties are in compliance with section 177 and
188 of the Companies Act, 2013, wherever applicable. The details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.
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Xiv. (a) The company has an internal audit system. Internal audit of the Company is being carried
by the independent firm of Chartered Accountants and looking to the size, nature and volume of
transactions, the same needs to be strengthened;

(b) The reports of the internal auditors for the period under audit were considered by us.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors
and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Compames Act, 2013 are not appllcable to the
Company. ' :

xvi. (a) In our opinion and as per information’s & explanations provided to us, the company is
not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

(b) As explained to us and as per information the company has not conducted any Non-
Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.

(c) As per our information and as explained to us, the company is not a Core Investment
Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the group and accordingly
reporting under clause 3(xvi) (d) of the order is not applicable.

xvii. The company has not incurred cash Josses during the financial year covered by our audit
and the immediately preceding financial year.

xviil.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the company during the year.

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financiaf
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the board of directors and management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the of the audit report indicating that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a petiod of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

XX. (a) It is observed that the provisions of CSR is applicable to the Company for the year ,
however the company has not made any provisions for the same and neither spent
applicable amount on any of CSR activity. Therefore there are no unspent amounts
towards corporate social responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing projects which is
transfer to a fund specified in schedule VII to the companies act in compliance witk

UR
second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said act. A g >
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(b) There is no amount remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the
companies act, pursuant fo any ongoing project, has been transferred to special account
in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said act.

For Mathur& Co.

-~ Chartered Accountants
- FRN: 001952C

Moty

" (Manisha Maheshwari)
Place: Jaipur - Partner

Date: 27.08.2022 M.No. 079617
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ANNEXURE - C

Forming part of the Independent Auditor’s report of even date on the Financial
Statements of Hindustan Salts Limited for the year ended on 31 March 2022

Report on the Internal Financial controls under Clause (1) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) -

(Réferred to in p.ara 2 (1) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requi
of our report of even date)

rements”

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Hindustan Salts
Limited, Jaipur, (‘the Company’) as of 31* March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial

controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the

Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note

on Audit of Internal Financial Confrols over financial reporting issued by the Institute of
- Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’).

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
- financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to company’s polices, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the **Guidance Note’*)
and the Standards on Auditing, issucd by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and j:erform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting wa
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respect

.

17 -]
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial conirols over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing, and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal-financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting inchudes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatement of due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting to future periods are
subject to risk that the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting may became
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the
following material weaknesses have been identified as at March 31, 2022:

a) The company has no proper policies and procedures for periodical physical
verification of fixed assets and inventories of the company. During the year under
consideration no physical verification of fixed assets has been conducted by th
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company. The company’s internal control over existence, completeness, valuation &
allocation of fixed assets is not operating effectively. As reported to us, physical
verification of inventory was not conducted at any unit but however, the management
has written off inventory at its Kharagodha Unit.

b) The internal audit of the Company is being carried by the independent firm of
Chartered Accountants and looking to the size, nature and volume of transactions, the
same needs to be strengthened,

_¢) The company lacks a periodic system of preparing bank reconciliation and obtaining
third party balance confirmations for various advances & liabilities and accordingly
does not reconcile the periodic balances with the confirmations, which could
potentially result is material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements.

In our opinion , to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, except for the possible effects of the material weaknesses described above on the
achievement of objectives of the control criteria, the company has maintained, in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating cffectively as at 31% March,
2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Mathur& Co.
Lhartered Accountants

FRN: 001952C
\‘Wv"-“"“:"{--:.:_
(Manlsha Maheshwari)
Place: Jaipur ' (Partner)
Date:  27.08.2022 M. No. (79617
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Annexure-D

(Forming part of Independent Auditor’s Report on Standalone Financial Statements of

Hindustan Salts Limited for the vear ended on 31% March, 2022

Compliance to the Directions u/s 143 (5) of the Act by the Comptroller & Auditor General of

India

(Referred to in para 3 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”)

No.

-~ Particulars

=% Auditors’ Reply ™

Impact on
Financial
Statements

Whether the company has system in
place to process all the accounting
transactions through IT system? If
yes, the implications of processing of
accounting ftransactions outside IT
system on the integrity of the
accounts along with the financial
implications, if any, may be stated.

Company is maintaining accounting
transactions through Tally Software at
all its units ie. Kharagodha Unit,
Mandi Unit and Ramnagar Unit as well
as at its Head office.

No impact on
financial
statements

Whether there is any restructuring of
any existing loan or cases of waiver /
write off of debts / loans / interest ete.
made by a lender to the company due
to the company’s inability to repay
the loan? If yes, the financial impact
may be stated.

As informed to us, there is no case of
restructuring of any existing loan or
waiver / write off of loan / interest to
the company by lender

No impact on
financial

statements

Whether funds received / receivables
for specific schemes from Central /
State  agencies were  properly
accounted for / utilized as per its term
and conditions? List the cases of
deviation.

Based on the information available and
according to the information and
explanations given to us, the company
has not received any fund for specific
schemes from central / state agencies
during the year.

However, the company has received
grant for payment of pension to ex-
cmployees of salt department. The
same was properly recorded and no
deviation was observed.

adverse
on

No
impact
financial
statements.

Place:
Date:

Jaipur
27.08.2022

For Mathur & Co.
Chartered Accountants

2
S

JAIPUR E ‘“mw}z’
PR

FRN: 001952C

L

(Manisha Maheshwari)

(Partner)

M. No. 079617
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HINDUSTAN SALTS LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 318T MARCH, 2022

(I In Lakhs)
Note FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
FARIIGULARS No. © 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
A, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. SHARE HOLDER'S FUND
(a] Share Capital 2 5,205.96 5,205.96
(b) Reserve & Surplus _ 3 253.05 9271
(¢) Money Received against Share Warrants 5 - 5
2. SHARE APPLICATION MONEY PENDING
ALLOTMENT ’ - - =
3. NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
{a) Long Term Borrowings _ 4 - B 60.00
(b} Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) - - o 3 =
{c) Other Long Term Liabilitics 5 103.35 109.76
{d) Lontg Term Provisions 6 240.58 249.79
4. CURRENT LIABILITIES _
(a) Short Term Borrowings 7 1,241.29 1,181.29
{b] Trade Payables 8 '
(A) Total outstanding dues of Micro
enterprises and small enterprises =
{B) Total outstanding dues of Creditors other
than Micro enterprises and small enterprises 194.81 1058.98
{¢) Other Current Liabilities g9 2,990.77 2,823.42
(d) Short Term Provision 10 20.50 -
TOTAL - 10,250,31 9,832.92
B. ASSETS
1. NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment &
Intengible Assets 11
(i) Property, Plant and Equipment 615.11 627.33
{ii} Intangible Assets 0.35 . . 0.2¢
{iti) Capital Work-In-Progress 12,72 24.17
(iv) Intangible Assets under Development - s -
(b) Non Current Investments 12 60.00 60.00
(¢) Deferred Tax Assets [net) - 29.19 -
(d) Long term Loans and Advances 13 747.42 747.42
{e) Other Non Current Assets 14 92.05 288.09
1,556.84 1,747.30
2. CURRENT ASSETS i ?
{a} Current [nvestments - - -
{b} Inventories 15 85.52 75.02
{c) Trade Receivables 16 22.00 23,23
{d) Cash & Cash Equivalents. 17 2,847 .96 388.46
(¢] Short Term Loans and Advances 18 5,691.54 6,973.40
(I} Other Current Assets 19 _.46.45 25.51
' 8,693.47 8,085.62
TOTAL 10,250.31 9,832.92
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 1-31 |
AL ===

{Vikas Yaday] [Smﬁeep Kumar Tak)  {Shankar Lal Agarwal)

Company Secretary GGM(F&A}  Director

in terms of our report

*

DIN -07182357
of even date annexed hereto

For Mathur & Co
O Chartered Accountants.
O\ Firm Registration No,001952¢

(CMDE Kamlesh Kumar{Retd))
Chairman and Managing Director
DIt -08834327

Flace : Jf'

Dated 2

(Manisha Maheshwari)
. Partner
Membership No. 079617
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HINDUSTAN SALTS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

(T In Lakhs)
PARTICULARS Note FOR THE YEAR | FOR THE YEAR
No. 2021-2%2 202021
REVENUE :-
I Revenue from Operations 20 2,412.61 1,237.67
II Other Income 21 551.56 806.26
Less: Share of common H.Q. receipts as
apportioned to Subsidiary Company, Sambhar
Salts Limited 1.99 1.80
II Total Income 2,962.18 2,042.13
IV EXPENSES-
Cost of Materials Consumed it 22 779.69 390.06
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade . 1,176.14 399.67
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods Work-
in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade 23 (62.42 (7.52)
Employee Benefits Expense 24 489.11 418.90
Finance Costa 25 270.56 301.53
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 72.52 80.03
Other Expenses 26 164.17 83.17
2,889.77 1,665.84
LE3SS: Share of common H.O. expenses as
apportioned to Subsidiary Company, Sambhar
Salts Limited 219.57 182,95
Total Expenses 2,670.20 1,482.89
V FPROFIT BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL AND
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS 291,958 559.23
VI EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS 206.50
Prior Period Income/(Expenses)/
Adjustment Net 27 {57.54] 20.36
VII PROFIT BEFORE EXTRACRDINARY ITEM
AND TAX
VIII EXTRAORDINERY ITEM
IX PROFIT BEFORE TAX 143.02 579.60
X Taxr Expenses
Current Tax 20,50 -
Deferred Tax (29.19) -
X1 PROFIT FOR THE PERICD FROM CONTINUVING )
CPERATION 151.71 579.60
XIT PROFT {LOSS FROM DISCONTINUING
OPERATION - -
XIIl TAX EXPENSES OF DISCONTINUED
OPERATION : - -
AV PROFIT FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATION
AFTER ‘I‘AK_ ) - -
XV PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 15171 579.60
XVI Earaings per equity share: 28
Basic EPS (in Rs.) 29.14 111.33
Diluted EPS (in Rs.) 29.14 111.33
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES
ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 1-31 s
WM| {8andeep Kumax Tak] (Shankar Lal Agarwal] d {CMDE Kumar{Retd) }
Company Secretary COM.[F&a| Director Chairman and Managing Director
DIN 07182357 DIN -08884327

in terms of our report of even date annexed hereto

Q‘S“\UR @0

Place : Jaipur
Dated : 2 7

For Mathur & Co
Chartered Accountants
O\ Firm Registration No. 001952C

{Manisha Maheshwari)
Partner
Membership No. 079617
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HINDUSTAN SALTS LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31°T MARCH, 2022

{Rs In Lakhs)
Particulars 2021.22 2020-21
Cash Flow from. Operating Activities :
Profit/{Loss) before Tax 143.02 579.60
| A Adjustments for
Depreciation 72.52 80.03
Provision for Income Tax -20.50
Provision for doubtful debts - -
Provision for Leave Encashment & D.C.R. G (9.22) {45.39)
Interest Expenses 270.56 301.53
Loss on discarded asset iy 0y - -
Interest Income from TDR T Subs:diarv C‘ompany (510.49) (592.83)
Misc. Expenses incurred during the year % =
Capital Reserve adjusted during the year - {197.13) 0.01 (256.65)
. B Operating Profit before workin g capital changes (54.11) 322.95
C Change in working Capital
Short Term Borrowings 60.00 -
Trade Payables -+ 84,83 (70.72)
Other Long Term Ligbilities (6.41) 109.76
Other Current Liabilities 167.35 3.64
Short Term Porivision 20.50
Inventories (10.50) 23.86
Trade Receivables 1.22 {0.41)
Short Term Loans and Advances 1,281.86 (118.99)
Other Current Assets {20.94) [6.54)
Other Misc Expenses Do -
Other Bank Balances | (1,865.94) (288.03) (43.68) {(103.06)
D Cash generated from operations {342.14) 219.89
E Adjustments for direct tax paid — - - -
F Net Cash Flow from Operative Activities (D- E} (342.14) 219.89
G Cash Flow from investing Activities
Purchase of fixed assets & Capital W.1. P, (40.27) (29.81)
Interest Income 210.49 592.83
Other Non Current Assets 196.04 -
Loan given to Subsidiary Company, Sambhar Salts
Limited /Pension Fund - 666.26 69.15 - 632,17
H th Cash Flow from Financing Activities :
Net proceeds from long term borrowing (60.00) {60.00)
Share capital Received - -
Deposits ' - -
Interest Expenses  [270.56) {330.56} (301.53) (361.53)
I Netchangesin Cash and Cash equivalent [6.44}) 490.53
J Cash and Cash equivalent at the beginning of Fin. Year 561.14 70.62
K Cash and Cash equivalent at the end of the Fin, Year 554.70 561,14

Cash Flow Statemetn has been prepared on indirect method as per AS -3
FDRs of Rs.95.68 lakh pledged with SEI Jaipur, Kharaghoda and Mandi (previous year Rs. 91.49 Lakh With SBI)) towards

secunty for OD Loan

Cash and Cash equivalent at the end of the Fin. Year
As per Cash Flow Statement
FDR more then 3 Months

E:aﬁs per Note 16 ; Cash and Cash Equivalents /ﬁ_’_}_
{Vikas Yadav) [Sandecep Kumar Tak) I nkar Lal Agarwal)-
Company Secretary GGM(F&A) Director

DIN 07182357
in terms of our report of even daté annexed hereto
For Mathur & Co

a

Place : Jaipur

27 AU 07

Mam’é——"-
{Manisha Maheshwari)
Par_tner

Charte: ed Accountants

554.70
3,293.26
2,847.96

361.14
427.32
S88.46

{CMDE Kamlesh Kumar (Retd.))
Chairman and Managing Director

DIN -088842327
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NOTE NO.-1:- SIGNIF ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED
. ON 31 MARCH, 2022 -

L1

1.2.

13,

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost
convention on-the basis of going concern, with revenue recognised and expenses

accounted for on accrual system of accounting.

USE OF ESTIMATES
The preparation of Financial Statements requires estimates and assumptions which
affected the reported amounts of assets, hab;lmes, revenues and expenses of the reportmg
period. The difference between the actual results and estunates are recognised in the

period in which the results are known or materialised.

INVESTMENTS

Investments are classified into- Current and Non-Currént Investments. Current

'Inircstments are stated at lower of cost or market value. Non-Current Investments arc -

1 14’

stated at cost and prov1310n for. dmnnutzon in value is made only if such declme is-other

than temporary in the opinion of the management.

. CLASSIFICATION OF ASSETS ANI) LIABILITIES AS CURRENT AND NON
CURRENT A

All assets and liability are classified as current or nén—curren_t as'per_the companies normal - -

operating cycle and other criteria set out in schedule TII to the Combahiés Act 2013 Based-

on the nature of products and the. time between acquisition of assets for processing and
their realization in cash and cash equivalent, 12 months has been considered by the

company for the purpose of current - non-current clasmﬁcatmn of-assets and hablhnes

R S
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L5.  VALUATION OF INVENTORIES/SALT IN PROCESS

L.6.

1.7.

(i)  Stores & Spares are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower

- except otherwise mentioned. | : P

(i)  Raw materials and packing materials are valued at cost or net realisable value
whichever is lower except otherwise mentioned.

.(iii) Released material and scrap is valued at estimated realisable value and Assets

(Scraped) is valued at book value.

(iv)  Loose tools those exceeding Rs. 750/- added during the year. ILoose tools costing - |
~ Rs. 750/~ or less purchased during the vear are charged to the revenue under _

respective heads.

(v)  Salt, Bromine stocks and Work in Progress are valued at direct cost/ Net

Realisable Value whichever is lower,

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and on hand and

short "t_enn-deposi't with an original maturity of 3 months or less, and maturity more than 3 -.

Months areé shown in other bank balances _w_hich' are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value.

RECOGNITION OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

Revenue / Income and expénditure /-cost are generally accounted on accrual basis as they

are earned or incurred. Revenue from sale of 80oods recognized when the significant risk

- and reward of ownership has been transfer to the buyer.

. L8.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTION

The expenditure in forei.gn currency is accounted for at the rate prevailing on the date of

transaction, Any income or expenses on.account of exchange rate difference either on

setilement or a transaction is recognized in the statement of profit and loss,
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13- PROVISION FOR BAD AND DOUBTFUL TRADE RECEIVABLES AND
ADVANCES | ‘g

Trade cheivables and Advanccé outstanding for more than 3 years are reviewéd at the

close of the year and provision made on case to case basis in case of uncertainty in the

realisation of outstanding amount, in the opinion of the management,

L.10. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

@)

- (i)

Gy

(iv)

Pension

The Payment of Pension with regard to pensionary charges for the staff absofbcd
in the company from Salt Department is being - paid from the Grantin-Ajid
received from Department of Heavy industries, Govt. 'of India, New Delhi and is
passed on to Pension Fund Trust. '

' Gratuity

Gratuity is administered by a separate irrevocable Trust which has taken a L1cC.
Policy covering all the eligible employees except Agarias - Company's piece-rate
workers, and eligible daily paid workers in whose case the liability is provided as
per the payment of Gratuity A‘ct-ll972. No liability is providéd_ for-_gratuity in

~ respect of work charged staff for the period pnbr. to the formation of the Company.

Demands made by the Trust including the Annual Renewal Premium of the 1.1.C. -
Policy after taking 1st October of the year are charged to Statement of Profit &

Loss.

Leave Encashment _ _

Liability for leave due upto end of the aécountifl_g year has been provided on the .
éssumptiqn that such benefits are payable to al] enlplbyces at the end of the B

* Accounting Year.

Expenditure incurred on VRS are being written off in five years in equal
instalments. |




L11. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION

@)

(i)

leed Assets are valued at historical cost on cons1stent basis and are net of

refundable taxes and levies wherever applicable. All cost relating to achISltIOIl of

ﬁxed assets till comm1ssmmng of stch assets are capltahsed

Depreciation on fixed assets is being provided consmtently on written down value
method over useful life of assets specified in Schedule I of the Companies Act
2013 and 100% depreciatwn has been provnded on the assets costing Rs. 5,000/~ or

less acquired during the year.

1.12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(@)

(i)

(iii)

INITIAL RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

Intangible assets that are acquired by the company, which have defined useful life,
are recognized at cost. Subs'equent measurement is done at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes any directly
attributable incidental expenses necessary to make the assets ready for its intended

use.

- DERECOGNITION

An intangible assets is derecognized when no future economic benefits are
expected from their use or upon their disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an
item of intangible assets are determine by comparing the proceeds‘ from disposal
with the carrying of inxaﬁgible assets and are recognized in the statement of profit

and loss.

AMORTIZATION

Cost of software recognized as intangible assets is amortized on written down
value method over a period of legal right to use or 3 years whichever is less. Other
1ntang1ble assets are amortized on straight line method over a period of legal right

to use or life of the related plant whichever is less.

bW A G2
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—.other borrowing'costs' are charged to the Statement of Profit afid Loss,

113, BORROWING COST :

Borrowing costs that are attributable to -acquisition, 'con_struction or production of

| qualifying assets, are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets, A qualifying asset is an -

asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get readjr for intended use. All _

 L14.  GRANT-IN-AID

Grant—iri—_aid received / sanctioned during the year from Cess Fund against Completed / .
Capital / Development work is transferred to Capital Reserve Account except as otherwise
stated. In that case the deprecizitioﬁ. on such subsidised assets is being éha_rged to Capital
.Re'ser_vc and-Statement of Profit and Loss in the ratio of Grant in aid recejved and cost

borne by the Company.

The Payment of Pension with regérd to penéionaly charges for the staff absorbed in the .
company from Salt Department is being - paid from the Grant-in-Aid__repeived from

. Department of I.feavy in'dustri_cs Govt. of India New Delhi and is passed on the Pension

Fund Trust,

L15.  PROVISION FOR WASTAGES ON SALT STOCKS

Physical verification of salt heaps on accurate and reliable basis is not feasible because of
thé irregular sha_i:ue_s of salt heaps. Actual deficit / wa.-stage's are adjusted in the accounts of = -
- the fmancial year in which the heaps are finally cleared, However, prdvision forIWas'ta'ges e
@10% of the'quantity produced / stored during the financial -yéar, and @ 5% on the 't
opening stock of the yeat is made in respect of -salt heaps not ﬁnally cleared during the

year.
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1.16. APPORTIONMENT OF COMMON CORPORATE OFFICE EXPENSES

() . There is a common Chairman & Managing Director for Hindustan Salts Ltd,
(Holding Company) and Sambhar Salts Ltd (Subsidiary Company), In the absence

~of any specific mention in the terms of his appointment as regards sharing of the _

' remuneration the same ‘is apportioned between the two Companies in the ratio of

25% and 75% respectively.

(il  The Corporate Office comimon expenses, depreciation and interest (including -

1.17. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

. Inrespect of the transactions pertaining to the period prior to the current accounting year,

the Cémpany follows the practice in conformity with the Accounting Standards.

1.18. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research and development cost (other than cost of fixed assets eicqu_ired)_ are charged as

an expense in the year in which th;y are incurred.

1.19. TAXATION | _ : e "
~ (D) . Current Income Tax is determined on the basis of taxable income computed in
accordance with the proviSioﬂ of the Income Tax Act, -196-1_, -

(i)  Deferred tax is reéogm'se:d on timing differences between taxable and accounting
income / expenditure that originates in one period and are capable of reversal in
one or more subsequent period(s). Deferred Tax Asset is rmbgn_iséd on thcl basié :
of virfuai / reasonable certzﬁﬁty about its Ireliabiiity as applicable, .’r\ ' '
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1.20. PROVISIONS, CON TINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS |

Provisions 1nvolving substantial degree of estimation and measurement are recognised

when there is present oblj gation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will

be an outflow of resources. Conﬁngen’t Assets are neither recognised nor diéclosed in the

- ﬁx_lancial statements._ Contingent liabilities, if material, are disclosed By way of notes,

1.21. CASH FLOW S_TATEMENTH

- Cash Flow Statement is prepared in accordance wﬁh the indirect method prescribed in -
Accounting Standard on 'Cash Flow Statement" (AS-3) as issu_ed by the Institute of
Chartered Accountant of India. The cash flow are reported using the indirect method
where by profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transaction of non-cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals or part on ﬁlﬁne Operating cash receipt or payments and items of
income or expenses associates trade with mvesting or ﬁnancmg cash flows. The cash ﬂk_iw

from operating, investing and ﬁnancial'activity.of the company are segregated.

122. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

The carrying amounts of assets are teviewed at each Balance Sheet date. In case there is
any indication of impairment based on internal / external factors, an impairment loss is

recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount,

1.23. WRITE OFF OF DEFFERED REVENUE EXPENDITURE

As per practice in vogue, the deferred revenue expenditure is being written off in five

equal annual . instalments beginning from the year in which such expenditure are

incurred.

g
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L24. MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES

under the Micro, Small and Medium" ;En_terpriscs Develbpment Act, 2006 the nnpaid
~ amount as at the year and together with the interest paid / payable as required under the

said Act have been made, -

1.25. PRELIMINARY AND PROJECT EXPENDITURE

Expenditure Incurred on projects is shown as other hon-current assets and will be
charged ;’capitali_zed in the year in which it is decided by the management to implement
the project. Otherwise, in case, the manage’n__wnf decides not to implement / close the .
projebt; expenditure on such project is cha_rged to the Statement of P_rdﬁt & Loss for the

 year in which such decision is taken. -
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HINDUSTAN SALTS LIMITED

Notes on Finan_cial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

¥ In Lakhs)

FIGURES AS ON.
NOTE - 2 : SHARE CAPITAL

FIGURES AS ON

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Authorised : ’ '
800,000 Equity Share (Previous year . _ 6,000.00 6,000.00
600,000 Equity Shares) of Rs. JTQOO{{_-_Fa_nfh e o ) P
i a ' 6,000.00. 6,000.00
Issued Subscribed and paid up - 5,205.95 5,205.96
520596 Equity Share {Previous year 520596
Equity Shares) of Rs. 1000 /- each fully paid-
up (Outof above shares, 15,461 fully paid up
shares allotted without payment being
received in cash)
: 5,205.96 5,205.96
NOTE - 2.1 : Details of Shareholders FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
holding more than 5% Shares - 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
; : Fo.of ; No. of
. : Shares Held o of Holding Shares Held o of Holding
Hon'ble President of India . 9,20,596 100% 2,20,596 100%
. {Z In Lakhs)
NOTE - 2.2 : Details of number of shares FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
- outstanding during the year 31.02.2022 31.03.2021
Number of Number of
Shares Amount Shares Amonnt
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the
year ) 5,20,596 5,205.96 5,20,5%6 5,205.95
Shares l'ssued during the year 3 = = -
Shares bought back during the year - = 7 -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 5,20,596 5,205.96 5,20,596 5,205.96

|

NOTE -2.3 : Share held by promoters at the end of the. year

FIGURES AS ON 31-03-2022

FIGUREs AS ON 21-03-2021

# Change during the
year

3 No  |Promotor Name No of Share | % of total Shar

No of Share | % of total Shares
1[{Hon'ble President of India 5,20,596 100 | . 5,20,596 100 i
Total . 5,20,506 | 100 5,20,595 100 -
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T In Lakhsj

WOTE - 3 : RESERVES & SURPLUS

FIGURES AS ON  FIGURES AS ON

31.3.2022 31.3.202]
kol ale}
As per the last Balance Sheet 1,026,28 1.026.29
Addition during the vear - -
Less : Adjusted During the year {Depreciztion) 2.8
Tota] [A) 1,026.28 1,026.28
Sarplys ln Statement of Prafit & Logs
As pet the ast Balance Sheet {933.57} IL513.17)
Add:- Profit/|Loss] during the year ; 151.71 57960
Leas : Adjnsted Dusing the year [Depreciation} . -8.63
Tokal [B) {7T3.23) 193357)
Total jA+H] - 253.05 92.71
1) 2 view of lative losses ting to Bs, 773,23 lakh {Previous Year 933,57 lakh), 20 dividend has been declared during the year by the Company. -
{7 In Lakhs)
NOTE - 4 : 6 BORR: s FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
i 31.3.2022 31.5.2021

IN-SECURED :
Loans from Gavt. of India, Ministry of Heavy Industey - 6000
Interest Accrued % due on Loans = i

- 60.00

Loan from Covernment of India anid Interest accrued and due on loans are subject to reconeiliations,

At the end of Bnandal year 2021-22 the company has not availed ow

2.30 Lacs at SBI Mandi.

erdraft Limit against sanction Limil of Bs,28, 77 lacs at SBI Jaipur,

Rs. 12.7} Lacs at SBI Kharaghoda and Rs,

HOTE - 4.1 ; DETAILS OF GOVERNMENT LOAN {PAYABLE IN 5 YEARLY INSTALLMERT)

(¥ In Lakhs)
3 NORMAL RATEOF | PENAL RATE OF
S.NO.  [LOAN AMOUNT LY. P.Y.. INTEREST {35] INFEREST %] .
T 150 0o 15000 11,50 1425
2 678.50 678.50 12,50 1525
3 i7m 37.79 15.50 1825
q F5.O00 75.00 12.50 1600
A 300.00 300.00 1150 1200
Total i 124123 1241.29
Less: Crwerdue Cupraat 1241.29 113129
Balance Lerg Term Dehts NIL 60.00
(% In Lakhs}
% FIGURES AS ON FICURES A3 O
NOTE- 5 : OTHER LOKG TERM LIARILITIES 31.3.2022 . 31.3.2021 j
Security Deposits 102,62 109.08
Other Liabilities 0.72 0.572
Dues Payable to Govt. Departments s >
Total 103.35 108,78
- FIGURES AS ON FIGURES A5 ON
HOTE - 6 : LONG TERM PROVISIONS A1 STl
FORDCRG
Halance at the beginning of the year 126.89 17%.56
Add: Provision for the year 11.59 -
Lesa: Adjustment during the year - ay.sz
Less; Payment during the year 24.30 1215
: 3 Total 4] 114.38 126.89
For Encashment of leave
Balance at the beginning of the year 12290 118.63
Add: Provision for the year 25.67 49.40
Less: l_’“.\vmma!s,'.l\djuss.mznts_ during the year 26,58 45,13
i ; Total (B} e 136.19 133,90
Por Wastuge of Stock of Salt
Balance at the beginning of the year a4.73
Add: Provision for the year - -
= 0.73
Less: Wastage on Final Clearance of heaps during the year : 0.73
. - 0.60
Deducted from Stock in Trade as per Contra .00
Total [C) = -
Total (A+B+C) 240.58 249.79

A% is

i [ terms of Accounting Standard 15,

The Company has provided gretwity Labality on the basis of

-
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{¥ I Lakhx)

NOTE - 7 : SHORT TEEM BORROWINGS

FIGURES AS OX

FIGURES AS ON

31.3.2022 31.3.2021
Cument Matucites of | Ong Term Debity
Loan from Govt of India fircluding sverdue amnint 1,341,029 L&l 25
Total 1,241.29 1,181.29
¥ In Lakhs)
NOTE - 7.1 : AMOUNT AND PERIODS OF DEFAULYS FIGURES A8 ON FICURES AS ON
321.03,2022 31.03.2021
In css of Continuing default as on the balance sheet '
date in repayment of loans and interest with Tespect
to abgve;
1. Period of Defualt 110 15 Years 1 w13 Years
2. Amount of Defanlt 3,036,585 | 3,506.01
Loan from Gi t of India and T acciued and due on loans subject to canfirmation and reconciliations,
(7 In Lakhs)
NOTE - 7.2 ; DETAILS OF GOVERNMENT LOAN [PATABLE IN 5 YEARLY INSTALLMENT
SHO. |LOAN AMOUNT C.Y. Py INTEREST [%) INTEREST [%)
1 150 .00 15000 1150 14.25
2 B78.50 578.50 12:50 1535
3 37.73 779 15.50 1825
4 75.00 75.00 - 13.50 1600
5 300.00  “z00.00] 11.50 14.00
Total 1241.29 124125
1 Less: Bwrrdue Currem Maturities Wil £0.00 I
Balance Long Term Debts 129129 118129 |
{1 In Lakhs}
FIGURES AS ON  FIGURES AS ON
ol -8: PAYABL
e “'“‘“’..E ATANLES 31.3.2022 dL.3.2021
Bundry Creditors for Gusds Supplisd 194.81 109.98
Total 194.81 109.95%
Trade Payable ageing schedules 2021-2022
- {Amotint in Rs)
5 No Particulars Dutstanding for following pericds from due date of payment
Not Due Less than 1 ) Morethe
t year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years qn 3 Years Toral
|1 Jwsme - : . = P 7
2 Gthers 96.52 4.78 321 : - 15.05 12557
3 Cisputed Dues - - - - -
MSME = - = - %
i 4 (Disputed Dues - - - - -
; Others - - - £9.24 59.74
Trade Payable ageing schedules 2020-2021
(Amount in Rs)
5No FParticutars. Quistarding fur following perleds #rom due date of payment
Mot Due
Less than 2 Morethe |
year 1-2 Years 23 Years n3vears Total
1 MSME . & & = =
2 - |Others 270 - ZED - 35.24 L]
3 Dispuled Dues - - - -
MEME - - - - -
4 |Disputed Bues - - = - =
Others. - - - 9.2 63.24 |
[¥ In Lakha)
NOTE -9 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES -FIGURES AS OX FIGURES AS ON
31.3.2022 3L3.2021
Interest prerued and Due on Borrowing
Interest due o Loan from Govt of india 2,695 .26 Aa29.72
Advance receipts for the portion for which value is stifl to be
Ziven : 64,02 57.07
Lrues Payable to Govt. Bepartments B.OE .22
Other Pavable
Liabilities for Expenses T6.27 137.61
Statutory Liabilities 105, 86 66.97
Lzher Linkilities
Security Deposits 14.25 SOGT
Dithery a6.69 42.7¢
Total 2,990.77 2,823.42
X [2 B Lalkhs| ‘\"\U R
NOTE- 10 : SHORT TERM PROVISION FIGURES AB ON FIGURES AB %Y ‘g
: 31.2.2022 3132020}
* %
Provigion for Income Tax - 20.30
Total 20.50
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11.1  Capital work in progress (CWIP) 2021-2022
CWIP ageing schedules
{Amount in Rs)
SNo Particulars Amount on CWIP for a period of
More
Less than then 3
cwip lyear [1-2Vears|2-3Years| Years Total
1  (Project in progress 2.60 - 10.12 - 12.72
Projects temporaily
2 " - i i
suspended

for capital work in progress whose complétinn

is overdue of has exceeded its cost compared to its

S No Particulars ' To be completed in
More
Less than
CWIp b 1-2Years | 2-3 Years! then3 Total
1 year
Years
1  |Projects 1 - - -
2 |Projects 2 7 = » 5 2
Capital work in progress (CWIP) 2020-2021
CWIP ageing schedules
{Amount in Rs)
S No Particulars Amount on CWIP for a period of
More
Less than then 3
Cwip lyear |1-2Years|2-3Years| Years Total
1 |Project in progress - - 24.17 - 24.17
2 Projects temporaily ) )

suspended

for capital work in progress whose completion is overdue of has exceeded its cost compared to its

S No Particulars To be completed in
More
L
CWiIP ess than 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years | then 3 Total
1year
Years
1 [|Projects1 - - - - -
2  |Projects 2 - % - . W R

&Wﬁe\y
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1% In Lakhs)

NOTE - 13 : LONG TERM LOAKS AND ADVANCES

FIGURES A5 ON

FIGURES AS ON

21.3.2022 31.3.2021
Other Loans and Advances
Secured, considered Zood - -
Unsecured, censideted goud (Refer Note 13, 1) 747.42 747.52
Doubtful - =
less: Provision for d Loans and Ad - -
Tatal {A+B} TET.42 74792
{2 In Lakhs)
HOTE - 13.1: Gther Long Term Loaas & Advances FIGURES AS ON  FIGURES AS ON
31.3.2022 41.3.2021
Amount Against Lease Reat to Rly Afe 2.73 2.73
Adv to M/2. Guj Techno Pyt L1d. 198.89 198 89
Loans and Advances to R:Iatﬂm
Laan to Subsidiary Company Salts Ld)) 545.80 545,80
- Total TAT42 747,42

{il The Company had teken Jand at Ramnagar on licence feo of Re. 33506.00 Plus service tax
sespoct of this Jand from time to time and af present the rate is Rs. SBIBS0.00 per
the license fee at the original rate of Rs. 3350600 plus service tax- per year,

ing Yquidated damages of Re. 2.67 lakhs |Previous Year 2,67
during the year 1995-96 has been shown as due from Railways,

{previous year 32,74 lakhs) incl

per year Irom M.E. Railway,

Pernding decision of the case

The Railway hag revised the rate of license fes in
1 against this revision and
» i provision for the differential amount of
lakhe) has been made by the Company and a sum of

has insisted for keeping
Rs. 32.74 lakhs
Es. 2.73 lakhs paid

{¥ In Lakhx)
FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS UN
NOTE - 14 : OTHER NOR-CURRENT ASSETS 3139022 31.3 2021
Segurity Deposity
Secused, considered gosd 5 5
Linsecured, considered good 92.05 £86.45
Doubiful - i
Less: Provision for doubtiul Loans and Advances s =
Brefiminacy and Project, Eupenditure
Project i Pending Allocation /Capitali (Refer Note Mo, 14.1) - 201.64
7 " Total 92.05 2E8.09
NOTE - 14,1 1 PRELIMINERY & PROJECTS EXPENDITURE
Durng the year the management has decided 1o close the project and expenditure on such project is chargrd to the Statement of Profit & Loxs in the eureent year.
(T In Lakhs)
T
I‘IGUR_ES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
8:No. Name of the Project 31.03.2022 21.03.2021 L
1 Solutisn Mining Projece Cum Sall Refin ery Praject - 152.07
2 |ITEC Praject E EXE]
3 Fottesiug Sulfate Projeet - 0.37
4 Salar Energy Project - 9.38
5 |Salt Washry Praject Z 2939
6 Plan Projects =] 0.50
£ - 20164
[f In Lakhs)
FIGURES AB ON FIGURES A% ON
HArE L8y VRN TORIED 31.3.2022 31.3.2021
ias taken valued & certified by the Management)
E‘M&&M&aﬂﬂmwmﬂw
= Steres, stationary & Spare Parts B8.58 40.18
b. Lossc Tools { Ak Book Value] 0.00 0.00
© Raw Materdal 0.00 .
d Release Material (At estimaied rolizable vahie] .03 062
e Packing Material ¥ - 0.02
. Stock in Trade (Refer Note No. 15.1} 76.69 13.20
. Total £5.52 75.02
T In Lakhs}
5 FIGURES AR ON FIGURES AS ON
HOXE - 16X VERTORIES 31.3.2022 31.3.2021
Stoek i Trade (At cost o Net Realissble vaie whicliever is less}
Bromine - -
Leas :Provision for wastage 2 =
Tokal (A} 2 =
Sale T6.62 14.20
Less :Frovision for wastage of Salt 5 =
Total (B) 76.62 14.20
MGCL p: .
Lezs :Provision {or wastage - -
Total {C) . %
Total {A+B+C) 76,62 14.20

1} Release Material ineludes stores, spates and other fixed assets which are no longer usable and are reloased/scraped in respective years and transferred o release material at
book.value. Dusing the vear Assets Seraps having book vakue of Nil are transferred to Release Material in Hand. Sale Proceeds of disposal of releaze material are shown s sale of
scraps under the head other ncome in the Statement of Proft and Loss. Further, its aso includes. a =um of Rg. 0,03 lakhs [previous year Rs. 0.52 lakh] being the estimated
realisable value in respect of unserviceahle material/Scrap lying in stores at Kharaghoda as the book value of thess items are not aseertainable. The y adj will e
made as end when these items are disposed offfutilised. ’ .

i) Physical Verification of General Stores,

At =ite, rel d ials was carried cut during the year.

(i) Mo provisien for losses, if any, on the slow moving flems laying in Oeneral Store has been made in the books and the same was shown in the inventory |
undetesminzed). {n e opinion of the managerent the current value of slow moving irem is tiore than the value taken. ¢




{¥ In Lakhs)

NOTE - 16 : TRADE, RECEIVABLES

FIGURES AS ON

FIGURES AS ON

31.3.2022 31.3,2021

Seoeured, Considercd Good = o.75
Unsecured, Considered Good 2200 2248
Unsecured, Considered Doubtful 9.18 9.1B
318 3241

Lesar Peovision for Doutifid Debty 918 0.18
Total (A+B) 22.00 23.23

(i} During the yoar the ¢ : ] d the t of old r bj ing to Ra. MNil ([Frevious Year Bs, Nil} against the Provision, As these Amount could not

rmm:ed.maphrod’bzste[[wtshthn pirion of the tof the Ly

Trade Receivables ageing schedules 2021-2022

{Amaunt in Rs)

5 Na Particulars D g for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6
. otDue | omonthe |6wmonth: iveas|  1avess |23 Years| Morethen 3 Years Total
| "1 IUntisputed Trade Recervabies :
Lonsider Good. . e .- 023 : 0.05 058 ] 2113 2200
2 Untisputed Trade Receivablas
|Conzider Doubtful - | - - 9.18 9.18
Trade Receivables ageing schedules 2020-2021
_ {Amount in Rs)
5 No Particulars ] ing far fal & pedods from due date of payment
’ less than s
Natboe Months | 6 months-1 Years 1-2 Years 2-3Years| Morethen 3 Years Tatal
1 d Trade Receivables : 3 1
Consider Good E: : - . Gn3 - 0.68 03 < 2147 23.23
2 [Undispured Trade Receivahios j ] i
Consider Doubtful ] - |- 2 - 9.1 9.18
(T In Lakhs)
5 FIGURES AS OK FIGURES AS ON
NOTE - 17 : CASH & Cash Equivalents 31.3,20232 31.3.2001
[l Batanee with Banie-
Balapee in Cument Accounta 101146 94,70
Balance in Temm Deposits” 45306 465,60
Cash on Hand L) .84
Cheque in transit - -
[B) Gthiers Bank Balances FDR more than 3 months 2,293,236 427.32
Total 2,847.96 SHE. 16
** FDRs of Bs. 55,68 lakh pledged with SBY, Jaipur, Kharsghoda and Mand: tprevicus year R, 91.4% lakh with
SBI) towards security for O Laan,
{% In Lakhs}
NOTE - 18 : SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVARCES FIGURES AS ON  YIGURES AS ON
{Recoverable In Cash ve in Hind o7 for value to be recelved) 31.3.2022 31.3.2021
Other
Seeured, eonsidered goed - -
Unsecired, considered guod {Refer Wate 15.1) 3,651.54 6,973.40
Doubtfut 81.71 81.84
5,773,25 TA5.29
Less: Frovicion for doubtiul Loans and Advances 5171 #1.84
Tetal 5,691.54 5,973,940
(¥ Ia Lakhs)
FIGURES AS ON  FIGURES AS oN
KOTE - 18.1 : OTHER LOANS & ALVANCES |UNSECURED) 31.3.2022 31.3.2021
Loan Anees to Re B 5
]mn ta S.Ahsadlary Co. 303070 303070
ble from Subsidi ¥ Co. 252557 3,728.82
Other Dues from Subsidiary Co. 3556 122.75
Totul (A) 5,593.64 6,852.25
Dthers
Advance to Staff 0.11 .32
Dieposit with Govt Semi Govt. Bodies 033 0.61
Iicome Tax Deduveted at Source [C.Y.) 3361 418
Incorse Tax Deducted a: Source {PY) 14 86 14.85
TCS 2020-21 & 2021-22 Q.03 0.18
Advazce ineme tax 21-22 10.00 -
Others 120.48 15283
Total (B} — 179.61 172.59
Tatal [A+B) 5,773.25 7,058,249
(it Other Loans and Advances includes Rs, NIL (Previeus Year 2.24 lnes) apainst Security of Staff, Contracters and Other R 1 inn the form of Term Deposits in Campany's name,
. 1T In Lalchs)
FIGURES AS ON FIGURES AS ON
e I e * 31.3.2022 31.3.2021
P‘rapmd Bxpcn.us E 3.61 7.39
A 1 on Term De; 42.84 18.12
Total 46.95 25,51

The balance of Trade Receivable, Trade Payable, Loans and Advanceﬂ, Salt Department and Cther Government Bepartments are subject to eonfirmation and reconciliation if

e




HINDUSTAN SALTS LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2022

; (T In Lakhs)
NOTE - 20 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS FOR THE YEAR FOR THE YEAR -
_ 202122 2020-21
Sale of Products (Refer Note No. 20.1) 2.412.61 1,237.67
TOTAL 2,412.61 1,237.67
. . {T In Lakhs)
NOTE - 20.1 : SALE OF PRODUCTS '~ FORTHE YEAR FOR THE YEAR
; 2021-22 . 2020-21 o
Common Salt :

Indigenous 540.25 378.96
MGCL i 165.03 11242
Bromine 1,432.03 720.48
De-Brominated Bittern ) - 25.81
Operational Income from Bromine Plant 275.30 -

' TOTAL 2,412.61 1,237.67
{T In Lakhs)
NOTE - 21 ;: OTHER INCOME FOR THE YEAR FOR THE YEAR
2021-22 2020-21
Interest Income o

Interest on FDR "81.06 29.55

Interest from Subsidiary Co. . 429.18 563.01

Interest on Others ' 0.25 : 0.27
Other non-operation income (Net)

Excess Provision Written Back - 37.52

Misc. Receipts 343 6.94

Rental Income from Plant & Machinery o - 97.28

-Facility Charges 1.29 B,

General store (Goods) 1.42 16.20

Rent Received 3.90 _ 3.18

Land Licence Fees ' 0.65 0.65

Sale of Scraps/Released Material _ 0.10 15.70

Tender Cost Receipts - _ 0.40 = 0.10

Sundry Cr. Balance Written Off - 29.33 35.86

Pétc:kin_g and forwarding : 0.04 y

Penalty Received on Encrochment 0.52 -

' TOTAL 551.56 806.26

b % e
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(¥ In Lakhs)

NOTE - 22 : COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED FOR THE YEAR ~ FOR THE YEAR
. 2021-22 2020-21
Manufacturing Expenses .
Manufacture & Excavation Expenses of Salt 0.73 2.55
Manufacture of Bromine _ 645.94 288.01
© Manufacture of Processed Salt including iodisation " 36.89 -
Manufacture of MGCL : 92.65 77.55
Compensation of Land Revenue 1.32 1.32
" Repair to Machinery 2.16 20.63
TR TOTAL 779.69 -~ 390.06
(T In Lakhs)
NOTE - 23 : CHANGES IN INVENTORY OF FOR THE YEAR  FOR THE YEAR
: FINISHED GOODS & W.1.P : 2021-22 2020-21
Opening Stock ;
Salt _ : . _ 14.20 . 0.38
Bromine 3.02
MGCL : - 3.27
Total - 14.20 6.68
Closing Stock
Salt 76.62 14.2]
Bromine 5 :
MGCL : . 5 =
Total 76.62 14.20
Grand Total (62.42) - {7.52)
_ (% In Lakhs)
NOTE - 24 : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR FOR THE YEAR
; 2021-22 2020-21
Salaries, Allowances & Other Benefits ’ .
Salaries & Allowances 396.11 327.62
Death Cumn Retircment Gratuity including liability for earlier y 11.40 =
Employer's Contribution [PF & DLI) 50.31 4775
Group Gratuity Insurance Premium ' 13.05 20.97
Bonus 5.06 5.78
Staff Welfare Expenses _ 13.18 16.78
: - TOTAL . - 489,11

418.90

R R e 5
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(T In Lakhs)

NOTE - 25 : FINANCE COSTS FOR THE YEAR FOR THE YEAR
' 202122 2020-21
Interest To Government of India 270.54 264.55
Interest To Bank - 0.04
Interest To QOthers 0.02 36.94
TOTAL 270.56 . 301.53
(X In Lakhs)
NOTE - 26 : OTHER EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR FOR THE YEAR
2021-22 2020-21
Administrative Expenses (Refer Note No. 26.1) 58.98 €1.15.
Auditors Expenses ( Refer Note No. 26.2) 2.50 2.40
Township Expenses and Other Social Overhead
{Refer Note No. 26.3) 8.84 12.18
Selling & Distribution Expenses _
(Refer Note No. 26. 4) 1.15 2.97
Amounts/Stores Written Off (Net) 13.31 0.06
Income tax 79.36
Penalty on JCB Tax 0.02 0.13
Provision Against Bad & Doubtful Debts - -
Research & Development 0.01 3.95
Provision for Wastage on Salt Stocks - 0.33
Add:Deficit of Stock of Salt on Final Clearance of heaps - -
Less : Deficit of Stock of Salt Written Off Out of Provision g
TOTAL 164.17 83.17
(X In Lakhs)"
' ' FOR THE YEAR FOR THE YEAR
NOTE - 26.1 : ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
! 3 e 2021-22 2020-21
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 3.25 3.91
Postage Telegram & Telephones 3.36 3.81
Rent Expenses 6.20 5.29
Rates & Taxes 0.20 0.20
Insurance Charges 1.50 2.31
Guest House Expenses 0.26 .16
T.A. to Directors 1.16 0.97
Other Office Expenses 26.23 25,28
Running & Mtc. of Vehicle 8.41 14.63
Other Repairs 8.41
i TOTAL 58,98

AV =




(% In Lakhs)

NOTE - 26.2 : AUDITOR'S EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR  FOR THE YEAR
2021-22 2020-21
Payment to Auditor
As Audit Fee 1.04 1.04
As Tax audit fee 0.30 0.30
As TA/DA Expenses 0.42 -
As Other Capacity 0.35 0.47
Trust Audit Fee = 0.10
Other Payment to Trust Auditor - 0.02
As GST Audit Fee 0.12 0.30
Internal Auditor Remuneration, - - T -
As Audit Fee 0.21 0.17
As TA/DA Expenses 0.07 -
As Other Capacity - -
TOTAL 2.50 2.40
S » ) {¥ In Lakhs)
NOTE - 26.3 : TOWN SHIP EXPENSES AND OTHER FOR THE YEAR FOR THE YEAR
SOCIAL OVERHEADS 2021-22 2020-21
Township Expenses
Maintenance of Building/Roads 13.00 5.22
Sanit.a_.tion 0.02 5.23
Water Supply 1.01 0.36
Mte. OF Electricity 0.35 7.19
Depreciation - 0.01
Total (A) 14.38 18.03
Less: Receipts '
House Rent 4.69 7.51
Ground Rent 2.49 1.22
Electricity -
. Total (B) 7.18 8.73
Reim. Of Medical Exp. And Cost of )
Medicines & Medice] contingencies 1.58 2.85
Other Expenses: ' 0.05 0.03
Total (C) 1.63 2.88
Total (A-B+C) 8.84 12.18
_ (% In Lakhs)
NOTE - 26.4 : SELLING & DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR FOR THE YEAR
2021-22 2020-21
Packing & Forwarding Despatch Charges - 2.94
Advertisement & Publicity - -
Discount & Commission 0.05 -
Business Promotion Expenses - -
Other Expenses 1,10
TOTAL 1.15

AV *%L/’ﬁ/:/»ﬁ?qg
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NOTE - 28 : EARNINGS PER SHARE

FOR THE YEAR

FOR THE YEAR

2021-22 2020-21

Profit (+)/ Loss(-) as per statement of Profit and Loss usnal as
the numerator  In Lakhs) 151.71 579.60
Weighted Average Number of Shares

Basic Number of Shares 5,20,596 5,20,506

Diluted Number of Shares 3,20,596 5,20,596

Face Value as per Equity Share : 1,000 1,000
EBarnings per equity share:

Basic EPS (Ing) 29.14 111.33

Diluted EPS (In 3) 29.14 111.33
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NOTE NO.30 :- CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS TO
THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR

'Ac

l.

m

VI,

VI

VI

Contingent Liabilities

Claim of Gujarat Electricity Board for Rs 21.13 lakh (excluding interest if any)
(Previous year Rs 21.13 !a_kh) for Kharaghoda unit. Matter being sub judice.

Claim of N.E, Railway towards differential License Fee of Railway land at Ramnagar
Unit Rs. 32.74 lakh and interest if any (Previous year Rs. 32.74 lakh) being sub
Judice. '

In respect-of Agricultural and Non-agricultural assessment demand for '_Rs 85.64
lakhs (plus interest if any) raised by Taluka Vikas Adhikari, Patri'(Gujarat)‘ The
matter is under dispute and the Company did not received any demand thereatter.
However, subsequently demand for Rs 5.51 lakh {plus interest if any) was raised for

which the stay was obtained from the Hon'ble High Court of Gujarat. The Hon'ble -
High Court of Gujarat has since disposed of the case and directed to form a high

“power Committee consisting of representatives of State & Central Govt. The dispute

is still pending with High Power Committee. Now the Taluka Vikas Adhikari, Patri has
revised the claim to Rs 272.80 lakh (plus inter_est) (previous year Rs 272 .80 lakh)
{plus interest).

~ Liability on account of revision of pay scales of employees covered under CDA and

I.D.A. pattern. (Amount not ascertainable as not yet finalized).

Other claims lodged but not acknowledged as debt by the Company Rs 27.93 lakh
plus interest if any (Previous year Rs 28.15 lakh). -

Claim of H.P Government towards Royalty on Rock Salt in Mandi Unit Rs 20.94 Jakhs
(Previous year Rs 20.94 lakhs) - '

- Liabiiity if any, on account of Bank guarantee amounting to Rs 16.40 Lakh (Previous

Year Rs 10.00 'Lakh) issued by SBI Jaipur in favour of Regional Control of Mines
Indian Bureau of Mines ' ' :

Claims on account of labour, service, land and other matters for the suits pending in

different Courts - amount indeterminate.

Other cases in which the Company is contingently liable (amounts not ascertainable
except as and where specified).

An Award was given for Liability by Arbitrator on 4™ July 2018 of Rs 90.10 Lakh
(Including Interest, Cost of Arbitration and watch & ward expenses of Rs 24.96 Lakh)
for the office building at Sitapura Jaipur. The matter.is sub-Judice before Honorable
High Court of Rajasthan. Hon'ble High has court issued order for stay in the matter
subject to-deposit of 50% of the award amount in the court. Company has made due
compliance of the order of Hon'ble High Court.

Capital Cbmmitments

Estimated amount on account of contract remaining to be executed on Capit
accounts Rs. 664.33 lakhs (previous year Rs. 638.21 lakh).
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1. Liability on Account of eduity participatibn with H.P. Government for Solution Mining
Cum Caustic Soda Project at Mandi amounting to Rs 43.55 Lakh (Previous Year Rs
43.55 Lakh). : : - : '

NOTE NO. 31:- ADDITIONAL NOTES

(i) In lieu of issue of shares by the Company to the Government of India on its
formation, possession of assets at Kharaghoda and Mandi has been acquired by the
Company pending finalization of formal Agreement. No agreement has been made
so far in this regard. '

- (i) Company was declared Sick Company under Section 3(1)(O) of the SICA Act on

13.6.2000. The BIFR had appointed Industrial Development Bank of India (IDBI) as

‘the operating agency u/s 17(2) of the Act to examine the viability of the Company and

to formulate a rehabilitation scheme for its revival. IDBI had submitted the viability

report to the BIFR on 22.8.2005.

BIFR had sanctioned the Revival Scheme on the basis of Draft Rehabilitation
Scheme (DRS) submitted by the Operating Agency on 22.8.2005. The Govt. of India,
DHI approved the Draft Rehabilitation Scheme (DRS) on the basis of the
recommendation Board of reconstruction of Public Sector Enterprises (BRPSE).

in view of the positive net worth, BIFR has delisted the Company from the purview of
SICA Act vide Order dated 15.12.2008.

(i) The company operates the single line of business / product viz. Salt and its related
activities as such segment reporting is done on a single segment basis.

(v)  No adjustment has been carried out for Refinery Plant at Kharaghoda for the work
awarded on turnkey baSIs. The contractor has not completed the work so far. The
. payment made to contractor of Rs 198.89 Lakh has been shown under the note No

13 as Loan and Advances of the Balance Sheet

(v) Government of India decided to provide Grant-in-Aid to the company vide letter no.
19-09/2005-PE-V dt.01.02.2012 for disbursement of pension. During the current year
Company has received Rs. 200.00 lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 200.00 Lakh) as grant-
in-aid. "~ g . ‘s . _

(vi) At Kharaghoda MGCL Plant was given to M/s Mayur Stone for running the operation.
The company was to receive the sum of Rs 1112 per ton production with minimum
production 525 MT in a month from April 2018 and taken back on 8" Jan-2019.
Afterwards 411.MT MGCL was sold of Rs 12.04 Lakhs by the company from the.
quantity of Mayur Stone available on 9" Jan 2019 and same amount has been
credited to party account. After approval of competent authority, during the year
company has incorporated necessary adjustment in the book '

(vii) During the Year, HSL-Kharaghoda had awarded a contract to Mis. Jai Overseas
Private Limited, Ahmedabad for Operation and Maintenance of Newly
Commissioned Plants and Existing Plants at the Cost of Bidder and Sale of
Product(s) Produced from Existing as well as New Plants & Salt Refinery an
Production, Sale and Expansion of all the Plants with related activities at Hindust
Salts Limited, Kharaghoda from 1% Nov.-2021. Party is doing production of Liquig

-
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(viii)

(i)
)

(i)

(xii) |
(xiii)
(xiv)
(xv)

: (xyi}

(xvii)

(xviii)
(xix)
(xx)

{xxi)

(xxii)

Bromine, MGCL on’ behalf of HSL at Bromine & MGCL Plant, Kharaghoda by
utilization of HSL resources under this contract. Accordingly, processing of Liguid
Bromine & MGCL has shown as per the accounting practices, nence, the production
of Liquid Bromine & MGCL may be considered as Liquid Bromine & MGCL
production of HSL-Kharaghoda unit. : '

As per approval of Board during the year a sum of Rs 201.64 Lakh .towards
Preliminary & Project Expenditure and Rs 4.86 lakh toward other expenses shown
in exceptional item

During the year a-sum of Rs 58.29 lakh toward excess liability booked In earlier year -
written back st ;

During thé year Rs 29.33 Lakh written off and shown in Sundry Cr. Balance written’

" off :

In the previous year deficit in stock of sait amounting to Rs. 1.06 Lakh at Kharaghoda
on final clearance of salt heap against the existing provision for wastages of salt of
Rs. 0.73 Lakh adjusted in the books subject to approvai of competent authority. The
matter is under process. '

During the year amount of Rs 3.50 lakh recovered from both the employee against
order issued by DA in previous year '

The company has not held any immovable property whose title deeds are not in the
name of company wow

During the year Property, Plant & Equipment of the company hot revalued

During the year company has not granted loan to promoters, Directors KMPs and the
related partied (as defied under Companies Act 2013) either severally or jointly with
any other person

Company has not held intangible assets under development

During the year no proceeding have been initiated or pending against the company
for holding any benami property under the Benami transaction ( Prohibition)Act
1888(45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder

During the year company has not borr_bw fund fro

m banks or financial institution on
the basis of security of current assets '

During the year company has not declared willful defaulter by'any bank or financial
institution or other lender

During the year company has not made any transaction with companies struck off
under sectin 248 of the companies Act 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act 1956

During the year no charges or satisfaction registered with ROC

Company has not granted and received fund from any other person or entit
including foreign entities '

s gy




(xxiii) During the vear, HSL-Mandi has awarded a contract through open tender to
M/s Bumi MFB Geotech Pyt. Ltd., on 13" May, 2021 wherein complete cost of
~ Mine Development and Operations including obtaining clearance from
statutory authorities will be borne by MDO Company. The revenue from the
sale of Rock Salt will be shared between HSL and Contractor in the ratio of
25.37:74.63 post payment of royalty for Rock Salt Mining and for Edible Salt
the sharing shall be in the ratio of 35.37:64.63

{xxiv} .Charge of single rate of Interest on the outstanding loan amount given

to SSL by the HSL o :
~  Hindustan Salts Limited (HSL) has giveriloan to the Sambhar Salts Limited (SSL)
on the different rates which varies from 12.50% to 19.50% as applicable on the
date, the loan was given to SSL and as on 31.03.2021, total outstanding ioan
amount 1s Rs.72.98 Crores in which Principal Loan amount is Rs.35.76 Cores and
Interest amount Rs.37.22 Crores .

only single rate of interest

As per the present situation, it has been decided that
approved by the Board

.e.12.00% be charged from 01.04.2021. The matter was

(XXV) Land at Mandi were leased to HSL by Central Govt. on long term basis from 01-05-

: 1963 onwards. The said lease was revised time ta time in 1983 and thereafter in

2003 up to year 2023. In the said lease deed, a condition has been imposed in

Clause 3. Annexure whereby lease rent for land and assignment fee had to be

paid to salt commissioner by HSL. The said lease rent and assignment fee have not

been paid by HSL from 1 Jan 2003 onwards hence 3 notice has been received from

Salt Commissioner  Office in this regard. On the basis of show cause notice, an

amount of Rs. 2,38,277/-(Assignment Fees of Rs.1,17,304 & Ground Rent of
Rs.1,20,973/-) Paid to Salt Commissioner in financial year 2020-21.

(XXVI) The company is having the land -as per detail below :-

(T in Lakh)
JAIPUR KHARAGHODA  |MANDI RAMNAGAR ]
_ : AREA [VALUE| AREA | VALUE AREA |VALUE| AREA |VALUE
1. Free Hold|- R 23596 | 70275 [37.92 - -
Land Acres 24.54 Sq. Mir
2. Leased|2048 Sq. - = 133.116 . 4712.61 |-
Hold Land Mitr. Acres Sq. Mtr :
(On licence Feg)

Further there is no encroachment in Run area in Kharaghoda unit (Gujérat}‘ Mandi
(H.P.) and Ram Nagar (Uttarakhand).

(XXVI)In the opinion of the management, current assets, loans and advances are based

(XXVI)

on the realizable value in the ordinary course of business and provision for all
liability, except as otherwise stated has been provided.

The balance of Trade Receivable, Trade Payable, Loans and Advances, Salt
Department and Other Government Departments are subject to confirmation and
reconciliation if any. Loan from Government of India and Interest accrued and
due on loans subject to confirmation and reconciliations and no payment against
loan along with the interest was made since 2005 exce '
2009.

SR




(XXIX) Additional Information

(Zin Lakh)
() C.LF. Value of Imports 2021-22 2020-21
i(a) Raw Materials Nil Nil
i(b) Components & Spare Parts Nil Nil
i(c) Capital goods Nil Nil
ii. Expenditure in Foreign Currency Nil Nil
ifi. Earnings in Foreign Exchange Nil Nil
iv(i) Remittances in foreign currencies Nil Nil
on account of dividends
iv{ii) Number of Non-Resident Nil Nil .
~ | shareholders _— = e e
Vv Value of imported and indigenous
raw materials, stores, spares and
components consumed
Raw-material Stores, Spares and
Components
% (Rs. in|% (Rs. in
Lakh) Lakh)
(a) Imported Nit Nil Nil Nil
(Nil) (Nil) (Nil) (Nil)
(b) Indigenous 100% 1339.00 | 100% 796
(100%) { (127.79) | (100%) | {95.98)

(XXX) Additional quantitative information is placed at Annexure-A and details of expenditure
incurred on-raw materials, wages, power & fuel and stores is placed at Annexure -B

(XXXI) Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged wherever considered

necessary so as to make these comparable with current year's figures.
(XXXIl) Figures are rounded off to lakhs of rupees with two decimal place, '

(XXXHI) Details of significant accounting ratio are mentioned below:-

S.No. | Ratio Formula As on | As on | Diff. | Remarks
31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021 '
1. | Current Ratio | Current Asset/ 1.95 1.97 -1.02
Current Liabilies
2 | Debt Equity | Total Borrowings/ 0.23 0.23 -
Ratio Shareholder
equity
3 Debt Service | Eamings 2.35 3.2 -24.68
Coverage available for debt
Ratio service/ Debt
service
4 Return on | Net Profit after 0.03 0.12 -75.00 | Decrease in profit
Equity Tax/ Average due to impact of
Shareholder’'s previous year income
equity fax and w/f old
praject expenditure.
5 Inventory Revenue  From 30.06 14.23 -111.24 | Due to increase in
Turnover Operations / turnover
Ratfo Average inventory ARUR ¢ 5
3 /...'?‘ f":?"\‘\\




6 Trade Credit sales/ 042 0.10 320.00 | Due to increase in
Receivables Average  Trade Credit Sale
Turnover receivables
Ratio _

7 Trade Credit purchase / 4.58 2.26 102.65 [ Due to Increase in
Payable Average  Trade Credit Purchase
Turnover payables
Ratio

8 Net  Capital | Revenue  From 0.57 0.31 83.87 | Increase in turnover.
Turnover Operations/

Ratio Average Working
3 Capital A S

9 Net Profit | Net Profit for the 0.15 0.47 -68.09 | Decrease in profit due

Ratio * pericd/ Revenue to impact of Income
From Cperations tax and adjustment of
project expenditure.

10 | Return on | PBIT/ Capital 0.06 G.13 -53.85 | Decrease in profit due
capital employed to  adjustment of
employed project expenditure.

11 Return on | Income From 0.00 0.00 0.00
investment investments/

Weighted
Average
Investments.

Note * Net Profit Ratic : Net Profit after taxes but before exceptional Item of Rs. 206.50

(Vikas Yadav)
Company Secretary

Place : Jaipur

Datedzz ? AUG 2322

AN

G.G.M.{F&A)

DIN -07182357

e

(Sandeep Kumar Tak) (Shankar Lal Agarwal) (CMDE Ka
Director

:%etd.))

Chairman and Managing Director

DIN -8884327

In terms of our report of even date annexed hereto

For Mathur & Co

Chartered Accountants

Membership No. 079617

FAA-T)
%JAIPUI‘;SSF (Manisha Maheshwari)
EDACL
~OAC Partner
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DETAILS OF EXPENDITURE INCURRED ON RAW MATERIAL, WAGES, STORES & SPARES, POWER & FUEL AS INCLUDED
IN RESPECTIVE HEADS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022 )

{2 In Lakhs)

Farsicntans Mal::::ajs Weiges S;Dpr::as& Pox:;& c:;::i;s 202 '{uzt; l Forzozonzx
Mailufacmrmgﬂodisat{on Expenses 1,339.00 | 40.97 4.38 0.01 16.52 1,400.88 386,25
Administrative Expenses — 2 = 1.25 823 54.54 | 64,03 63.87
Social Qverheads . = 2.32 0.02 6.95 9.29 20.83
Selling & distribution e ; i . 0.26 0.27 2t97_
Other Mi.sc. Expenses / Adjustment - - . | - 4045 40.45 4.01
Previous year expenses - - - - 2.99 : 2.99 154.61
Total : 1,339.00 40.97 ' 7.96 8.25 121.73  1,517.91 632.54
Previcus year figures 127.79 128.68 95.98 37.05 243,04 632.54 540.83
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AT gRT B & IWId I B TS gRT SHdT f&id 26 /11,/2021 BT AT aR f&am
RN

(U®) TaCR & b & JJIR TATHE! [Saesd yofelo @ <Aaq &% Sieiffie 96 & fou $9d 702
gfd e Td SMIfed 79d & fory ®ud 802 /— Ul 71 SHUAST 18% &1 <X & AfARad Us 7% |

GN) #99 vAUmd Rraed wiofelo & UeT § Sy fasid 01,/12,/2021 31 22,/01 /2022 &I SN o
AT |

(@) warcer f&A® 01,/12,/2021 §RT AR Aleed folfics gRT SfaRad goll @l JATYfT &I ordl bl |mied
frar T o sifaRea gof #9d Tiuwdl RRiice wiofelo gRT @RIQ & & dem 9@ Ufagfd |iR
HAieed oo §RT UF f&7id 12 /02 /2022 & ITAR B ST | I H BT/ FAET BT RO T T8 3 |

@) famr fofy gafa oy & AhR dfecd fafics gRT o3 3918 05,03 /2022 | YRR (AidT 9
qREHRUT 3ATAT) & FaTeld U4 IEREEG & oy §99 UAUGE! STaied wiofelo & 3 A1 &7 99y 3R 9ar
foar a2

(S) dhR dfecd foo & 93 fiA® 25,03 /2022 & §RT #99 UAUGE  foaicd wiofelo &1 swareer faeiia
01,/12 /2021 U9 @ G & ATQe &P 05,03 /2022 & AJAR @M & fog IR S 100 URT
T AT WU 90 Ul e BT AR I fHar SRem |

SUTE BRIV Y TSl B IR R SRIgd Afder & g+ # fovga fewdf o9 yarR 88—

@ ®IN ERT SN &1 TS TR @ Ui SUa T8l &-I8 T8 | I8 adb fb $H & da9rse W
UH3ISE! T Blg (IR0l IucTel el gl |




@) dredie f&Ams 24 /11,2021 & TRTET B TS & foy R o Fafdd 9 @1 ufd Sudter
TE BRIg TS |

@) TR qEaTeE | AR @S B e Wefa 9 aftT 9 @ ufa Soer T8 awig TS |

(S AR 3PS ¥ TSI, SR Bl g & oA [GavoT sIfyd fhy S S $9et @ uf Saer
TE HRIS S |

(3) TIEHA, e 9§ AR Wlecd e |iWR @S BT TeIdilers /AJed 3R+ & fgaIad $I 3rfd
B Rl SHS BT Ui SuALT 8l BNy TS |

(U®) $HS BT URT AT fIHIHT A1 Bl IR IUSLT 1 g1 | g 41 W< 8l & b Ya=d gRI faxi arell &
PR B TS |

(Sh) Ffagrerar & da-ar ARredel ¥ Fafbd Swads 1 e H Iuael T8l 87 |

(Ta) F8l a& & Mfageast & Hasdl sxas W1 &9 gRT T8l foly g |

(a1s) faftrad v fhy ST dTel 3Maedd SXATdSl | fIehal / SHaR BT USIHRYT BTH U T8l g3l |

(S) dHAd] SIS B M W TE WK T8l B, fb TITHRIR & 3MogveoyH & forg ffacrerdar & aaia
w9 F AT DA g1 I1AT|

(@) drcee e 26,/11,/2021 & AR HI AR gRT IR Fderor fHar ma fg WA $i3 IR
Jderor Rufe Rars # Iuyerer 781 g2 |

(Td) g 9F fadid 24 /11 /2021 & A1, qAA YOl g§RT AIRYG ScdTed, ARG 9!, Suael i,
AT 71 @1 s R o™ afe &1 goricds [deRor der o, R 9l gearerd &1 el gRT =18l
UBT AT | TIUAR & ScdTad I {9l IR HF DI 811 F &l off |

(TH) TR ST 3T urfcal | ORIy dlell U< g5, B & Uaw &l [Mfdar 2019 &1 o1 357 () @ &
A TR AN & | URT 357 Hael Udhdl MfAaT & Al # o] 8lll 7 |

(T) B & STl THCIE &I ORI 357 & I ®UI 1542150 /—@ 17135 H € A1l &I AMYfT & forg
J™U 1,14,30,000 BT BTG SN B & DIy (I HRUT JfFeRg H T8l & | Sldih HH-1 g8 A 500
A <9 (fRIY SU TATHaIR §HTs I I8 U 2021, S 2021, RAFR,2021 37acaR 2021 H R 1000 H.
T ¥ I1fd THF BT A B & o) TITHIIR SHIE A IIA @l & SR B g1 Bl I |

faTid 05,03 ,/2022 & fAIR 3T & SR B ¥ Yd Pl gd YUMell Ud -1z UOell # dRafdd iR
UM Tl Bg JoAD AR Rabre d 81 @1 AT A®ifs 18/11,/2021 & a8 S Bl
IRVATHHAICHAT ¥ By I97 MM YTl 81 83| 99 & QR JRVAUHHNAAT B Fd 9] daa
FUY 13,45,098.00 FeT MW HIRI 1570275 & [dwg (1542,150+28,125) &I g | UG aciHI= YUTell Pl
g BT G HRYN RTATHATTHRA BT TchTel SMYfT BRAT o7 |

AT AT &1 25,703 /2022 & AR THATHA! [SAICH Wiofelo & UHS! Td AR dAfeed fafics
P e ARG B G ardl b MR R feAld 01,/12 /2021 W A& @ U 100 /90 U e &
mﬁaﬂwaﬁqﬁwﬁwﬁmﬁﬁﬂémﬂ@ﬁﬁﬁmﬁmmﬁmmwawﬁﬁ
foRg 1Y U= Ud IR Aoy fofics, &1 Wighd Rere R Iuael T8l o |

Rare # Suaer Saa qf / Sxardsll Ud U Sxardsll &1 Suder fewforl & 3iuR uR yerigsear VAT
gdid 8iar & b Arai THe uRehRoT I B NUvsyH B forv fder e @ ydwd g§RT hRIvEE,
2019 & fou FEiRa fige@ & dga FuiRa o ol wd faffeEl @R s 9 <9 gy 39 gATwEl
RSrIIc® wofei0 &I AWM= A9 Uga™ & ol SIRT &I g oY |

fafr=r ifAfReadit & & gu fadia Aol w s TRvIAeG g &1 a1 ovm=r awd =781 2 |




foxfa af 202122 & <RE A9 Frem ONFRART sfdua<y @ el vd faffesl @1 e @ gu
smdfed fvg g faf= wrt & fasg g Jeramt /emgft fsg g w9 ufesar § o

Jad UTe] Bl mdfed 31 Bl & Gferd d2h Ud SHanl

|. T Wfte 7 eRIdd T SRR &I MU & v &R

HrIfae H@T —75 fAId 16 /04 /2021 & ERT ®UY 39,30,500 Ud ®YI 7,07,490.00 (SHQHSI) del MR
T 46,37,990 /— B AN & A4 WS G I8 TS SRR B AN g B mafed fbar |
BTG & AR YA DI W 7 THR T

T UR T TaedS AERN BT Ui Ud Wgf IR 60%

ii. SUBRV & TS FATT & 3 AE 18 25%.
iil. Saa gfofa SIFAR 25% RN & YA BT ARG | 12 A8 91 AT AR 15%.
IV. 10 Uferd GReT ST (ST JI1R0)

By T YA &7 fAaRer R geR g

. AT fedis f3r wuat H

1 14—07—2021 15,00,000.00

2 15—07—2021 8,00,000.00

3 16—07—2021 3,57,804.00

BT & ATAR o Jod BT DT 60% WIY 23,58,300 /—(39,30,500 BT 60 UCIera) T b <
FHAT o | T §RT BHT Pl WU 2,99,504 /— T WD I fbar 17 |

QT 30—09—2021 BT T[T THDH TRSHRURMA H AYUSYA & BRI & (oY mafed SR I Fem ST
@M ) § | FUY 6,61,500 BT FHMAIS fHaT 107 |

HAE WIS SOIANT gfdasid & SffRY U9 R 1 & SMUHINAI §RT &6 01,06 /2022 BT
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Td T, 2021 ¥ f&ARR 2021 T BT SIYACIR 34T UG el (b1 T |

1. ST 9% UREHRUINAT & IEREH Vg FdATed & fold Bl

(Tw)

Areeiic fadie @, gwer f&dd 01,07 /2021 & JJAR TSI THG URERURIAT & Hardd Td
GGG & Y SHaR FRga - BT b U GIR A1 17| Y AR gRT IR Y U g
6 ITAR I Ja&dd /IR ARSI THEG & HH TG & BRI IATGH DI acd AN 3MeH B4 A
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TS B 9] 4 gig $ g8 | TKE Al B AJAR 3 AIE & ol SIUAST Aled AT AN WU 6.
15 o TS |

AT STIYR O TISRAT §RT 01,/07 /2021 BT ST URATG Bl Wipfa &1 T |

SR @I Mg AFensd Mfder & Sae § [fderEm g’ go 4 Ffde] uwgd @1 T8 | Al & e
03/08/2021$W4ﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁsaﬁaﬁaﬁﬂﬁ%mﬁ?mwwaﬁ?mw
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SIRY fopam ST e 2|

dreeiie faid 14 /08 /2021 & JAJAR MRREIT & o RY R HI AT §RT SITHST BT eMHSA R
B WM W STHe] Bl BISHR SR fhU T HRfCy Bf GO H-= BT W@ fear 3 S feqis
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ffagrerT gRT f&sid 06,/10 /2021 &I g | AR fHa1 11 6 Me™ § I9IR Jed 3600 Ui <
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*frp Sred @1 AR g fHU MU Sreey § Sudel TEl 2| sdafev 5 Al @ Sdred & o & e
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dreeie 3% 06,10 /2021 & AR Jg Afid fhar 1 § fb T 1700 H. <4 SiENfie Rwers
TG SIUHR EIF H a7 gorT © | fored omfdra wme & o1fde srgereiiel WrRfl § 1 sifd 05% (Femsud
AP & AR U WA 0.35%3) SU AFG Gl e & wU H AMT ST 2 31Afd SIgHaIR wiie # afedr
PR @ 3flTdl AR ATl AT TSl 83T o | GO 3R SHaR 3FRY PR Vel © b 9N e Yd AR Aeesd
310 ERT A1 &1 AT & HROT SHUHIR AT H WIH UL F8] T AU IATET SIRI Y& & {70 Fubabell
ERT &Fl & HIF § SAEH SHaR R ol IR # fama & foy A1a Som &1 R f&ar mar | Sad e
B AFAR 05,/10 /2021 B Fel A Tl dacl 1440.621 H. ST 81 oI |

(TH) HHT gRT 991U ¢ WAl H Yo Ffaerarr g1 fad 06,/10 /2021 ®I UG A9RY Td Areeiie faie
06,/10,/2021, RN R & Yg=/d qAT HeT Uaod (BR) & SWER §, I dHl [TaRT Th TR &
fRREmRY 2|

(G7) MfIRTaTaT #9%d H e SRR sfdawied 9 f&1® 29,/09 /2021 BT T ARIE U5 UKIA (a1 fb 10%
MEa NIRRT ®UY 661,500/ — QY AT 24 /SRR / TV / BIH /2021—22 /5305  fa=Tid
26,/08,/2021 @ ERT 25% XIdI T8 RN H B §RT dMeHeR TR 129 fadi® 30,09 /2021 H 39
AR fovar 7 o | Jaft R e SOl sfiadied & SR W IR &1 13 AT faeis
01,/06,/2022 & SJAR SRR FATH WU F BRI &l B aT o |

(@N) #9E HTeW SOl sfdawsd & 12,/10 /2021 & 13 /11 /2021 THSUY 14,73,750 / — B ATl SUR B
IR YR 997 7 |

@) Hd ATe gonaRT gfdawid g1 fAid 08 /11,/2021 BT TS TR UF URJ B SHDI NI SIS
S % 12,/11 /2021 ST gof BFT o, &1 S7afd 711 SR R 2 A1 3R 9T S &I TR e ram—

() = AT DI HH MY

(i) ¢ B TRTToR H dd REd 8M R S AT I[EHGEIE X BIg T3 dAT B gRT SHD! T &
forT 10 faF &1 w99 foram T o |

(ili) HIF B 25,/09,/2021 ¥ Y 10 & & Iy €I 98 B 9 IR Y ASIGRl DI FIRJAT AT Hiod &l 1T
FIfdh FIF 25,09 /2021 I Y& N qAT Q=16 06,/10,/2021 I 26 /10 /2021 IH M I 9 8 &
HROT FIF 5 &7 | R 26 /10 /2021 BT B YT & HROT L6 IUALT 8l &1 uraT |

(@) 73 faeTia 08 /12 /2021 & AR HAA Hiem golfafdT gfdauies @ 2 A8 @ 979 gfg & 13|

ST PRIT TV ol & IMER R Sad e & dewr § favga fewof /= yor 2

(@) STt foi a9 2020—21 @1 AN el oar wden Ruie # aftfa fear &, 9v Wifte Tgss I 9@
SRR &1 A & foly &R & affge & ufhar 3 Mfasr amar #39d #Ted ol sfdaw<d &l darac]
xaraal e e & forg Y &1 gAT U (S BH BT UIIRIEER S1aIvd AT &1 [afd &7 e &1 yHor ud
e ) et Prafew vd Mfder ST B ® U H M WEINT UF, & SER WR ddeial w9 A A
AT AT o |

@) o< a9y 2021—22 & SRM BRIQY AT 75 QTS 16,04 /2021 & JJAR HFH HIAH SOll-ART
gfdawied @I SRR ® WUAT &1 BRI ArEfed fbar 11| JegaR MfasRm gR1 gRR @ftd &) 9
fasTia 26 /05 /2021 WA fHar 11| F@IfA 01,/06 /2022 TH SR GaT® ©U A BRI T8l R @ A1, o
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@) I gewE g1 fAfasrerar &1 fad S 08 faid 26,705 /2021 @ faveg A W @) fear wam | gwify
I ARRI T ISR §RT A5—2021 &I SITAECIAIR—1 UK T8l &l 15 Ud H5—2021 B SITASIAR—3
S URIT DT TS I ST I AT FFA b JaEA gRT I8 o a1 fF Ffagredar g’ wRer #@
STHT RIAT AT T T8l SIUAST BT YIar B far 1am |

@) foxig ad—2020—21 @ FIEG oRITMRIET & SRME QU MU TAR 79 & qAvE SINANR & ATYUSYA &l
Frafee, f&AE 13 /08 /21 B H99 AT SR Sfdawi<d &I ac] Sl @ PR W) e
T

() FfcET R dRRY W& W/ TR/ 42 f&Fid 15,/04 /2020, AETER TASG SENT @1 & 3MTUSTH &
P & oy ugd far 7| dRiky § S @l Efy aftfg e @1 13 | Jef Ry & srguR affd
fear mr € & I aftia vy w® I8 U al e 08,/04 /2021 Td IHS & g adl adid
15,/04 /2021 “(E IR RGER & URAE (6 I@R@E & & & = aftfd & & gfid & fag smaer
ST o7 H gH y=IaT ® | fRHA® 01,/05,/2020 & 30,/11,/2020 Bl (@Y H 96 RGISTN U SNTUSTHA
PR & HAY TS wU F FaTed b1 Qe Ry fadie 12,/01,/2020 BT YA U5 9 gwId fBar wm |
frtar & e # ffaererar & w9 9l gRT o Wi € 91 forr T | 38 SIS & SR W
T Ao gonfrafT sfdauid &1 o dfed fasar Tar ar|

E) ot afed U 66,15,000 /— BT HrARY fadd 13,/08 /2021 SR fHar a1 J&fd SA FeNfdd &R
fasi 14 /08 /2021 BT SIUHSI & AATdT WYY 66,15,000 /— HR AT TAT| SRR & A" § 49
foRaa fagwfodt urg 8 |

AT TR FIfdsT & Ael # STel Soies H alell Jdidd #es & fdg d. 61 W WE wY
oo fpar war o & yvga Ffder & g™ Sgd &)1 H Siivdd Ud o 9l Yo Afferd B |

TSI & AT IR TR 14.08.2021, TAX VMR I TR & a7 UK @I T5 AT 697 =/l &
I & 14.08.2021 @1 fgdlia wFaR &1 AT Ud TSl gRT SR &I woRl © a1 s o o &
TR UMAR o B & Sl UG e § $Ig UfAfie 981 U8 78 | AR 3Pl & URITHID
PRI Ud YT PTIAT, STAYR H JqHIE & & BRI BT T Qe AT H Iuaiel el o |

PRI BT AT & JIFAR FIIST I DI 10% FATT IR AT BRI5 ST @ney off gafy [fder smar
R PIS A IRT S &1 B8 T3, Sl H. FeM 3ol gfaasica &1 fUse sRidiyos &Rl
@ HROT BT g RN H AT @ T |

diceie famid 14.08.2021 BT AR Aleed ffice gPIs U TICRT JRATAY, SIAYR BT UNT B Tl
ST B Ul SueTe g BRIS TS |

TICHl, AT, SYR ¥ MR SIS Bl AT PRGN Bl WIpid Tl SHd @l Ui Iucted e
g3 |

fafder e & 2 9% & fodar A= Rt R fear SiMr Sad aftid Sudel aR1v U exdrdoli §
IEREIGIRIEIE

He)d HWrem oAl sfaawicd & Jmaea f2d 96 w93 3000 Ufded & <=7 11 wafe Afder grar
HIY 3600 U e F WG & fol TIR o7 | g T 78l 8ol fb Ude g WesT H 3[U R% I
®T 600 /— UfY e B BT T &7 TS |

(T3) ﬁﬂﬁﬁuﬁ?m@wﬁéewﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬁ%wﬁﬁﬂﬁwﬁﬁaﬁﬁsmwaﬂﬁw&i\w
faspa SurR T | SR NESIRSK! SFFHIET SIS H Jurer TEl g1 AT YB W el 8l Ul fd
U IRy fasmar i< wrem goifaRy gfaadicy & SuR fawa ot fear T |

(@) #E| HTeW SoNfaReT sfdawicd & SHUACT YA UF 02 /12 /2021 &1 € &< f&ar ar fir @ fAfder
ST §RT ¢ a1 1. UHSS /21 f&AI® 24 /01 /2022 U {9t AT QRS /22 &A@ 24 /01,/2022 B
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SHOHC! w9 3,32,167.50 ST fhar a7 fST9 Sl §RT 37U 2021—22 &1 ol@l Gl § oi@dg b
RIS

FH HTe SONIRT Sfasicd @I YUSUA BRI & Hlg Mg9d T8l & I8 SN S & IFAR
2100 UfIET JFATFT IS & AT UR 13.8.2021 H 12.1.2022 & QR del 3152.975 Hed R8T | 394 4
1700 H.21 IcTad A 71 R @1 {6 (amawr ¥ie f&1d 06,/10 /2021 & I1AR) & |

Re#re % Iucay S dedl /TSl gd U SaSll & Suael TRl & bR R o gear UdT
g BT B 6 dr & yew gRT 3™ A e SelaRT sfaasicd &l Ier THe Rl oTell &
JAUSTH & WA Y Weh TS o€ T9h SR & WA & oy Ffdar dad U faRiy aafed &1
Al o gd fAfREl &R &9 9 SR ST o UgaE @ fog SR @ TS ot |

fafder aff¥adamell @ 8l 8y faxig faaruil wR us drel doawedl 9Td &1 01 Iy 81 © |

qqi THE URHRUREITAT & Haled Td v@REE & foay srfee fais 01,/12,/2021 & FgAR F6«
TRHE s wfafics @ 6y e w® Sigad & qgan|

TUHET e wofafics gRT wd 9l & o gaR SN far S €, f9d vedes @rs 2501 Afgd
Rergves T9& &1 g Jom Wi Arecd fo. gR1 Sell Ster 3 Reigvs T9a T fhar a7 dem &#
ERT = 1 fhar 1 Safed wrafesr faie 01,/12,/2021 §RT UAUHRIR & RERATG Ud Gared &
foy ®RI B1 3frEed fbar AT 9o BRI B AT B AJAR & g &Y Sigwe! Med off | Henfea
BT XISl H IeTel el gar |

Tfh B P 3MGeH FaTeld Yd I@IENG AT A1 & fory fmar 1 o gafery # wauwd! e .
fafiics @1 18% SIUAS! & PTIAH & oy AR Hecd fafiics STRars o | J=Ifd THuwdr fSaes o
faffics gR1 T\e &1 AYfd & AU Teld TaUaUd dIs & YART fBa1 11 o7 | RS9 gRT iy
Y 202122 & U @I Bl YIB! H A Pl WRIG B WY H ol B HH gRT [Afdad WdR far
AT AT | BAR UM SUAS Tl UG AR & MR W YUH AT VAT YA 8T & b #9 TATHAT
s o fafics g™ ax I & ST W ITAd TIAEUT Pl BT SKATA fhar T R FFE &
g gk D Bl WIS Bl RS A@idh gIRI FEAN Y fhar T |

[ g gF facig af 202122 @ forw AR fawig fAavol & fewo .21 (R @) @ ik &=
BT BT & FTaH RPlg~s 96 TATHIR &1 WIS B HHE gRT I JHET T, Sl W ®9 I
T & b ProT 0 Uel 9 & w9y ¥ o %3 B |

gAfely TS BT 19,44,000 / — AT # AR Ao foIfics @1 quar & Aadl 8, 396 UHId &I
O & i faaren § 72 <wrtar T 2| gaft Sad ¥ # @re vd g afe @1 <3 8 affed
& 7

SIGECT BT RN B 19.44 ARG DI AIAT ol o & HRU URVTAERT B A Yd oM . 19.44 31D
TAT TTATY . 19.44 ARI I HH SWTs T8 | I§ & QU ST 2 o IR 7 Siigedt R <t &1 <1 ga
AT AftAfard T8 R T 1 forr @ qen WReGR B a8 fear mar 8| g9 AT 9 vl
I & F9I B S Fha 8 | IGFaR 39 IR 9 I ¢ Fad 2 |

qiaT THE YRSHRYT IATAT & FaTeld UG IQREMET & By fa-id 01,/12 /2021 & foeg A9 THUHE!

Rrce lofdfics &1 By Ty Jrae wR SN &1 &R |

SR < A TAUHET SRIICe w0 faffice & A1 oF oA & ol &1 JRIdl H WRIG & w9 H AFET AT
TGIIR 9T 194 ¥ & IfHd CISITH @l Hekdl & 1,92600/— @RI 1943 & v CRITH w0
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136.18

140.05
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773.63
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538.28
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1,661.31

1,713.03
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10.28

0.35
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0.46

0.40
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9.99
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637.95

2271

2271

41.60

T @)

2417

2.60

14.05

12.72

12.72

2417

17.43

616.46

623.90
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7,219.33

4,311.51
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2,321.98
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AHd GUS P gN 31.03.22 31.03.21
I B B
T 2.07 1.98 0.09 0.09
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Xl T 0.25 0.24 0.01 0.01
459 443 0.16 0.16
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152.27
943
0.37
9.38
29.39
0.80

201.64

@ #H)
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

G gRT YAIPG Ud qedidd @ SR fordm )
@ g YUSR (A0 T 3@l I aeil A7G e Sl 94 8))

. WUSR, AT T FHeagol 125.44 108.46
CA - -

. SR At 10.30 10.67
T, IRSMT - 20.02
I, gl R 0.56 0.04
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IR # e (ARTd TR Jal g a9e 7T I of A 8l
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TR (T 99 % 0.62 AE) B IGell IR AR ST b WRTETST & TR H JUARM I A1 /G4l & Faeg H
g R® g qed MuRer Iy 981 81 99 {6 39 A&l &1 [l /IWRT fHar S a9 59 dag H
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2, o1 Ffaer o ufiees & R W gg agell I o W o T 7 |




AT #)

fewofi—15 =aRe kTt

31.03.2022
EalSIES

31.03.2021
CRRSIEES

JRfard, 3ree |HS T
rgRierd, 3T HHs T
rgRIer, iy A9s T

gergy: ey For vd ofiH & foTv graems

AT

45.81
22.00
25.07

31.06
2248
25.07

92.88
25.07

78.61
25.07

67.81

53.54
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